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PART I
COMMONLY USED TERMS

The following is a list of certain acronyms and terms generally used in the industry and throughout this document:
CrossAmerica Partners LP and subsidiaries:
CrossAmerica, the
CrossAmerica Partners LP
Partnership, we, us, our
LGP Operations LLC
a wholly owned subsdiary of the Partnership
LGW
Lehigh Gas Wholesale LLC
LGPR
LGP Realty Holdings LP
LGWS
Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. and subsidiaries
CrossAmerica Partners LP related and affiliated parties:
CST
CST Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries
CST Board
the Board of Directors of CST
DMI
Dunne Manning Inc., an entity associated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr., a member of the Board and a
related party
DMS

General Partner
CST Fuel Supply
CST Marketing and Supply
Topper Group
Topstar

Recent Acquisitions:
PMI
Nice N Easy
Landmark
Erickson
One Stop
Franchised Holiday
Stores
State Oil Assets

Dunne Manning Stores LLC (formerly known as Lehigh Gas-Ohio, LLC), an entity associated with
Joseph V. Topper, Jr., a member of the Board and a related party. DMS is an operator of retail motor fuel
stations. DMS leases retail sites from us in accordance with a master lease agreement with us and DMS
purchases substantially all of its motor fuel for these sites from us on a wholesale basis under rack plus
pricing. The financial results of DMS are not consolidated with ours
CrossAmerica GP LLC, the General Partner of CrossAmerica
CST Fuel Supply LP is the Parent of CST Marketing and Supply
CST Marketing and Supply, LLC, a subsidiary of CST Fuel Supply, which provides wholesale fuel
distribution to the majority of CST’s U.S. retail sites on a fixed markup per gallon
Joseph V. Topper, Jr., collectively with those of his affiliates and family trusts that have ownership
interests in our Predecessor Entities, including DMI
Topstar Enterprises, an entity associated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr. Topstar is an operator of retail sites
that leases retail sites from us, but does not purchase fuel from us

Petroleum Marketers, Inc., acquired in April 2014
Nice N Easy Grocery Shoppes, acquired in November 2014
Landmark Industries, acquired in January 2015
Erickson Oil Products, Inc., acquired in February 2015
M&J Operations, LLC, acquired in July 2015
The franchised Holiday stores acquired by CrossAmerica from S/S/G Corporation in March 2016
The assets acquired from State Oil Company in September 2016
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Other Defined Terms:
Amended Omnibus
Agreement

ASC
ASU
Board
BP
Branded Motor Fuels

Couche-Tard
DTW

EBITDA
EICP
Exchange Act
ExxonMobil
FASB
Form 10-K
Getty
GP Purchase

IDRs

IDR Purchase

The Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated October 1, 2014, as amended on February 17,
2016 by and among CrossAmerica, the General Partner, DMI, DMS, CST Services and Joseph V.
Topper, Jr., which amends and restates the original omnibus agreement that was executed in connection
with CrossAmerica’s initial public offering on October 30, 2012. The terms of the Amended Omnibus
Agreement were approved by the conflicts committee of the Board. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus
Agreement, CST Services agrees, among other things, to provide, or cause to be provided, to the
Partnership the management services previously provided by DMI on substantially the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to DMI under the Original Omnibus Agreement.
Accounting Standards Codification
Accounting Standards Update
Board of Directors of our General Partner
BP p.l.c.
Motor fuels that are purchased from major integrated oil companies and refiners under supply
agreements. We take legal title to the motor fuel when we receive it at the rack and generally arrange for
a third-party transportation provider to take delivery of the motor fuel at the rack and deliver it to the
appropriate sites in our network.
Alimentation Couche-Tard Inc.(TSX: ATD.A ATD.B)
Dealer tank wagon contracts, which are variable cent per gallon priced wholesale motor fuel distribution
or supply contracts; DTW also refers to the pricing methodology under such contracts
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, a non-GAAP financial measure
The Partnership’s Executive Income Continuity Plan, as amended
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
ExxonMobil Corporation
Financial Accounting Standards Board
CrossAmerica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016
Getty Realty Corporation
CST’s purchase from Lehigh Gas Corporation of 100% of the membership interests in the sole member
of the General Partner
Incentive Distribution Rights, which are partnership interests on our common units that provide for
special distributions associated with increasing distributions. CST is the owner of 100% of the
outstanding IDRs of CrossAmerica
CST’s purchase of all of the membership interests in limited liability companies formed by the 2004
Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of Joseph V. Topper, Sr. and the 2008 Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of
John B. Reilly, Jr., which owned all of the IDRs in Lehigh Gas Partners LP.

Internal Revenue Code
IPO
IRS
LIBOR
Merger

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
Initial public offering of CrossAmerica Partners LP on October 30, 2012
Internal Revenue Service
London Interbank Offered Rate
The merger of Ultra Acquisition Corp. with CST, with CST surviving the merger as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Circle K Stores Inc. See Merger Agreement below

Merger Agreement

CST’s Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) entered into on August 21, 2016 with
Circle K Stores Inc., a Texas corporation (“Parent”), and Ultra Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation
and an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (“Merger Sub”). Under and subject to the terms and
conditions of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will be merged with and into CST, with CST surviving
the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. Parent is a wholly owned subsidiary of Alimentation
Couche-Tard Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

MD&A
Motiva

Motiva Enterprises, LLC
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NTI

NYSE
Partnership Agreement
Plan

Predecessor Entities
QSR
Retail site
SEC
U.S. GAAP
UST
Valero

WTI

CST’s new to industry stores opened after January 1, 2008, which is generally when CST began
designing and operating its larger format stores that accommodate broader merchandise categories and
food offerings and have more fuel dispensers than its legacy stores
New York Stock Exchange
the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of CrossAmerica Partners LP, dated
as of October 1, 2014, as amended
In connection with the IPO, the General Partner adopted the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive
Award Plan, a long-term incentive plan for employees, officers, consultants and directors of the General
Partner and any of its affiliates who perform services for the Partnership
Wholesale distribution business of Lehigh Gas-Ohio, LLC and real property and leasehold interests
contributed in connection with the IPO
Quick service restaurant
A general term to refer to convenience stores, including those operated by commission agents,
independent dealers, CST, DMS or lessee dealers, as well as company operated sites
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Underground storage tanks
Valero Energy Corporation and, where appropriate in context, one or more of its subsidiaries, or all of
them taken as a whole
West Texas Intermediate crude oil
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements, including in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements include the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business
strategies, financing plans, competitive position, credit ratings, distribution growth, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance
improvements, potential improvements in return on capital employed, the effects of competition and the effects of future legislation or regulations. You can
identify our forward-looking statements by the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,”
“predict,” “seek,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “expect,” “objective,” “projection,” “forecast,” “guidance,” “outlook,” “effort,” “target” and similar
expressions. Such statements are based on management’s current views and assumptions, and involve risks and uncertainties that could affect expected
results. These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements regarding:
•

future retail and wholesale gross profits, including gasoline, diesel and convenience store merchandise gross profits;

•

our anticipated level of capital investments, primarily through acquisitions, and the effect of these capital investments on our results of operations;

•

anticipated trends in the demand for, and volumes sold of, gasoline and diesel in the regions where we operate;

•

volatility in the equity and credit markets limiting access to capital markets;

•

our ability to integrate acquired businesses and to transition retail sites to lessee dealer operated sites;

•

expectations regarding environmental, tax and other regulatory initiatives; and

•

the effect of general economic and other conditions on our business.

In general, we based the forward-looking statements included in this quarterly report on our current expectations, estimates and projections about our
company and the industry in which we operate. We caution you that these statements are not guarantees of future performance as they involve assumptions
that, while made in good faith, may prove to be incorrect, and involve risks and uncertainties we cannot predict. In addition, we based many of these forwardlooking statements on assumptions about future events that may prove to be inaccurate. Accordingly, our actual outcomes and results may differ materially
from what we have expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. Any differences could result from a variety of factors, including the following:
•

CST’s Merger or its Merger Agreement and interim operating covenants contained therein;

•

the inability to satisfy the conditions specified in the Merger Agreement, including, without limitation, the receipt of necessary governmental or
regulatory approvals required to complete the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

•

CST’s business strategy and operations and CST’s conflicts of interest with us and, post-merger, Couche-Tard’s business strategy and operations and
Couche-Tard’s conflicts of interest with us;

•

availability of cash flow to pay the current quarterly distributions on our common units;

•

the availability and cost of competing motor fuels;

•

motor fuel price volatility or a reduction in demand for motor fuels;

•

competition in the industries and geographical areas in which we operate;

•

the consummation of financing, acquisition or disposition transactions and the effect thereof on our business;

•

our existing or future indebtedness;

•

our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition;

•

failure to comply with applicable tax and other regulations or governmental policies;

•

future legislation and changes in regulations or governmental policies or changes in enforcement or interpretations thereof;

•

future regulations and actions that could expand the non-exempt status of employees under the Fair Labor Standards Act;
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•

future income tax legislation;

•

changes in energy policy;

•

increases in energy conservation efforts;

•

technological advances;

•

the impact of worldwide economic and political conditions;

•

the impact of wars and acts of terrorism;

•

weather conditions or catastrophic weather-related damage;

•

earthquakes and other natural disasters;

•

hazards and risks associated with transporting and storing motor fuel;

•

unexpected environmental liabilities;

•

the outcome of pending or future litigation; and

•

our ability to comply with federal, provincial and state laws and regulations, including those related to environmental matters, the sale of alcohol,
cigarettes and fresh foods, employment, health benefits, including the Affordable Care Act, immigration, and international trade.

You should consider the areas of risk described above, as well as those set forth in the section entitled “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Form 10-K,
in connection with considering any forward-looking statements that may be made by us and our businesses generally. We cannot assure you that projected
results or events reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or will occur. The forward-looking statements included in this report are made
as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to report the
occurrence of unanticipated events after the date of this report.
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ITEMS 1., 1A., and 2. BUSINESS, RISK FACTORS AND PROPERTIES
Overview
We are a Delaware limited partnership primarily engaged in the wholesale distribution of motor fuel and the ownership and leasing of real estate used in the
retail distribution of motor fuel. We also generate revenues from the operation of retail sites.
On October 1, 2014, CST completed the GP Purchase and IDR Purchase for $17 million in cash and approximately 2 million shares of CST common stock for
aggregate consideration of approximately $90 million. On August 21, 2016, CST, the owner of our General Partner, entered into the Merger Agreement. As a
result, Circle K Stores Inc., a subsidiary of Couche-Tard, will, through its acquisition of CST, control CST’s interest in the General Partner and CST’s 19.8%
limited partner interest in CrossAmerica as well as all of the IDRs. The Merger was approved by CST’s stockholders on November 16, 2016 and is subject to
the receipt of regulatory approvals in the United States and Canada. The Merger is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2017. The General
Partner manages the operations and activities of CrossAmerica. The General Partner is managed and operated by the Board and executive officers of the
General Partner. As a result of the GP Purchase, CST controls the General Partner and has the right to appoint all members of the Board. Therefore, CST
controls the operations and activities of CrossAmerica even though CST does not own a majority of our outstanding limited partner units.
Our principal executive offices address is 515 Hamilton Street, Suite 200, Allentown, PA 18101, and our telephone number is (610) 625-8000. Our common
units trade on the NYSE under the symbol “CAPL.”
The financial statements reflect the consolidated results of the Partnership and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Our primary operations are conducted by the
following consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries:
•

LGW, which distributes motor fuels on a wholesale basis and generates qualified income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code;

•

LGPR, which functions as the real estate holding company of CrossAmerica and holds assets that generate rental income that is qualifying under
Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

•

LGWS, which owns and leases (or leases and sub-leases) real estate and personal property used in the retail distribution of motor fuels, as well as
provides maintenance and other services to its customers. In addition, LGWS distributes motor fuels on a retail basis and sells convenience
merchandise items to end customers at company operated retail sites and sells motor fuel on a retail basis at sites operated by commission agents.
Income from LGWS generally is not qualifying income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

We conduct our business through two operating segments, Wholesale and Retail. As of December 31, 2016, we distributed motor fuel to nearly 1,200 sites
located in 29 states (Arizona, Arkansas, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Michigan, Minnesota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Tennessee,
Texas, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin).
As part of our business strategy with CST, we intend, when favorable market conditions exist and pending approval by our Board’s independent conflicts
committee and the approval of the executive committee of the CST Board and mutual agreement upon terms and other conditions, to purchase equity
interests at fair market value in CST Fuel Supply, over time. The Merger Agreement prohibits, among other things, CST from selling its tangible and
intangible properties or assets to us between August 21, 2016 and completion of the Merger. As such, there can be no assurance we will be able to purchase
equity interests in CST Fuel Supply in the future. As of December 31, 2016, our total limited partner interest in CST Fuel Supply was 17.5%. See Note 15 for
discussion of the July 2016 refund of a portion of the purchase price paid in 2015 by us to CST Fuel Supply associated with the reduction in wholesale
distribution volume resulting from CST’s sale of its California and Wyoming assets.
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In 2015, we issued our common units as consideration in the purchase of equity interests in CST Fuel Supply and the real property associated with some of
CST’s NTI retail sites. In addition, we also issued, and may continue to issue, our common units as payment for charges and expenses incurred by us under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement. There is no obligation for CST to accept partnership units in lieu of cash for amounts due under the Amended Omnibus
Agreement. Pursuant to a common unit purchase program announced in September 2015, CST has, from time to time, also acquired our common units
through open market purchases. At December 31, 2016, after giving effect to these transactions, CST owned 19.8% of our limited partner interests.
Available Information
Our internet website is www.crossamericapartners.com. Information on this website is not part of this Form 10-K. Annual reports on our Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on our Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K filed with (or furnished to) the SEC are available on this website free of charge, soon after such
material is filed or furnished. In this same location, we also post our corporate governance guidelines, code of ethics and business conduct and the charters of
the committees of our Board. These documents are available in print to any unitholder that makes a written request to CrossAmerica Partners L.P. Attn:
Corporate Secretary, 515 Hamilton Street, Suite 200, Allentown, Pennsylvania 18101.
CST’s internet website is www.CSTBrands.com. Information on this website is not part of this Form 10-K. Annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K filed with (or furnished to) the SEC are available on this website free of charge, soon after such material is filed or
furnished. In this same location, CST also posts its corporate governance guidelines, code of ethics and business conduct and the charters of the committees
of the CST Board. These documents are available in print to any stockholder that makes a written request to CST Brands, Inc. Attn: Corporate Secretary,
19500 Bulverde Road, Suite 100, San Antonio, Texas 78259.
Operations
Wholesale Segment
Our primary operation is the wholesale distribution of motor fuel. Our Wholesale segment generated 2016 revenues of $1.6 billion. We are one of the ten
largest independent distributors by volume in the United States for ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva (Shell), and we also distribute Chevron, Sunoco, Valero,
Gulf, Citgo, Marathon and Phillips 66-branded motor fuels (approximately 83% of the motor fuel we distributed during 2016 was branded). We receive a
fixed mark-up per gallon on approximately 87% of gallons sold to our customers. The remaining gallons are primarily DTW priced contracts with our
customers. These contracts provide for variable, market based pricing. An increase in DTW gross profit results from the acquisition cost of wholesale motor
fuel declining at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail motor fuel prices decline. Conversely, our DTW motor fuel gross profit declines when the cost of
wholesale motor fuel increases at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail motor fuel prices increase.
Regarding our supplier relationships, a majority of our total gallons purchased are subject to discounts for prompt payment and other rebates and incentives,
which are recorded within cost of sales. Prompt payment discounts are based on a percentage of the purchase price of motor fuel. As such, the dollar value of
these discounts increase and decrease corresponding with motor fuel prices. Therefore, in periods of lower wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is
negatively affected and, in periods of higher wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is positively affected (as it relates to these discounts). Based on our
current volumes, we estimate a $10 per barrel change in the price of crude oil would impact our overall annual wholesale motor fuel gross profit by
approximately $2.2 million related to these payment discounts.
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The following table highlights the aggregate volume of motor fuel distributed by our Wholesale segment to each of our principal customer groups by gallons
sold for the periods (in millions):

Wholesale Fuel Distribution End of Year
Sites

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Gallons of motor fuel distributed to:
Independent dealers
Lessee dealers
DMS
CST
Company operated retail sites
Commission agents
Total

2015

2014

2016

2015

2014

362.3
268.4
164.6
78.9
84.7
75.7

418.1
169.7
177.6
77.3
133.1
75.6

396.9
143.8
224.0
4.9
45.1
73.0

403
420
153
43
73
95

370
290
191
43
115
66

416
205
197
21
87
75

1,034.6

1,051.4

887.7

1,187

1,075

1,001

Independent Dealer Sites
•

The independent dealer owns or leases the property and owns all motor fuel and convenience store inventory.

•

We contract to exclusively distribute motor fuel to the independent dealer at a fixed mark-up per gallon or, in some cases, DTW.

•

Distribution contracts with independent dealers are typically 7 to 10 years in length.

•

As of December 31, 2016, the average remaining distribution contract term was 5.6 years.

Lessee Dealer Sites
•

We own or lease the property and then lease or sublease the site to a dealer.

•

The lessee dealer owns all motor fuel and retail site inventory and sets its own pricing and gross profit margins.

•

We collect wholesale motor fuel margins at a fixed mark-up per gallon or, in some cases, DTW.

•

Under our distribution contracts, we agree to supply a particular branded motor fuel or unbranded motor fuel to a site or group of sites and arrange for all
transportation.

•

Exclusive distribution contracts with dealers who lease property from us run concurrent in length to the retail site’s lease period (generally 3 to 10 years).

•

Leases are generally triple net leases.

•

As of December 31, 2016, the average remaining lease agreement term was 3.9 years.

DMS Sites
•

We own or lease the property and then lease or sublease the site to DMS.

•

We entered into a 15-year motor fuel distribution agreement with DMS pursuant to which we distribute to DMS motor fuel at a fixed mark-up per gallon.

•

We entered into 15-year triple-net lease agreements with DMS pursuant to which DMS leases sites from us.

•

DMS owns motor fuel and retail site inventory and sets its own pricing and gross profit margin.

•

As of December 31, 2016, the average remaining term on our motor fuel distribution agreements with DMS was 10.8 years. The average remaining term
on our lease agreements with DMS was 11.2 years.
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CST Sites
•

In conjunction with the joint acquisitions of Nice N Easy and Landmark with CST, we own the property and lease the retail sites to CST. Concurrently
with these acquisitions, we entered into a 10-year motor fuel distribution agreement with CST, pursuant to which we distribute to CST motor fuels at a
fixed mark-up per gallon.

•

We lease sites to CST under a 10-year triple-net master lease agreement.

•

CST owns all motor fuel and retail site inventory and sets its own pricing and gross profit margin.

•

As of December 31, 2016, the remaining term on our fuel distribution agreement was 7.9 years. The average remaining term on our lease agreements with
CST was 8.2 years.

Rental Income
We also generate revenues through leasing or subleasing our real estate. We own or lease real and personal property and we lease or sublease to tenants, the
substantial majority of which are wholesale customers as described above. As such, we manage our real estate leasing activities congruently with our
wholesale business. We own approximately 57% of our properties that we lease to our dealers or utilize in our retail business. Our lease agreements with third
party landlords have an average remaining lease term of 7.8 years as of December 31, 2016. Not all of the rental income we earn is a qualified source of
income. Rental income from CST is not qualifying income.
CST Fuel Supply
As of December 31, 2016, our total limited partner interest in CST Fuel Supply was 17.5%. We receive pro rata distributions from CST Fuel Supply related to
CST Marketing and Supply’s distribution of fuel to the majority of CST’s U.S. retail sites.
Retail Segment
Our Retail segment generated 2016 revenues of $467 million. We own or lease and operate retail sites. Subsequent to an acquisition, we evaluate the
eventual long-term operation of each retail site acquired: (a) to be converted into a lessee dealer or (b) other strategic alternatives, including divestiture or
longer term operation as a retail site. By converting retail sites into lessee dealers, we continue to benefit from motor fuel distribution volumes as well as
rental income from lease or sublease arrangements while reducing operating expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we converted 77 company
operated retail sites in our Retail segment to lessee dealers in our Wholesale segment. As of December 31, 2016, we continue to operate 76 retail sites,
including three liquor stores to which we do not distribute fuel on a wholesale basis.
Company Operated Sites
•

We own or lease the property, operate the retail site and retain all profits from motor fuel and retail site operations.

•

We own the motor fuel inventory at the sites and set the motor fuel pricing at the sites.

•

We maintain inventory from the time of the purchase of motor fuel from third party suppliers until the retail sale to the end customer. On average, we
maintain approximately 5-days’ worth of motor fuel sales in inventory at each site.

•

LGW distributes on a wholesale basis all of the motor fuel required by our company operated sites, which owns the motor fuel inventory and
distributes motor fuel to retail customers. LGW records qualifying wholesale motor fuel distribution gross income and LGWS records the nonqualifying retail distribution gross income.

Commission Sites
•

We own or lease the property and then lease or sublease the site to the commission agent, who pays rent to us and operates all the non-fuel related
operations at the sites for its own account.

•

We own the motor fuel inventory at the sites, set the motor fuel pricing at the sites, and generate revenue from the retail sale of motor fuels to the end
customer.

•

We pay the commission agent a commission for each gallon of fuel sold at the site.

•

LGW distributes motor fuel on a wholesale basis to LGWS, which owns the motor fuel inventory and distributes motor fuel to commission sites.
LGW records qualifying wholesale motor fuel distribution gross income and LGWS records the non-qualifying retail gross income.
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•

As of December 31, 2016, the average remaining fuel distribution and lease agreement term was 2.7 years.

The following chart depicts how motor fuel is procured and distributed to our customer groups and how convenience merchandise items are procured and
distributed to our company owned and operated retail sites. The chart also depicts the relationship of our real estate activities to our customer groups.

Business Strategy and Objective
Our primary business objective is to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to make quarterly cash distributions to our unitholders and, over time, to
increase our quarterly cash distributions. The amount of any distribution is subject to the discretion of the Board, and the Board may modify or revoke the
cash distribution policy at any time. Our Partnership Agreement does not require us to pay any distributions.
Our business strategy to achieve our objective of paying and, over time, increasing our quarterly cash distributions, is focused on the following key
initiatives:
•

Expand within and beyond our existing markets through acquisitions. Since our IPO and through February 24, 2017, we have completed
acquisitions for a total of over 500 fee and leasehold sites for total consideration of approximately $0.9 billion;

•

Enhance our real estate business’ cash flows by owning or leasing sites in prime locations;

•

Increase our wholesale motor fuel distribution business by expanding market share;

•

Maintain strong relationships with major integrated oil companies and refiners;

•

Utilize operating knowledge to grow retail gross profits after the acquisition of retail sites; and

•

As part of our business strategy with CST, we intend, when favorable market conditions exist and pending approval by the Board’s independent
conflicts committee and the approval of the executive committee of the board of directors of CST and mutual agreement upon terms and other
conditions, to purchase equity interests at fair market value in CST Fuel Supply, over time. The Merger Agreement prohibits, among other things,
CST from selling its tangible and intangible properties or assets to us between August 21, 2016 and completion of the Merger. As such, there can be
no assurance we will be able to purchase equity interests in CST Fuel Supply in the future. As of December 31, 2016, our total equity interest in CST
Fuel Supply was 17.5%.
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See “Risk Factors—Risks Relating to CST’s Merger” for certain risks that could effect our ability to execute these key initiatives.
We believe our competitive strengths will allow us to capitalize on our strategic opportunities, including:
•

Stable cash flows from real estate rent income and wholesale motor fuel distribution;

•

Established history of acquiring sites and successfully integrating these sites and operations into our existing business;

•

Long-term relationships with major integrated oil companies and other key suppliers;

•

Retail site operating expertise; and

•

Prime real estate locations in areas with high traffic and considerable motor fuel consumption.

Supplier Arrangements
We distribute branded motor fuel under the Exxon, Mobil, BP, Shell, Chevron, Sunoco, Valero, Gulf, Citgo and Marathon brands to our customers. Branded
motor fuels are purchased from major integrated oil companies and refiners under supply agreements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, our wholesale
business purchased approximately 30%, 25% and 24% of its motor fuel from ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva (Shell), respectively. We purchase the motor fuel
at the supplier’s applicable terminal rack price, which typically changes daily. Certain suppliers offer volume rebates or incentive payments to drive volumes
and provide an incentive for branding new locations. Certain suppliers require that all or a portion of any such incentive payments be repaid to the supplier
in the event that the sites are rebranded within a stated number of years. We also purchase unbranded motor fuel for distribution at a rack price. As of
December 31, 2016, our supply agreements had a weighted-average remaining term of approximately 2.3 years.
Competition
Our wholesale motor fuel distribution business competes with other motor fuel distributors. Major competitive factors for us include, among others, customer
service, price and quality of service and availability of products.
The convenience store industry is highly competitive and characterized by ease of entry and constant change in the number and type of retailers offering
products and services of the type we sell in our retail sites. We compete with other retail site chains, independently owned retail sites, motor fuel stations,
supermarkets, drugstores, discount stores, dollar stores, club stores and hypermarkets. Major competitive factors include, among others, location, ease of
access, product and service selection, motor fuel brands, pricing, customer service, store appearance, and cleanliness.
Seasonality
Our business exhibits substantial seasonality due to our wholesale and retail sites being located in certain geographic areas that are affected by seasonal
weather and temperature trends and associated changes in retail customer activity during different seasons. Historically, sales volumes have been highest in
the second and third quarters (during the summer activity months) and lowest during the winter months in the first and fourth quarters.
Trade Names, Service Marks and Trademarks
We are a wholesale distributor of motor fuel for various major integrated oil companies and are licensed to market/resell motor fuel under their respective
motor fuel brands.
We are not aware of any facts that would negatively affect our continuing use of any trademarks, trade names or service marks.
Environmental Laws and Regulations
We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to USTs, the release or discharge of materials
into the air, water and soil, waste management, pollution prevention measures, storage, handling, use and disposal of hazardous materials, the exposure of
persons to hazardous materials, greenhouse gas emissions, and characteristics, composition, storage and sale of motor fuel and the health and safety of our
employees. We incorporate by reference into this section our disclosures included in Note 2 under the captions “Environmental Matters” and “Asset
Retirement Obligations” and Note 11 under the caption “Asset Retirement Obligations” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Other Regulatory Matters
Our retail sites are subject to regulation by federal, state, and/or local agencies and to licensing and regulations by state and local health, sanitation, safety,
fire and other departments relating to the development and operation of retail sites, including regulations relating to zoning and building requirements and
the preparation and sale of food.
Our retail operations are also subject to federal, state, and/or local laws governing such matters as wage rates, overtime, working conditions and citizenship
requirements. At the federal, state and local levels where we operate, there are proposals under consideration from time to time to increase minimum wage
rates and modify or restrict immigration policies.
Employees
As of December 31, 2016, we had 744 employees who provide services to our retail operations, all of whom are employed by one of our subsidiaries.
The General Partner manages our operations and activities. Under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, employees of CST provide management services to us.
As of December 31, 2016, pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, 87 employees of CST provided exclusive management services to us.
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RISK FACTORS
If any of the following risks were to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In that case,
we might not be able to pay distributions on our common units, the trading price of our common units could decline and you could lose all or part of your
investment. Also, please read “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”
Limited partner interests are inherently different from the capital stock of a corporation although many of the business risks to which we are subject are
similar to those that would be faced by a corporation engaged in a similar business.
On August 21, 2016, CST, the owner of our General Partner, entered into the Merger Agreement. As a result, Circle K Stores Inc., a subsidiary of CoucheTard, will, through its acquisition of CST, control CST’s interest in the General Partner and CST’s 19.8% limited partner interest in CrossAmerica as well as
all of the incentive distribution rights. The Merger is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2017.
Risks Relating to CST’s Merger
The pending Merger could adversely impact our business and strategic plans for growth.
Until its closing, the Merger will continue to require the time and attention of CST’s management, and may increase the challenge of recruiting and retaining
talented and skilled personnel, which in turn could impact the level of services CST is able to provide to us. The Merger Agreement contains certain
restrictions on our operations and, as a result, our revenue, operating results, growth in distributable cash flow and financial condition could be adversely
impacted.
Upon closing of the Merger, we could incur significant severance costs.
Under the EICP, the Merger is considered a change in control event. Any participants in the EICP who experience a qualifying termination event upon or
following consummation of the Merger will be entitled to certain payments and benefits that would be reimbursable by us, which could be material and
adversely affect the amount of cash available for distribution.
Upon the closing of the Merger, Couche-Tard will control us, and may have conflicts of interest with us.
Upon the closing of the Merger, Couche-Tard will have control of our General Partner, and will have the right to remove, appoint and approve the General
Partner’s Board and appointment of officers; decisions regarding our strategic direction, including acquisitions; the timing and amount of distributions, if
any; and other matters affecting our capital structure; and other significant decisions that could impact our financial results, the amount of cash available for
distribution and our liquidity.
Upon the closing of the Merger, Couche-Tard will control the General Partner of CST Fuel Supply.
Upon the closing of the Merger, Couche-Tard will control the general partner of CST Fuel Supply and its wholly owned subsidiary, CST Marketing and
Supply. The Partnership owns a 17.5% limited partner interest in CST Fuel Supply and derives substantial economic benefit from distributions made by CST
Fuel Supply; however, there is no contractual obligation on CST, or Couche-Tard upon the closing of the merger, to make distributions from CST Fuel
Supply, and the decisions as the timing and amount of any distributions are controlled by CST and, upon the closing the Merger, Couche-Tard. Any decrease
in the distributions from CST Fuel Supply could be material and adversely affect the amount of cash available for distribution.
Risks Relating to Our Industry and Our Business
We may not have sufficient distributable cash from operations to enable us to pay our quarterly distribution following the establishment of cash available
for distribution and payment of fees and expenses.
We may not have sufficient cash each quarter to pay our current quarterly distribution or any distribution.
The amount of cash we can distribute on our units principally depends upon the amount of cash we generate from our operations, which will fluctuate from
quarter to quarter based on, among other things:
•

demand for motor fuel products in the markets we serve, including seasonal fluctuations, and the margin per gallon we earn selling and distributing
motor fuel;

•

the wholesale price of motor fuel and its impact on the payment discounts we receive;

•

seasonal trends in the industries in which we operate;
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•

the impact that severe storms could have to our suppliers’ operations;

•

competition from other companies that sell motor fuel products or operate retail sites in our targeted market areas;

•

the inability to identify and acquire suitable sites or to negotiate acceptable leases for such sites;

•

the potential inability to obtain adequate financing to fund our expansion;

•

the level of our operating costs, including the amount and manner in which payments to CST are made under the Amended Omnibus Agreement;

•

prevailing economic conditions;

•

regulatory actions affecting the supply of or demand for motor fuel, our operations, our existing contracts or our operating costs; and

•

volatility of prices for motor fuel.

In addition, the actual amount of cash we will have available for distribution will depend on other factors such as:
•

the level of capital expenditures we make;

•

the restrictions contained in our credit facility;

•

our debt service requirements;

•

the cost of acquisitions;

•

fluctuations in our working capital needs;

•

our ability to borrow under our credit facility to make distributions to our unitholders; and

•

the amount, if any, of cash reserves established by our General Partner in its discretion.

There is no guarantee that we will distribute quarterly cash distributions to our unitholders in any quarter. See “Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common
Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities—Cash Distribution Policy.”
The amount of cash we have available for distribution to unitholders depends primarily on our cash flow rather than on our profitability, which may
prevent us from making cash distributions, even during periods when we record net income.
The amount of cash we have available for distribution depends primarily on our cash flow, and not solely on profitability, which will be affected by non-cash
items. As a result, we may make cash distributions during periods when we record losses for financial accounting purposes and may not make cash
distributions during periods when we record net income for financial accounting purposes.
If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, our future growth and ability to increase distributions to unitholders will be
limited.
Our strategy to grow our business and increase distributions to unitholders is dependent on our ability to make acquisitions that result in an increase in cash
flow. Our growth strategy is based, in large part, on our expectation of ongoing divestitures of retail and wholesale fuel distribution assets by industry
participants. We may be unable to make accretive acquisitions for any of the following reasons:
•

we are unable to identify attractive acquisition candidates or negotiate acceptable purchase contracts for them;

•

we are unable to raise financing for such acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, for example if the market price for our common units
declines;

•

we are outbid by competitors; or

•

we or the seller are unable to obtain any necessary consents.

If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, our future growth and ability to increase distributions to unitholders will be limited.
In addition, if we consummate any future acquisitions, our capitalization and results of operations may
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change significantly. We may also consummate acquisitions, which at the time of consummation we believe will be accretive, but ultimately may not be
accretive. If any of these events occurred, our future growth could be adversely affected.
Any acquisitions are subject to substantial risks that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our
ability to make distributions to unitholders.
Any acquisitions involve potential risks, including, among other things:
•

the validity of our assumptions about revenues, capital expenditures and operating costs of the acquired business or assets, as well as assumptions
about achieving synergies with our existing business;

•

the incurrence of substantial unforeseen environmental and other liabilities arising out of the acquired businesses or assets, including liabilities
arising from the operation of the acquired businesses or assets prior to our acquisition, for which we are not indemnified or for which the indemnity
is inadequate;

•

the costs associated with additional debt or equity capital, which may result in a significant increase in our interest expense and financial leverage
resulting from any additional debt incurred to finance the acquisition, or the issuance of additional common units on which we will make
distributions, either of which could offset the expected accretion to our unitholders from any such acquisition and could be exacerbated by
volatility in the equity or debt capital markets;

•

a failure to realize anticipated benefits, such as increased available distributable cash flow, enhanced competitive position or new customer
relationships;

•

the inability to timely and effectively integrate the operations of recently acquired businesses or assets, particularly those in new geographic areas or
in new lines of business;

•

a decrease in our liquidity by using a significant portion of our available cash or borrowing capacity to finance the acquisition;

•

the incurrence of other significant charges, such as impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets, asset devaluation or restructuring charges;

•

performance from the acquired assets and businesses that is below the forecasts we used in evaluating the acquisition;

•

a significant increase in our working capital requirements;

•

competition in our targeted market areas;

•

customer or key employee loss from the acquired businesses; and

•

diversion of our management’s attention from other business concerns.

In addition, our ability to purchase or lease additional sites involves certain potential risks, including the inability to identify and acquire suitable sites or to
negotiate acceptable leases or subleases for such sites and difficulties in adapting our distribution and other operational and management systems to an
expanded network of sites.
Our reviews of businesses or assets proposed to be acquired are inherently imperfect because it generally is not feasible to perform an in-depth review of
businesses and assets involved in each acquisition. Even a detailed review of assets and businesses may not necessarily reveal existing or potential problems,
nor will it permit a buyer to become sufficiently familiar with the assets or businesses to fully assess their deficiencies and potential. For example, inspections
may not always be performed on every asset, and environmental problems, such as groundwater contamination, are not necessarily observable even when an
inspection is undertaken. Unitholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, financial and other relevant information that we will consider
in determining the application of our funds and other resources toward the acquisition of certain businesses or assets.
Volatility in crude oil and wholesale motor fuel costs affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to make
distributions to unitholders.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, motor fuel revenue accounted for 89% of our total revenues and motor fuel gross profit accounted for 40% of total
gross profit. Wholesale motor fuel costs are directly related to, and fluctuate with, the price of crude oil. Volatility in the price of crude oil, and subsequently
wholesale motor fuel prices, is caused by many factors, including general political conditions, acts of war or terrorism, instability in oil producing regions,
particularly in the Middle East and South America, and the value of U.S. dollars relative to other foreign currencies, particularly those of oil producing
nations. In addition, the supply
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of motor fuel and our wholesale purchase costs could be adversely affected in the event of a shortage or oversupply of product, which could result from,
among other things, interruptions of fuel production at oil refineries, new supply sources, sustained increases or decreases in global demand or the fact that
our motor fuel contracts do not guarantee an uninterrupted, unlimited supply of motor fuel.
Significant increases and volatility in wholesale motor fuel costs could result in lower gross profit dollars, as an increase in the retail price of motor fuel could
impact consumer demand for motor fuel and convenience merchandise and could result in lower wholesale motor fuel gross profit dollars. Dramatic increases
in oil prices reduce retail motor fuel gross profits, because wholesale motor fuel costs typically increase faster than retailers are able to pass them along to
customers. In addition, significant decreases in oil prices and the corresponding decreases in wholesale motor fuel sales prices can result in lower revenues
and gross profit margins, as our wholesale motor fuel gross profits include discounts from our suppliers calculated as a percentage of the cost of wholesale
motor fuel. As the market prices of crude oil, and, correspondingly, the market prices of wholesale motor fuel, experience significant and rapid fluctuations,
we attempt to pass along wholesale motor fuel price changes to our customers through retail price changes; however, we are not always able to do so
immediately. The timing of any related increase or decrease in sales prices is affected by competitive conditions in each geographic market in which we
operate. As such, our revenues and gross profit for motor fuel can increase or decrease significantly and rapidly over short periods of time and potentially
adversely impact our business, financial condition, results of operations and ability to make distributions to our unitholders. The volatility in crude oil and
wholesale motor fuel costs and sales prices makes it extremely difficult to forecast future motor fuel gross profits or predict the effect that future wholesale
costs and sales price fluctuations will have on our operating results and financial condition.
Seasonality in wholesale motor fuel costs and sales, as well as merchandise sales, affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and our
ability to make distributions to unitholders.
Oil prices, wholesale motor fuel costs, motor fuel sales volumes, motor fuel gross profits and merchandise sales often experience seasonal fluctuations. For
example, consumer demand for motor fuel typically increases during the summer driving season and typically falls during the winter months. Travel,
recreation and construction are typically higher in these months in the geographic areas in which we operate, increasing the demand for motor fuel and
merchandise that we sell. Therefore, our revenues are typically higher in the second and third quarters of our fiscal year. A significant change in any of these
factors, including a significant decrease in consumer demand (other than typical seasonal variations), could materially affect our motor fuel and merchandise
volumes, motor fuel gross profit and overall customer traffic, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
Both the wholesale motor fuel distribution and the retail motor fuel industries are characterized by intense competition and fragmentation, and our failure
to effectively compete could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to
unitholders.
The markets for distribution of wholesale motor fuel and the sale of retail motor fuel are highly competitive and fragmented, which results in narrow margins.
We have numerous competitors and some may have significantly greater resources and name recognition than we do. We rely on our ability to provide value
added reliable services and to control our operating costs to maintain our margins and competitive position. If we were to fail to maintain the quality of our
services, wholesale customers could choose alternative distribution sources and retail customers could purchase from other retailers, each decreasing our
margins. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that major integrated oil companies will not decide to distribute their own products in direct competition
with us or that large wholesale customers will not attempt to buy directly from the major integrated oil companies. The occurrence of any of these events
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and our ability to make distributions.
Changes in credit or debit card expenses could reduce our gross profit, especially on motor fuel sold at our company operated retail sites.
A significant portion of our sales at our company operated retail sites involve payment using credit or debit cards. We are assessed fees as a percentage of
transaction amounts and not as a fixed dollar amount or percentage of our gross profits. Higher motor fuel prices result in higher credit and debit card
expenses, and an increase in credit or debit card use or an increase in fees would have a similar effect. Therefore, credit and debit card fees charged on motor
fuel purchases that are more expensive as a result of higher motor fuel prices are not necessarily accompanied by higher gross profits. In fact, such fees may
cause lower gross profits. Lower gross profits on motor fuel sales caused by higher fees may decrease our overall gross profit and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
General economic conditions that are largely out of our control could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and
reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
Recessionary economic conditions, higher interest rates, higher motor fuel and other energy costs, inflation, increases in commodity
11

prices, higher levels of unemployment, higher consumer debt levels, higher tax rates and other changes in tax laws or other economic factors may affect
consumer spending or buying habits, and could adversely affect the demand for motor fuel and convenience items we sell at our retail sites. Unfavorable
economic conditions, higher motor fuel prices and unemployment levels can affect consumer confidence, spending patterns and miles driven, with many
customers “trading down” to lower priced products in certain categories when unfavorable conditions exist. These factors can lead to sales declines in both
motor fuel and general merchandise, and in turn have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
A tightening of credit in the financial markets or an increase in interest rates may make it more difficult for wholesale customers and suppliers to obtain
financing and, depending on the degree to which it occurs, there may be a material increase in the nonpayment or other nonperformance by our customers
and suppliers. Even if our credit review and analysis mechanisms work properly, we may experience financial losses in our dealings with these third parties. A
material increase in the nonpayment or other nonperformance by our wholesale customers and/or suppliers could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
Changes in consumer behavior and travel as a result of changing economic conditions, labor strikes or otherwise could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
In the retail motor fuel industry, customer traffic is generally driven by consumer preferences and spending trends, growth rates for commercial truck traffic
and trends in travel and weather. Changes in economic conditions generally, or in the regions in which we operate, could adversely affect consumer spending
patterns and travel in our markets. In particular, weakening economic conditions may result in decreases in miles driven and discretionary consumer spending
and travel, which affect spending on motor fuel and convenience items. In addition, changes in the types of products and services demanded by consumers or
labor strikes in the construction industry or other industries that employ customers who visit our stores, may adversely affect our sales and gross profit.
Additionally, negative publicity or perception surrounding motor fuel suppliers could adversely affect their reputation and brand image, which may
negatively affect our motor fuel sales and gross profit. Similarly, advanced technology and increased use of “green” automobiles (e.g., those automobiles that
do not use petroleum-based motor fuel or that are powered by hybrid engines) would reduce demand for motor fuel. Our success depends on our ability to
anticipate and respond in a timely manner to changing consumer demands and preferences while continuing to sell products and services that remain relevant
to the consumer and thus will positively impact overall merchandise gross profit.
Legal, technological, political and scientific developments regarding climate change and fuel efficiency may decrease demand for motor fuel.
Developments aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions’ contribution to climate change may decrease the demand or increase the cost for our major
product, petroleum-based motor fuel. Attitudes toward this product and its relationship to the environment may significantly affect our effectiveness in
marketing our product and sales. Government efforts to steer the public toward non-petroleum-based fuel dependent modes of transportation may foster a
negative perception toward motor fuel or increase costs for our product, thus affecting the public’s attitude toward our major product. New technologies that
increase fuel efficiency or offer alternative vehicle power sources or laws or regulations to increase fuel efficiency, reduce consumption or offer alternative
vehicle power sources may result in decreased demand for petroleum-based motor fuel. We may also incur increased costs for our product which we may not
be able to pass along to our customers. These developments could potentially have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
Future tobacco legislation, campaigns to discourage smoking, increased use of tobacco alternatives, increases in tobacco taxes and wholesale cost
increases of tobacco products could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make
distributions to unitholders.
Sales of tobacco products have historically accounted for a significant portion of our total sales of retail site merchandise. Increases in wholesale cigarette
costs and tax increases on tobacco products, as well as future legislation, national and local campaigns to discourage smoking in the U.S., and increased use
of tobacco alternatives such as electronic cigarettes, may have an adverse effect on the demand for tobacco products, and therefore reduce our revenues and
profits. Competitive pressures in our markets can make it difficult to pass price increases on to our customers. These factors could materially and adversely
affect our retail price of cigarettes, cigarette unit volume and sales, merchandise gross profit and overall customer traffic. Reduced sales of tobacco products
or smaller gross profits on the sales we make could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash available
for distributions to our unitholders.
Currently, major cigarette manufacturers offer substantial rebates to retailers. We include these rebates as a component of our gross profit. In the event these
rebates are no longer offered, or decreased, our profit from cigarette sales will decrease accordingly. In addition, reduced retail display allowances on
cigarettes offered by cigarette manufacturers negatively affect gross profits. These factors could materially affect our retail price of cigarettes, cigarette unit
volume and revenues, merchandise gross profit and
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overall customer traffic, which could in turn have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash available for
distributions to our unitholders.
We are subject to extensive government laws and regulations, and the cost of compliance with such laws and regulations can be material.
Our business and properties are subject to extensive local, state and federal governmental laws and regulations relating to, among other things, environmental
conditions, the sale of alcohol, tobacco and money orders, employment conditions, including minimum wage requirements, and public accessibility
requirements. The cost of compliance with these laws and regulations can have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition. In
addition, failure to comply with local, state, provincial and federal laws and regulations to which our operations are subject may result in penalties and costs
that could adversely affect our business and our operating results.
In certain areas where our retail sites are located, state or local laws limit the retail sites’ hours of operation or their sale of alcoholic beverages, tobacco
products, possible inhalants and lottery tickets, in particular to minors. Failure to comply with these laws could adversely affect our revenues and results of
operations because these state and local regulatory agencies have the power to revoke, suspend or deny applications for and renewals of permits and licenses
relating to the sale of these products or to seek other remedies, such as the imposition of fines or other penalties. Moreover, these laws may impact our sales
volumes in general, as customers who purchase certain products such as alcoholic beverages typically buy other products when they shop. Laws that curtail
the consumer’s ability to buy certain products at our retail sites may curtail consumer demand for other products that we sell.
If a portion of our workforce were to create or become part of a labor union, we could be forced to increase our compensation levels in order to avoid work
disruptions or stoppages. Any appreciable increase in the statutory minimum wage or unionization of our workforce could result in an increase in our labor
costs and such cost increase, or the penalties for failing to comply with such statutory minimums, could adversely affect our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
Further, U.S. health care reform legislation requires us to provide additional health insurance benefits to our employees, or health insurance coverage to
additional employees, and has increased our costs and expenses.
Any changes in the laws or regulations described above that are adverse to us and our properties could affect our operating and financial performance. In
addition, new regulations are proposed from time to time which, if adopted, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial
condition.
We are subject to extensive government laws and regulations concerning our employees, and the cost of compliance with such laws and regulations can be
material.
Regulations related to wages and other compensation affect our business. Any appreciable increase in applicable employment laws and regulations,
including the statutory minimum wage, exemption levels or overtime regulations could result in an increase in labor costs and such cost increase, or the
penalties for failing to comply with such statutory minimums, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
available for distributions to our unitholders.
Further, the Affordable Care Act and related reforms make and will continue to make sweeping and fundamental changes to the U.S. health care system. This
requires us to provide additional health insurance benefits to the employees providing services to us, or health insurance coverage to additional employees,
and as a result may increase our costs and expenses. In addition, we are directly and indirectly affected by new tax legislation and regulation and the
interpretation of tax laws and regulations. This includes potential changes in tax laws or the interpretation of tax laws relating to incentive compensation
such as profit interests. Changes in such legislation, regulation or interpretation could have an adverse effect on our incentive compensation structures and
thereby affect our operating results and financial condition.
Any changes in the employment, benefit plan, tax or labor laws or regulations described above that are adverse to us could affect our operating and financial
performance. In addition, new regulations are proposed from time to time which, if adopted, could have a material adverse effect on our employment
practices, operating results and financial condition.
We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws, and the cost of complying with such laws may be material.
Our operations are subject to a variety of environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to emissions to the air, discharges into water, releases
of hazardous and toxic substances and remediation of contaminated sites. Under various federal, state and local laws and regulations, we may, as the owner or
operator, be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of contamination at our current locations or our former locations, whether or not we knew of, or
were responsible for, the presence
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of such contamination. In particular, as an owner and operator of motor fueling stations, we face risks relating to petroleum product contamination that other
retail site operators not engaged in such activities would not face. The remediation costs and other costs required to clean up or treat contaminated sites could
be substantial. Contamination on and from our current or former locations may subject us to liability to third parties or governmental authorities for injuries
to persons, property or natural resources and may adversely affect our ability to sell or rent our properties or to borrow money using such properties as
collateral.
In the U.S., persons who dispose of or arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances at third party sites may also be liable for the costs
of removal or remediation of such substances at these disposal sites although such sites are not owned by such persons. Our current and historic operation of
many locations and the disposal of contaminated soil and groundwater wastes generated during cleanups of contamination at such locations could expose us
to such liability.
We are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations regulating USTs and vapor recovery systems. Compliance with existing and future
environmental laws regulating such tanks and systems may require significant expenditures. In the U.S., we pay fees to state “leaking UST” trust funds in
states where they exist. These state trust funds are expected to pay or reimburse us for remediation expenses related to contamination associated with USTs
subject to their jurisdiction. Such payments are always subject to a deductible paid by us, specified per incident caps and specified maximum annual
payments, which vary among the funds.
Additionally, such funds may have eligibility requirements that not all of our sites will meet. To the extent state funds or other responsible parties do not pay
or delay payments for remediation, we will be obligated to make these payments, which, in the aggregate, could materially adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations. We can give no assurance that these funds or responsible third parties are or will continue to remain viable. See Note 16
of the notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K under the caption “Litigation Matters” for a discussion of certain
allegations made against us related to the remediation activities of USTs.
Motor fuel operations present risks of soil and groundwater contamination. In the future, we may incur substantial expenditures for remediation of
contamination that has not been discovered at existing locations or locations which we may acquire. We regularly monitor our facilities for environmental
contamination and record liabilities on our financial statements to cover potential environmental remediation and compliance costs when probable to occur
and reasonably estimable. However, we can make no assurance that the liabilities we have recorded are the only environmental liabilities relating to our
current and former locations, that material environmental conditions not known to us do not exist, that future laws or regulations will not impose material
environmental liability on us or that our actual environmental liabilities will not exceed our reserves. In addition, failure to comply with any environmental
regulations or an increase in regulations could materially and adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.
Unfavorable weather conditions, the impact of climate change or other trends or developments in the regions in which we operate could adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
Our retail sites are located in regions throughout the U.S. that are susceptible to certain severe weather events and potential impacts of climate change, such
as hurricanes, severe thunderstorms, snowstorms, tornadoes and extreme heat and cold. Inclement weather conditions could damage our facilities, our
suppliers or could have a significant impact on consumer behavior, travel and retail site traffic patterns, as well as our ability to operate our retail sites. We
could also be affected by regional occurrences, such as energy shortages or increases in energy prices, fires or other natural disasters. Besides these more
obvious consequences of severe weather, our ability to insure these locations and the related cost of such insurance may also affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
We could be adversely affected if we are not able to attract and retain a strong management team.
We are dependent on our ability to attract and retain a strong management team. If, for any reason, we are not able to attract and retain qualified senior
personnel, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected. We also are dependent on our ability to recruit
qualified retail site and field managers. If we fail to attract and retain these individuals at reasonable compensation levels, our operating results may be
adversely affected.
We depend on three principal suppliers for the majority of our motor fuel. A disruption in supply or a change in our relationship with any one of them
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva collectively supplied approximately 79% of our motor fuel purchases in 2016. We purchased approximately 30%, 25% and
24% of its motor fuel from ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva, respectively. A change of motor fuel suppliers, a disruption in supply or a significant change in
pricing with any of these suppliers could have a material adverse effect
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on our business.
We rely on our suppliers to provide trade credit terms to adequately fund our on-going operations.
Our business is impacted by the availability of trade credit to fund motor fuel purchases and inventory purchases of our retail sites. An actual or perceived
downgrade in our liquidity or operations could cause our suppliers to seek credit support in the form of additional collateral, limit the extension of trade
credit or otherwise materially modify their payment terms. Any material changes in the payments terms, including payment discounts, or availability of trade
credit provided by our principal suppliers could impact our liquidity, results of operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Pending or future litigation could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Litigation and publicity concerning motor fuel or
food quality, health and other issues could result in significant liabilities or litigation costs and cause consumers to avoid our retail sites.
Retail site businesses can be adversely affected by litigation and complaints from customers or government agencies resulting from motor fuel or food
quality, illness or other health or environmental concerns or operating issues stemming from one or more locations. Additionally, we may become a party to
individual personal injury, off-specification motor fuel, products liability, consumer protection act, contract disputes, wage and hour unemployment claims
and other legal actions in the ordinary course of our business and we are occasionally exposed to industry-wide or class-action claims arising from the
products we carry or industry-specific business practices. Adverse publicity about these allegations may negatively affect us, regardless of whether the
allegations are true, by discouraging customers from purchasing motor fuel, merchandise or food at one or more of our retail sites. We could also incur
significant liabilities if a lawsuit or claim results in a decision against us. Even if we are successful in defending such litigation, our litigation costs could be
significant, and the litigation may divert time and money away from our operations and adversely affect our performance. Our defense costs and any resulting
damage awards may not be fully covered by our insurance policies. Please see Note 16 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
The dangers inherent in the storage and transport of motor fuel could cause disruptions and could expose us to potentially significant losses, costs or
liabilities.
We store motor fuel in storage tanks at our retail sites. These operations are subject to significant hazards and risks inherent in storing and transporting motor
fuel. These hazards and risks include, but are not limited to, fires, explosions, traffic accidents, spills, discharges and other releases, any of which could result
in distribution difficulties and disruptions, environmental pollution, governmentally imposed fines or cleanup obligations, personal injury or wrongful death
claims and other damage to our properties and the properties of others. Any such event could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash available for distributions to our unitholders.
We depend on transportation providers for the transportation of substantially all of our motor fuel. Thus, a change of providers or a significant change in
our relationship with any of these providers could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to
make distributions to unitholders.
Substantially all of the motor fuel we distribute is transported from motor fuel terminals to gas stations by third party carriers. A change of transportation
providers, a disruption in service or a significant change in our relationship with any of these transportation carriers could have a material adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern the product quality specifications of the motor fuel that we distribute and sell.
Various federal, state and local agencies have the authority to prescribe specific product quality specifications to the sale of commodities. Changes in
product quality specifications, such as reformulated fuels mandates, reduced sulfur content in refined petroleum products, or other more stringent
requirements for fuels, could reduce our ability to procure product and our sales volume, require us to incur additional handling costs, and/or require the
expenditure of capital. If we are unable to procure product or to recover these costs through increased sales, our ability to meet our financial obligations
could be adversely affected. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in substantial penalties.
Our motor fuel sales in our Wholesale segment are generated under contracts that must be renegotiated or replaced periodically. If we are unable to
successfully renegotiate or replace these contracts, then our business, financial condition and results of operations and ability to make distributions to
unitholders could be adversely affected.
Our Wholesale segment’s motor fuel sales are generated under contracts that must be periodically renegotiated or replaced. As these contracts expire, they
must be renegotiated or replaced. We may be unable to renegotiate or replace these contracts when they expire, and the terms of any renegotiated contracts
may not be as favorable as the contracts they replace. Whether these
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contracts are successfully renegotiated or replaced is often times subject to factors beyond our control. Such factors include fluctuations in motor fuel prices,
counterparty ability to pay for or accept the contracted volumes and a competitive marketplace for the services offered by us. If we cannot successfully
renegotiate or replace our contracts or must renegotiate or replace them on less favorable terms, sales from these arrangements could decline and our ability to
make distributions to its unitholders could be adversely affected.
We rely on our IT systems and network infrastructure to manage numerous aspects of our business, and a disruption of these systems could adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
We depend on our IT systems and network infrastructure to manage numerous aspects of our business and provide analytical information to management.
These systems are an essential component of our business and growth strategies, and a serious disruption to them could significantly limit our ability to
manage and operate our business efficiently. These systems are vulnerable to, among other things, damage and interruption from power loss or natural
disasters, computer system and network failures, loss of telecommunications services, physical and electronic loss of data, security breaches and computer
viruses, which could result in a loss of sensitive business information, systems interruption or the disruption of our business operations. To protect against
unauthorized access or attacks, we have implemented infrastructure protection technologies and disaster recovery plans, but there can be no assurance that a
technology systems breach or systems failure will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
Our business and our reputation could be adversely affected by the failure to protect sensitive customer, employee or vendor data, whether as a result of
cyber security attacks or otherwise, or to comply with applicable regulations relating to data security and privacy.
In the normal course of our business as a motor fuel and merchandise retailer, we obtain large amounts of personal data, including credit and debit card
information from our customers. While we have invested significant amounts in the protection of our IT systems and maintain what we believe are adequate
security controls over individually identifiable customer, employee and vendor data provided to us, a breakdown or a breach in our systems that results in the
unauthorized release of individually identifiable customer or other sensitive data could nonetheless occur.
Cyber attacks are rapidly evolving and becoming increasingly sophisticated. A successful cyber attack resulting in the loss of sensitive customer, employee
or vendor data could adversely affect our reputation, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and could result in litigation against us or the
imposition of penalties. Moreover, a security breach could require that we expend significant additional resources to upgrade further the security measures
that we employ to guard against cyber attacks.
Our debt levels and debt agreement covenants may limit our flexibility in obtaining additional financing and in pursuing other business opportunities.
We have a significant amount of debt. At December 31, 2016, we had $467.2 million of total debt and $94.1 million of availability under the CrossAmerica
revolving credit facility. Our credit agreement requires, among other things, that we have, after giving effect to any acquisition, at least $20.0 million, in the
aggregate, of borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash on the balance sheet on the date of such acquisition. See “Item
7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity—Debt” for a discussion of the terms of our amended
and restated credit facility entered into in March 2014, as amended in December 2016. Our level of indebtedness could have important consequences to us,
including the following:
•

our ability to obtain additional financing, if necessary, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or other purposes may be impaired or
such financing may not be available on favorable terms;

•

covenants contained in our credit facility will require us to meet financial tests that may affect our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes
in our business, including possible acquisition opportunities;

•

we will need a substantial portion of our cash flow to make interest payments on our indebtedness, reducing the funds that would otherwise be
available for operations, future business opportunities and distributions to unitholders;

•

our debt level will make us more vulnerable than our competitors with less debt to competitive pressures or a downturn in our business or the
economy generally; and

•

our debt level may limit our flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions.
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Our ability to service our indebtedness will depend upon, among other things, our future financial and operating performance, which will be affected by
prevailing economic conditions and financial, business, regulatory and other factors, some of which are beyond our control. If our operating results are not
sufficient to service our current or future indebtedness, we will be forced to take actions, such as reducing distributions, reducing or delaying our business
activities, acquisitions, investments and/or capital expenditures, selling assets, restructuring or refinancing our indebtedness, or seeking additional equity
capital or bankruptcy protection. We may not be able to effect any of these actions on satisfactory terms, or at all.
Our credit facility contains operating and financial restrictions that may limit our business, financing activities and ability to make distributions to
unitholders.
The operating and financial restrictions and covenants in our credit facility and any future financing agreements could adversely affect our ability to finance
future operations or capital needs or to engage, expand or pursue our business activities. For example, our credit facility may restrict our ability to:
•

make distributions if any potential default or event of default occurs;

•

incur additional indebtedness, including the issuance of certain preferred equity interests, or guarantee other indebtedness;

•

grant liens or make certain negative pledges;

•

make certain advances, loans or investments;

•

make any material change to the nature of our business, including mergers, consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions;

•

make certain capital expenditures in excess of specified levels;

•

acquire another company;

•

enter into a sale-leaseback transaction or certain sales or leases of assets;

•

enter into certain affiliate transactions; or

•

make certain repurchases of equity interests.

Our credit facility will limit our ability to pay distributions upon the occurrence of the following events, among others:
•

failure to pay any principal when due or failure to pay any interest, fees or other amounts owing under our credit facility when due, subject to any
applicable grace period;

•

failure of any representation or warranty in our credit agreement to be true and correct, and the failure of any representation or warranty in any other
agreement delivered in connection with our credit facility to be true and correct in any material respect;

•

failure to perform or otherwise comply with the covenants in our credit facility or in other loan documents beyond the applicable notice and grace
period;

•

any default in the performance of any obligation or condition beyond the applicable grace period relating to any other indebtedness of more than
$7.5 million;

•

failure of the lenders to have a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral pledged by any loan party;

•

the entry of one or more judgments in excess of $20.0 million, to the extent any payments pursuant to the judgment are not covered by insurance;

•

a change in ownership control of us or our General Partner (other than the change in control related to the Merger);

•

a violation of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or “ERISA”; and

•

a bankruptcy or insolvency event involving us or any of our subsidiaries.

Our ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in our credit facility may be affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing
economic, financial and industry conditions. If market or other economic conditions deteriorate, our ability to comply with these covenants may be impaired.
If we violate any of the restrictions, covenants, ratios or tests in our credit facility, the debt issued under the credit facility may become immediately due and
payable, and our lenders’ commitment to make
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further loans to us may terminate. We might not have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these accelerated payments. In addition, our obligations
under our credit facility will be secured by substantially all of our assets, and if we are unable to repay our indebtedness under our credit facility, the lenders
could seek to foreclose on such assets.
We may not be able to lease sites we own or sub-lease sites we lease on favorable terms and any such failure could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
We may lease and/or sub-lease certain sites to lessee dealers, commission agents, CST or to DMS where the rent expense is more than the lease payments. If
we are unable to obtain tenants on favorable terms for sites we own or lease, the lease payments we receive may not be adequate to cover our rent expense for
leased sites and may not be adequate to ensure that we meet our debt service requirements. We cannot provide any assurance that the margins on our
wholesale distribution of motor fuels to these sites will be adequate to off-set unfavorable lease terms. The occurrence of these events could adversely affect
our results of operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
The operations at sites we own or lease are subject to inherent risk, operational hazards and unforeseen interruptions and insurance may not adequately
cover any such exposure. The occurrence of a significant event or release that is not fully insured could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
The presence of flammable and combustible products at our sites provides the potential for fires and explosions that could destroy both property and human
life. Furthermore, our operations are subject to unforeseen interruptions such as natural disasters, adverse weather and other events beyond our control. Motor
fuels also have the potential to cause environmental damage if improperly handled or released. If any of these events were to occur, we could incur
substantial losses and/or curtailment of related operations because of personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property and
equipment, and pollution or other environmental damage.
We are not fully insured against all risks incident to our business. We may be unable to maintain or obtain insurance of the type and amount we desire at
reasonable rates. As a result of market conditions, premiums and deductibles for certain of our insurance policies have increased and could escalate further. In
some instances, certain insurance could become unavailable or available only for reduced amounts of coverage. If we were to incur a significant liability for
which we were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and ability to make distributions to unitholders.
We are relying on DMI to indemnify us for any costs or expenses that we incur for environmental liabilities and third-party claims, regardless of when a
claim is made, that are based on environmental conditions in existence prior to the closing of the IPO at our Predecessor’s sites. To the extent escrow
accounts, insurance and/or payments from DMI are not sufficient to cover any such costs or expenses, our business, financial condition and results of
operations and ability to make distributions to unitholders could be adversely affected.
The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that DMI must indemnify us for any costs or expenses that we incur for environmental liabilities and third-party
claims, regardless of when a claim is made, that are based on environmental conditions in existence prior to the closing of the IPO at our Predecessor’s sites.
DMI is the beneficiary of escrow accounts created to cover the cost to remediate certain environmental liabilities. In addition, DMI maintains insurance
policies to cover environmental liabilities and/or, where available, participates in state programs that may also assist in funding the costs of environmental
liabilities. There are certain sites that were acquired by us in connection with the IPO with existing environmental liabilities that are not covered by escrow
accounts, state funds or insurance policies. As of December 31, 2016, DMI had an aggregate of approximately $1.0 million of environmental liabilities on
sites acquired by us that are not covered by escrow accounts, state funds or insurance policies. To the extent escrow accounts, insurance and/or payments
from DMI are not sufficient to cover any such costs or expenses, our business, liquidity and results of operations could be adversely affected.
Risks Inherent in an Investment in Us
CST controls, and after the Merger, Couche-Tard will control, us and may have conflicts of interest with us in the future.
CST currently controls, and after the Merger, Couche-Tard will control, our General Partner, including the election of directors; decisions regarding mergers,
consolidations or acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other matters affecting our capital structure; and other significant decisions
that could impact our financial results and the amount of cash available for distribution. In addition, CST may compete directly with us for future
acquisitions, which may conflict with our core strategy to grow our business and increase distributions to unitholders. As long as CST or Couche-Tard
continues to own our General Partner, it will continue to be able to effectively control our decisions.
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CST owns, and after the Merger, Couche-Tard will own, the sole member of our General Partner, which has sole responsibility for conducting our business
and managing our operations. Our General Partner and its affiliates, including CST, have conflicts of interest with us and limited fiduciary duties and they
may favor their own interests to the detriment of us and our unitholders.
CST owns, and after the Merger, Couche-Tard will own, the sole member of and controls our General Partner and has and will have the ability to appoint all
of the directors of our Board. Although our General Partner has a legal duty to manage in good faith, the executive officers and directors of our Board have a
fiduciary duty to manage our General Partner in a manner beneficial to its owner, CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable. Furthermore, certain officers of our
General Partner are directors of our Board or officers of affiliates of our General Partner. Therefore, conflicts of interest may arise in the future between us and
our unitholders, on the one hand, and our General Partner, on the other hand. In resolving these conflicts of interest, our General Partner may favor its own
interests and the interests of CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, over our interests and the interests of our common unitholders. These conflicts include the
following situations, among others:
•

our General Partner is allowed to take into account the interests of parties other than us, such as CST, in resolving conflicts of interest, which has the
effect of limiting its fiduciary duty to our unitholders;

•

neither our Partnership Agreement nor any other agreement requires CST to pursue a business strategy that favors us;

•

some officers of our General Partner who will provide services to us will devote time to affiliates of our General Partner and may be compensated for
services rendered to such affiliate;

•

our Partnership Agreement limits the liability of and reduces fiduciary duties owed by our General Partner and also restricts the remedies available to
unitholders for actions that, without the limitations, might constitute breaches of fiduciary duty;

•

except in limited circumstances, our General Partner has the power and authority to conduct our business without unitholder approval;

•

our General Partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, borrowings, issuances of additional partnership securities and the
creation, reductions or increases of cash reserves, each of which can affect the amount of cash that is available for distribution to our unitholders, and
to the holders of the IDRs;

•

our General Partner determines the amount and timing of any capital expenditures and whether a capital expenditure is classified as a maintenance
capital expenditure, which reduces operating surplus. Such determination can affect the amount of cash available for distribution to our unitholders
and to the holders of the IDRs;

•

our General Partner may cause us to borrow funds in order to permit the payment of cash distributions, even if the purpose or effect of the borrowing
is to make incentive distributions;

•

our Partnership Agreement permits us to distribute up to $15 million as operating surplus, even if it is generated from asset sales, non-working
capital borrowings or other sources that would otherwise constitute capital surplus. This cash may be used to fund distributions on the IDRs;

•

our Partnership Agreement does not restrict our General Partner from causing us to pay it or its affiliates for any services rendered to us or entering
into additional contractual arrangements with its affiliates on our behalf;

•

our General Partner intends to limit its liability regarding our contractual and other obligations;

•

our General Partner may exercise its right to call and purchase our common units if it and its affiliates own more than 80% of our common units;

•

our General Partner controls the enforcement of obligations that it and its affiliates owe to us;

•

our General Partner decides whether to retain separate counsel, accountants or others to perform services for us;

•

the holders of our IDRs may transfer their IDRs without unitholder approval; and

•

our General Partner may elect to cause us to issue common units to the holders of our IDRs in connection with a resetting of the target distribution
levels related to the IDRs without the approval of the conflicts committee of the Board or the unitholders. This election may result in lower
distributions to the common unitholders in certain situations.
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The owner of our General Partner or the Board may modify or revoke our cash distribution policy at any time at their discretion. Our Partnership
Agreement does not require us to pay any distributions at all.
The Board has adopted a cash distribution policy pursuant to which we intend to distribute quarterly an amount at least equal to the minimum quarterly
distribution of $0.4375 per unit on all of our units to the extent we have sufficient cash from our operations after the establishment of reserves and the
payment of our expenses. However, CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, as the owner of our General Partner or the Board may change such policy at any time
at their discretion and could elect not to pay distributions for one or more quarters. In addition, our credit facility includes certain restrictions on our ability
to make distributions.
In addition, our Partnership Agreement does not require us to pay any distributions at all. Accordingly, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
the permanence of such a policy in making an investment decision. Any modification or revocation of our cash distribution policy could substantially reduce
or eliminate the amounts of distributions to our unitholders. The amount of distributions we make, if any, and the decision to make any distribution at all will
be determined by CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, as the owner of our General Partner of the Board, whose interests may differ from those of our common
unitholders.
We rely on the employees of CST to provide key management services to our business pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement. If our Amended
Omnibus Agreement is terminated, we may not be able to find suitable replacements to perform such services for us without interruption to our business or
increased costs.
Under our Amended Omnibus Agreement, CST provides us with the personnel necessary to support our management, administrative and operating services,
including accounting, tax, legal, internal audit, risk management and compliance, environmental compliance and remediation management oversight,
treasury, information technology and other administrative functions, as well as the management and operation of our wholesale distribution and retail
business. If our Amended Omnibus Agreement is terminated, we may suffer interruptions to our business or increased costs to replace these services.
The liability of DMI and CST is limited under our Amended Omnibus Agreement and we have agreed to indemnify DMI and CST against certain
liabilities, which may expose us to significant expenses.
The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that we must indemnify DMI and CST for certain liabilities, including any liabilities incurred by CST
attributable to the operating and administrative services provided to us under the agreement, other than liabilities resulting from DMI’s or CST’s bad faith,
fraud, or willful misconduct, as applicable.
Our General Partner has and intends to limit its liability regarding our obligations.
Our General Partner has and intends to limit its liability under contractual arrangements between us and third parties so that the counterparties to such
arrangements have recourse only against our assets, and not against our General Partner or its assets. Our General Partner may therefore cause us to incur
indebtedness or other obligations that are nonrecourse to our General Partner. Our Partnership Agreement provides that any action taken by our General
Partner to limit its liability is not a breach of our General Partner’s fiduciary duties, even if we could have obtained more favorable terms without the
limitation on liability. In addition, we are obligated to reimburse or indemnify our General Partner to the extent that it incurs obligations on our behalf. Any
such reimbursement or indemnification payments would reduce the amount of cash otherwise available for distribution to our unitholders.
If we distribute a significant portion of our cash available for distribution to our partners, our ability to grow and make acquisitions could be limited.
We may determine to distribute a significant portion of our cash available for distribution to our unitholders. In addition, we expect to rely primarily upon
external financing sources, including commercial bank borrowings and the issuance of debt and equity securities, to fund our acquisitions and expansion
capital expenditures. To the extent we are unable to finance growth externally, distributing a significant portion of our cash available for distribution may
impair our ability to grow.
In addition, if we distribute a significant portion of our cash available for distribution, our growth may not be as fast as that of businesses that reinvest their
cash available for distribution to expand ongoing operations. To the extent we issue additional units in connection with any acquisitions or expansion
capital expenditures, the payment of distributions on those additional units may increase the risk that we will be unable to maintain or increase our per unit
distribution level. There are no limitations in our Partnership Agreement or our new credit facility on our ability to issue additional units, provided there is no
default under the credit facility, including units ranking senior to the common units. The incurrence of additional commercial borrowings or other debt to
finance our growth strategy would result in increased interest expense, which, in turn, may impact the cash available for distribution to our unitholders. Our
ability to incur debt is limited by the Merger Agreement.
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There are no limitations in our Partnership Agreement on our ability to issue units ranking senior to the common units.
In accordance with Delaware law and the provisions of our Partnership Agreement, we may issue additional partnership interests that are senior to the
common units in right of distribution, liquidation and voting. The issuance by us of units of senior rank may (i) reduce or eliminate the amount of cash
available for distribution to our common unitholders; (ii) diminish the relative voting strength of the total common units outstanding as a class; or
(iii) subordinate the claims of the common unitholders to our assets in the event of our liquidation.
Our Partnership Agreement replaces, eliminates and modifies, as applicable, the duties, including the fiduciary duties, of our General Partner, the Board
or any committee thereof, and modifies the burden of proof in any action brought against the General Partner, the Board or any committee thereof.
Our Partnership Agreement contains provisions that modify the duties of the General Partner, including the fiduciary duties of the General Partner, and
restricts the remedies available to unitholders for actions taken by our General Partner that might otherwise constitute breaches of fiduciary duty under
Delaware partnership law. For example, our Partnership Agreement:
•

provides that whenever our General Partner, the Board or any committee of the Board makes a determination or takes, or declines to take, any other
action in its capacity as the general partner of the Partnership, our General Partner is required to make such determination, or take or decline to take
such other action, in good faith, and will not be subject to any higher standard under any Delaware Act, or any other law, rule or regulation, or at
equity;

•

provides that any determination, act or failure to act by our General Partner will be deemed in good faith unless such party believed such
determination, other action or failure to act, given the totality of the circumstance, was adverse to the interests of the Partnership;

•

in any proceeding brought by the Partnership, any limited partner, or any Person who acquires an interest in a Partnership Interest or any other
Person who is bound by the Partnership Agreement, challenging such action, determination or failure to act, the Person bringing or prosecuting such
proceeding shall have the burden of proving that such determination, action or failure to act was not in good faith;

•

provides that whenever the General Partner makes a determination or takes or declines to take any other action in its individual capacity as opposed
to in its capacity as the general partner of the Partnership, whether under the Partnership Agreement or any other agreement contemplated thereby,
then the General Partner, or any affiliate thereof, are entitled to the fullest extent permitted by law, to make such determination or to take or decline
to take such other action free of any fiduciary duty, duty of good faith, obligation imposed by Delaware Act, law, rule or in equity to the Partnership,
any limited partner or any Person who acquires an interest in a Partnership interest or any other Person who is bound by the Partnership Agreement.
Examples of decisions that our General Partner may make in its individual capacity include:
◦

how to allocate business opportunities among us and its affiliates;

◦

whether to exercise its call right;

◦

whether to elect to reset target distribution levels; and

◦

whether or not to consent to any merger or consolidation of the Partnership or amendment to the Partnership Agreement.

•

provides that our General Partner and its officers and directors will not be liable for monetary damages to the Partnership or our limited partners
resulting from any act or omission unless there has been a final and non-appealable judgment entered by a court of competent jurisdiction
determining that our General Partner or its officers and directors, as the case may be, acted in bad faith or, in the case of a criminal matter, acted with
knowledge that the conduct was criminal;

•

provides that the General Partner may consult with legal counsel, accountants, appraisers, management consultants, investment bankers and other
consultants and advisers selected by it, and any act taken or omitted in reliance upon the advice or opinion (including an opinion of counsel) of
such persons as to matters that the General Partner reasonably believes to be within such person’s professional or expert competence shall be
conclusively presumed to have been done or omitted in good faith and in accordance with such advice or opinion; and

•

provides that our General Partner will not be in breach of its obligations under the Partnership Agreement or its fiduciary duties to us or our limited
partners if a transaction with an affiliate or the resolution of a conflict of interest is:
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•

approved by the conflicts committee of the Board, although our General Partner is not obligated to seek such approval; or

•

approved by the vote of a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding any common units owned by our General Partner and its
affiliates.

By purchasing a common unit, a unitholder is treated as having consented to the provisions in the Partnership Agreement, including the provisions discussed
above.
Our General Partner’s affiliates may compete with us.
Our Partnership Agreement provides that our General Partner will be restricted from engaging in any business activities other than acting as our General
Partner and those activities incidental to its ownership interest in us. Except as provided in the Amended Omnibus Agreement, affiliates of our General
Partner are not prohibited from engaging in other businesses or activities, including those that might be in direct competition with us.
Pursuant to the terms of our Partnership Agreement, the doctrine of corporate opportunity, or any analogous doctrine, does not apply to our General Partner,
CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, or any of their affiliates, including their executive officers and directors. Any such person or entity that becomes aware of
a potential transaction, agreement, arrangement or other matter that may be an opportunity for us will not have any duty to communicate or offer such
opportunity to us. Any such person or entity will not be liable to us or to any limited partner for breach of any fiduciary duty or other duty by reason of the
fact that such person or entity pursues or acquires such opportunity for itself, directs such opportunity to another person or entity or does not communicate
such opportunity or information to us. This may create actual and potential conflicts of interest between us and affiliates of our General Partner and result in
less than favorable treatment of us and our unitholders. Conflicts of interest may arise in the future between us and our unitholders, on the one hand, and the
affiliates of our General Partner and CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, on the other hand. In resolving these conflicts, CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable,
may favor their own interests over the interests of our unitholders.
CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, as the holder of our IDRs, may elect to cause us to issue common units to the holders of our IDRs in connection with a
resetting of the target distribution levels related to the IDRs, without the approval of the conflicts committee of the Board or the holders of our common
units. This could result in lower distributions to holders of our common units.
The holder of our IDRs, has the right, at any time when the holders of our IDRs have received incentive distributions at the highest level to which they are
entitled (50%) for each of the prior four consecutive fiscal quarters, to reset the initial target distribution levels at higher levels based on our distributions at
the time of the exercise of the reset election. Following such a reset election, the minimum quarterly distribution will be adjusted to equal the reset minimum
quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels will be reset to correspondingly higher levels based on percentage increases above the reset minimum
quarterly distribution.
If the holder of our IDRs elects to reset the target distribution levels, it will be entitled to receive a number of common units. The number of common units to
be issued to the holder of our IDRs will equal the number of common units that would have entitled the holder of our IDRs to an aggregate quarterly cash
distribution in the prior quarter equal to the distributions to the holder of our IDRs on the IDRs in the prior quarter. It is possible that the holder of our IDRs
could exercise this reset election at a time when it is experiencing, or expects to experience, declines in the cash distributions that the holder of our IDRs
receives related to the IDRs and may, therefore, desire to be issued common units rather than retain the right to receive IDRs based on the initial target
distribution levels. This risk could be elevated if our IDRs are transferred to another party. As a result, a reset election may cause our common unitholders to
experience a reduction in the amount of cash distributions that our common unitholders would have otherwise received had we not issued new common units
to the holder of our IDRs in connection with resetting the target distribution levels.
Holders of our common units have limited voting rights and are not entitled to elect our General Partner or its directors, which could reduce the price at
which the common units will trade.
Unlike the holders of common stock in a corporation, unitholders have only limited voting rights on matters affecting our business and, therefore, limited
ability to influence management’s decisions regarding our business. Unitholders will have no right on an annual or ongoing basis to elect our General Partner
or its Board. The Board, including the independent directors, is chosen entirely by CST, as a result of its ownership of our General Partner, and not by our
unitholders. Unlike publicly traded corporations, we will not conduct annual meetings of our unitholders to elect directors or conduct other matters routinely
conducted at annual meetings of stockholders of corporations. As a result of these limitations, the price at which the common units will trade could be
diminished because of the absence or reduction of a takeover premium in the trading price.
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Even if holders of our common units are dissatisfied, they may not be able to remove our General Partner.
If our unitholders are dissatisfied with the performance of our General Partner, they will have limited ability to remove our General Partner. The vote of the
holders of at least 66 2 ⁄ 3 % of all outstanding common units voting together as a single class is required to remove our General Partner. As of February 24,
2017, CST owns approximately 19.8% of our outstanding common units. The Topper Group, including DMI, owns approximately 23.0% of our outstanding
common units. Pursuant to a voting agreement, dated October 1, 2014, the Topper Group agreed to vote such units in accordance with the recommendation of
the Board, allowing CST or Couche-Tard, as applicable, to effectively block the removal of the General Partner. The voting agreement will remain in effect so
long as Mr.Topper is a director or officer of our General Partner or the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding common units of the Partnership.
Our General Partner interest or the control of our General Partner may be transferred to a third party without unitholder consent.
Our General Partner may transfer its General Partner interest to a third party in a merger or in a sale of all or substantially all of its assets without the consent of
our unitholders. Furthermore, our Partnership Agreement does not restrict the ability of the members of our General Partner to transfer its membership interests
in our General Partner to a third party. The new members of our General Partner would then be in a position to replace the Board and executive officers of our
General Partner with their own designees and thereby exert significant control over the decisions taken by the Board and executive officers of our General
Partner. This effectively permits a “change of control” without the vote or consent of the unitholders. See “Upon the closing of the Merger, Couche-Tard will
control us, and may have conflicts of interest with us” above.
Our General Partner has a call right that may require unitholders to sell their common units at an undesirable time or price.
If at any time our General Partner and its affiliates hold more than 80% of the common units, our General Partner will have the right, but not the obligation,
which it may assign to any of its affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not less than all, of the common units held by unaffiliated persons at a price equal to the
greater of (1) the average of the daily closing price of the common units over the 20 trading days preceding the date three days before notice of exercise of the
call right is first mailed and (2) the highest per-unit price paid by our General Partner or any of its affiliates for common units during the 90-day period
preceding the date such notice is first mailed. As a result, unitholders may be required to sell their common units at an undesirable time or price and may not
receive any return or a negative return on their investment. Unitholders may also incur a tax liability upon a sale of their units. Our General Partner is not
obligated to obtain a fairness opinion regarding the value of the common units to be repurchased by it upon exercise of the call right. There is no restriction
in our Partnership Agreement that prevents our General Partner from issuing additional common units and exercising its call right. If our General Partner
exercised its call right, the effect would be to take us private and, if the units were subsequently deregistered, we would no longer be subject to the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act. As of December 31, 2016, the Topper Group, including DMI, owned approximately 23.0% of our outstanding common
units.
The market price of our common units could be adversely affected by sales of substantial amounts of our common units in the public or private markets,
including sales by the Topper Group, DMI or other large holders.
As of February 24, 2017, we had 33,524,952 common units outstanding. Sales by the Topper Group, DMI or other large holders such as CST or Couche-Tard,
as applicable, of a substantial number of our common units in the public markets, or the perception that such sales might occur, could have a material adverse
effect on the price of our common units or could impair our ability to obtain capital through an offering of equity securities. In addition, we have agreed to
provide registration rights to the Topper Group, including DMI. Under our Partnership Agreement and pursuant to a registration rights agreement that we
have entered into, the Topper Group and DMI have registration rights relating to the offer and sale of any units that they hold, subject to certain limitations.
We may issue unlimited additional units without unitholder approval, which would dilute existing unitholder ownership interests.
Our Partnership Agreement does not limit the number of additional limited partner interests, including limited partner interests that rank senior to the
common units that we may issue at any time without the approval of our unitholders. The issuance of additional common units or other equity interests of
equal or senior rank could have the following effects:
•

our existing unitholders’ proportionate ownership interest in us will decrease;

•

the amount of cash available for distribution on each unit may decrease;

•

the risk that a shortfall in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution will be borne by our common unitholders will increase;
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•

the ratio of taxable income to distributions may increase;

•

the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding unit may be diminished;

•

the claims of the common unitholders to our assets in the event of our liquidation may be subordinated; and

•

the market price of our common units may decline.

We are limited by the Merger Agreement in additional units we may issue until the closing of the Merger, which could limit our ability to raise capital for
acquisitions and expansion.
Our General Partner’s discretion in establishing cash reserves may reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to unitholders.
The Partnership Agreement requires our General Partner to deduct from operating surplus cash reserves that it determines are necessary to fund our future
operating expenditures. The General Partner may reduce cash available for distribution by establishing cash reserves for the proper conduct of our business,
to comply with applicable law or agreements to which we are a party or to provide funds for future distributions to partners. These cash reserves will affect the
amount of cash available for distribution to unitholders.
Our Partnership Agreement restricts the voting rights of unitholders owning 20% or more of our common units.
Our Partnership Agreement restricts unitholders’ voting rights by providing that any units held by a person or group that owns 20% or more of any class of
units then outstanding, other than our General Partner and its affiliates, their transferees and persons who acquired such units with the prior approval of the
Board, cannot vote on any matter.
Management fees and cost reimbursements due to our General Partner and CST for services provided to us or on our behalf will reduce cash available for
distribution to our unitholders. The amount and timing of such reimbursements will be determined by our General Partner.
Prior to making any distribution on our common units, we will pay CST the management fee and reimburse our General Partner and CST for all out-of-pocket
third-party expenses they incur and payments they make on our behalf. Our Partnership Agreement provides that our General Partner will determine in good
faith the expenses that are allocable to us. In addition, pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, CST will be entitled to reimbursement for certain
expenses that they incur on our behalf. Our Partnership Agreement does not limit the amount of expenses for which our General Partner and CST may be
reimbursed. The reimbursement of expenses and payment of fees, if any, to our General Partner and CST will reduce the amount of cash available to pay
distributions to our unitholders.
Unitholders may have liability to repay distributions and in certain circumstances may be personally liable for the obligations of the partnership.
Under certain circumstances, unitholders may have to repay amounts wrongfully returned or distributed to them. Under Section 17-607 of the Delaware
Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act (the “Delaware Act”), we may not make a distribution to our unitholders if the distribution would cause our
liabilities to exceed the fair value of our assets. Delaware law provides that for a period of three years from the date of the impermissible distribution, limited
partners who received the distribution and who knew at the time of the distribution that it violated Delaware law will be liable to the limited partnership for
the distribution amount. Liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests and liabilities that are non-recourse to the partnership are not counted
for purposes of determining whether a distribution is permitted.
It may be determined that the right, or the exercise of the right by the limited partners as a group, to (i) remove or replace our General Partner, (ii) approve
some amendments to our Partnership Agreement or (iii) take other action under our Partnership Agreement constitutes “participation in the control” of our
business. A limited partner that participates in the control of our business within the meaning of the Delaware Act may be held personally liable for our
obligations under the laws of Delaware, to the same extent as our General Partner. This liability would extend to persons who transact business with us under
the reasonable belief that the limited partner is a General Partner. Neither our Partnership Agreement nor the Delaware Act specifically provides for legal
recourse against our General Partner if a limited partner were to lose limited liability through any fault of our General Partner.
The NYSE does not require a publicly traded partnership like us to comply with certain of its corporate governance requirements.
Our common units are listed on the NYSE. Because we are a publicly traded partnership, the NYSE does not require us to have a majority of independent
directors on our General Partner’s board of directors. Additionally, the NYSE does not require us as a publicly traded partnership to maintain a compensation
committee or a nominating and corporate governance committee.
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Accordingly, unitholders will not have the same protections afforded to certain corporations that are subject to all of the NYSE corporate governance
requirements. Please read “Management—Management of CrossAmerica Partners LP.”
An increase in interest rates may cause the market price of our common units to decline and a significant increase in interest rates could adversely affect
our ability to service our indebtedness.
Like all equity investments, an investment in our common units is subject to certain risks. Borrowings under the credit facility will bear interest at variable
rates. If market interest rates increase, such variable-rate debt will create higher debt service requirements, which could adversely affect our cash flow and
ability to make cash distributions. In exchange for accepting these risks, investors may expect to receive a higher rate of return than would otherwise be
obtainable from lower-risk investments. Accordingly, as interest rates rise, the ability of investors to obtain higher risk-adjusted rates of return by purchasing
government-backed debt securities may cause a corresponding decline in demand for riskier investments generally, including yield-based equity investments
such as publicly traded limited partnership interests. Reduced demand for our common units resulting from investors seeking other more favorable
investment opportunities may cause the trading price of our common units to decline.
The interest rate on our credit facility is variable; therefore, we have exposure to movements in interest rates. A significant increase in interest rates could
adversely affect our ability to service our indebtedness. The increased cost could make the financing of our business activities more expensive. These added
expenses could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Tax Risks
Our tax treatment depends in large part on our status as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and our otherwise not being subject to a
material amount of U.S. federal, state and local income or franchise tax. If the IRS were to treat us as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes or
if we were to otherwise be subject to a material amount of additional entity level income, franchise or other taxation for U.S. federal, state or local tax
purposes, then our cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be substantially reduced.
The anticipated after-tax benefit of an investment in our common units depends largely on our being treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. A publicly traded partnership, such as us, may be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes unless 90% or more of its gross
income for every taxable year it is publicly traded consists of qualifying income. Based on our current operations we believe that we will be able to satisfy
this requirement and, thus, be able to be treated as a partnership, rather than a corporation, for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However, a change in our
business, or a change in current law, could also cause us to be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise subject us to entitylevel taxation.
If we were required to be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise subject to entity-level taxation, then we would pay U.S.
federal income tax on our taxable income at the corporate tax rate which, under current law, is a maximum of 35%. We would also likely pay state and local
income tax at varying rates. Distributions to our unitholders would generally be taxed again as either a dividend (to the extent of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits) and/or as taxable gain after recovery of a unitholder’s U.S. federal income tax basis in their units, and no income, gains,
losses, deductions or credits would flow through to our unitholders. Because a U.S. federal income tax would be imposed upon us as a corporation, our cash
available for distribution to our unitholders would be substantially reduced. Thus, treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction in the
anticipated cash flow and after-tax return to our unitholders, likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of our common units.
At the state level, were we to be subject to federal income tax, we would also be subject to the income tax provisions of many states. Moreover, because of
widespread state budget deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways to independently subject partnerships to entity-level taxation through
the imposition of state income taxes, franchise taxes and other forms of taxation. For example, we are required to pay Texas margin tax on our gross income
apportioned to Texas. Imposition of any additional such taxes on us or an increase in the existing tax rates would reduce the cash available for distribution to
our unitholders.
Our Partnership Agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that results in us becoming subject to either:
(a) entity-level taxation for U.S. federal, state, local and/or foreign income and/or withholding tax purposes to which we were not subject prior to such
enactment, modification or interpretation, and/or (b) an increased amount of one or more of such taxes (including as a result of an increase in tax rates), then
the minimum quarterly distribution amounts and the target distribution amounts may be adjusted (i.e., reduced) to reflect the impact of that law on us.
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We have subsidiaries that are treated as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes and are subject to entity-level U.S. federal, state and local
income and franchise tax.
We conduct a portion of our operations and business through one or more direct and indirect subsidiaries that are treated as corporations for federal income
tax purposes (including LGWS). We may elect to conduct additional operations through these corporate subsidiaries in the future. These corporate
subsidiaries are subject to corporate-level taxes, which reduce the cash available for distribution to us and, in turn, to unitholders. If the IRS were to
successfully assert that these corporations have more tax liability than we anticipate or legislation were enacted that increased the corporate tax rate, our cash
available for distribution to unit holders would be further reduced.
A significant amount of our income is attributable to our leasing of real property to DMS. If DMS were to become related to us for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, the real property rents that we receive from DMS would no longer constitute qualifying income and we would likely be treated as a corporation
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
A significant amount of our qualifying income is composed of real property rents from DMS attributable to the sites that DMS leases from us. In general, any
real property rents that we receive from a tenant or sub-tenant of ours in which we, directly or indirectly, own or are treated as owning by reason of the
application of certain constructive ownership rules: (a) at least 10% of such tenant’s or sub-tenant’s stock (voting power or value) in the case where such
tenant or sub-tenant is a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or (b) an interest of at least 10% of such tenant’s or sub-tenant’s assets or net profits
in the case where such tenant or sub-tenant is not a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes (as would be the case with respect to DMS), would not
constitute qualifying income. After applying certain constructive ownership rules, we will be treated as owning the 5% interest in the assets and net profits of
DMS that Joseph V. Topper, Jr. actually and constructively owns. If we were considered to directly or indirectly own an interest of 10% or more of the assets
or net profits of DMS, then the real property rents that we receive from DMS would no longer constitute qualifying income in which case, based on our
current operations, we would likely no longer qualify to be treated as a “partnership” (and instead would be treated as a corporation) for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.
Our and DMS’ governing documents contain transfer restrictions designed to prevent us from being treated as directly or indirectly owning by reason of the
application of constructive ownership rules an interest of 10% or more of DMS’ assets or net profits. We received an opinion of counsel at the closing of the
IPO that transfer restrictions are generally enforceable under Delaware law, but a court could determine that these restrictions are inapplicable or
unenforceable.
The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships or an investment in our common units could be subject to potential legislative, judicial or administrative
changes and differing interpretations, possibly on a retroactive basis.
The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including us, or of an investment in our common units may be modified by
administrative, legislative or judicial changes or differing interpretations at any time. For example, from time to time, members of Congress propose and
consider such substantive changes to the existing federal income tax laws that affect publicly traded partnerships. If successful, these proposals or other
similar proposals could eliminate the qualifying income exception upon which we rely for our treatment as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Any modification to the U.S. federal income tax laws may be applied retroactively and could make it more difficult or impossible for us to be treated as a
partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We are unable to predict whether any of these changes or other proposals will ultimately be enacted. Any
such changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in our common units.
If the IRS contests the U.S. federal income tax positions we take, the market for our common units may be adversely impacted and the costs of any contest
will reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders. We have not requested any ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a partnership
for U.S. federal income tax purposes or any other U.S. federal income tax matter affecting us. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from the positions we
take. It may be necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of the positions we take. A court may not agree with some or
all of the positions we take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for our common units and the price at which they trade.
In addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS, which will be borne indirectly by our unitholders and our General Partner, will result in a reduction in cash
available for distribution.
Our unitholders are required to pay taxes on their share of income from us even if they do not receive any cash distributions from us.
Our unitholders are required to pay U.S. federal income taxes and, in some cases, state and local taxes, on their allocable share of our taxable income and gain
even if they do not receive any cash distributions from us. Our unitholders may not receive cash distributions from us equal to their share of our taxable
income or even equal to the actual tax due with respect to that income.
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Tax gain or loss on the disposition of our common units could be more or less than expected.
If a unitholder sells common units, the unitholder will recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized and that unitholder’s tax
basis in those common units. Distributions per common unit in excess of a unitholder’s allocable share of our net taxable income result in a decrease in that
unitholder’s tax basis in its common units. The amount of this decreased tax basis, with respect to the units sold will, in effect, become taxable income to that
unitholder, if that unitholder sells such units at a price greater than that unitholder’s tax basis in those units, even if the sales price received is less than the
original cost. Furthermore, a substantial portion of the amount realized, whether or not representing gain, may be taxed as ordinary income due to potential
recapture of depreciation and amortization deductions and certain other items. In addition, because the amount realized includes a unitholder’s share of our
non-recourse liabilities, if a unitholder sells units, that unitholder may incur a tax liability in excess of the amount of cash received from the sale.
Tax-exempt organizations and non-U.S. persons face unique tax issues from owning common units that may result in adverse tax consequences to them.
Investment in our common units by an organization that is exempt from U.S. federal income tax, such as employee benefit plans, individual retirement
accounts, and non-U.S. persons raises issues unique to them. For example, a substantial amount of our U.S. federal taxable income and gain constitute gross
income from an unrelated trade or business and the amount thereof allocable to a tax-exempt organization would be taxable to such organization as unrelated
business taxable income. Distributions to a non-U.S. person that holds our common units will be reduced by U.S. federal withholding taxes imposed at the
highest applicable U.S. federal income tax rate and such non-U.S. person will be required to file U.S. federal income tax returns and pay U.S. federal income
tax, to the extent not previously withheld, on his, her or its allocable share of our taxable income and gain. Any tax-exempt organization or a non-U.S. person
should consult its tax advisor before investing in our common units.
Our unitholders are subject to state and local income taxes and return filing requirements in states and localities where they do not live as a result of
investing in our common units.
In addition to U.S. federal income taxes, our unitholders will likely be subject to other taxes, such as state and local income taxes, unincorporated business
taxes and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the various jurisdictions in which we do business or own property, even if they do not
live in any of those jurisdictions. Our unitholders will likely be required to file state and local income tax returns and pay state and local income taxes in
some or all of these various jurisdictions. Further, our unitholders may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. We currently
conduct business in Arizona, Arkansas, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Michigan, Minnesota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Tennessee,
Texas, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. Each of these states (other than Florida and Texas) currently imposes a personal income tax on individuals
(except that Tennessee only imposes a personal income tax on interest and dividends and New Hampshire only imposes a personal income tax on interest,
dividends and gambling winnings) as well as an income, business profits and/or a franchise tax on corporations and other entities. We may own property or
conduct business in other states, localities or foreign countries in the future. It is the responsibility of each unitholder to file all U.S. federal, state, local and
foreign tax returns. Our counsel has not rendered an opinion on the state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences of an investment in our common units.
We will treat each purchaser of our common units as having the same tax benefits without regard to the actual common units purchased. The IRS may
challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of the common units.
Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of common units, we will adopt depreciation and amortization positions that may not conform to all
aspects of existing Treasury Regulations. A successful IRS challenge to those positions could adversely affect the amount of U.S. federal income tax benefits
available to our unitholders. It also could affect the timing of these tax benefits or the amount of gain for U.S. federal income tax purposes from any sale of
common units and could have a negative impact on the value of our common units or result in audit adjustments to a unitholder’s U.S. federal income tax
returns.
We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and allocate them between transferors and transferees of
our common units each month based upon the ownership of our common units on the first business day of each month and as of the opening of the
applicable exchange on which our common units are listed, instead of on the basis of the date a particular common unit is transferred. The IRS may
challenge this treatment, which could change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss and deduction among our unitholders.
We generally prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and transferees of our common units each month based upon the
ownership of our common units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date a particular common unit is transferred. Although
simplifying conventions are contemplated by the Code and most publicly traded partnerships use similar simplifying conventions, the use of this method
may not be permitted under existing Treasury Regulations as there is
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no direct or indirect controlling authority on this issue. The Department of the Treasury and the IRS have issued Treasury Regulations that provide a safe
harbor pursuant to which a publicly traded partnership may use a similar monthly simplifying convention to allocate tax items among transferor and
transferee unitholders. The Treasury Regulations do not specifically authorize the use of the proration method we have adopted. If the IRS were to
successfully challenge our proration method, we may be required to change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss and deduction among our
unitholders.
If a unitholder loans their common units to a short seller to cover a short sale of common units, they may be considered to have disposed of those common
units for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If so, the unitholder would no longer be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a partner with respect to
those common units during the period of the loan and they may recognize gain or loss from such deemed disposition.
During the period of the loan of common units to the short seller, any of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect to such common units may not be
reportable by the respective unitholder, and any cash distributions received by the unitholder as to those common units could be fully taxable to them as
ordinary income. Our counsel has not rendered an opinion regarding the treatment of a unitholder where common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a
short sale of common units. Unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan of their common units are
urged to modify any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing their common units.
We have adopted certain valuation methodologies that may result in a shift of income, gain, loss and deduction between our General Partner and the
unitholders. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of the common units.
When we issue additional units or engage in certain other transactions, our General Partner will determine the fair market value of our assets and allocate any
unrealized gain or loss attributable to our assets to the capital accounts of our unitholders and our General Partner. Although we may from time to time
consult with professional appraisers regarding valuation matters, including the valuation of our assets, our General Partner will make many of the fair market
value determinations of our assets using a methodology based on the market value of our common units as a means to measure the fair market value of our
assets. Our methodology may be viewed as understating or overstating the value of our assets. In that case, there may be a shift of income, gain, loss and
deduction between certain unitholders and our General Partner, which may be unfavorable to such unitholders. The IRS may challenge our valuation
methods and allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction between our General Partner and certain of our unitholders.
A successful IRS challenge to these methods or allocations could adversely affect the amount of taxable income, gain or loss being allocated to our
unitholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes. It also could affect the amount of taxable gain from our unitholders’ sale of common units and could have a
negative impact on the value of the common units or result in audit adjustments to our unitholders’ U.S. federal income tax returns without the benefit of
additional deductions.
The sale or exchange of 50% or more of the total interest in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period will result in the termination of our
partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
We will be considered to have technically terminated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes if there is a sale or exchange of 50% or more of the
total interest in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. For purposes of determining whether a technical tax termination has occurred, a sale or
exchange of 50% or more of the total interest in our capital and profits could occur, if for example, when added to regular market trading, the Topper Group,
which owns collectively approximately 23.0% of the total interest in our capital and profits, were to sell or exchange their collective interest in us within a
period of twelve months. For purposes of determining whether the 50% threshold has been met, multiple sales of the same interest will be counted only once.
Our technical termination would, among other things, result in the closing of our taxable year for all unitholders, which could result in us filing two U.S.
federal income tax returns (and unitholders receiving two Schedule K-1s) for one calendar year. However, pursuant to an IRS relief procedure the IRS may
allow, among other things, a constructively terminated partnership to provide a single Schedule K-1 for the calendar year in which a termination occurs. Our
technical termination could also result in the re-starting of the recovery period for our assets (and, thus, result in a significant deferral of depreciation and
amortization deductions allowable in computing our U.S. federal taxable income). In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a calendar
year, the closing of our taxable year may also result in more than twelve months of our taxable income or loss being includable in his taxable income for the
year of termination. Our technical termination, however, would not affect our classification as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes but instead
we would be treated as a new partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If we were treated as a new partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we
would be required to make new tax elections and could be subject to penalties if we were unable to determine that a technical termination occurred.
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If the IRS were to contest the U.S. federal income tax positions we take, it may adversely impact the market for our common units, and the costs of any such
contest would reduce distributable cash flow to our unitholders.
As part of the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, legislation was passed requiring large partnerships to pay federal tax deficiencies at the partnership level,
unless the partnership elects to take into account any federal tax deficiency by including the adjustment in the Form K-1s of the partners in the year in which
the audit is completed. These rules differ from the current rules which require that the IRS to determine the deficiency at the partnership level, but collect the
tax deficiency directly from the partners who were partners in the partnership in the taxable year that was audited. The new rules are effective for our 2015
taxable year, but we may elect to apply the new rules to our 2016 or 2017 taxable yeas. We will evaluate the new audit rules and determine at a later date
whether or not to elect early application. We will also determine at a later date whether to pay the tax deficiency, if any, at the partnership level or to include
the adjustment in the Form K-1s of the partners.
PROPERTIES
The following table shows the aggregate number of sites we owned or leased by customer groups at December 31, 2016:
Owned
Sites
Lessee dealers
Independent dealers
CST
DMS
Commission agents
Company operated retail sites
Total

Leased
Sites

Total
Sites

Percentage of
Total Sites

227
—
74
90
45
65

241
—
—
78
55
11

468
—
74
168
100
76

53%
—
8%
19%
11%
9%

501

385

886

100%

We conduct business at sites located in Arizona, Arkansas, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin.
The following table provides a history of our sites acquired, changes between customer groups or sold during 2016:
Lessee
Dealers
Number at beginning of period
Acquired
Changes between customer groups
Sold
Other
Number at end of period (a)

CST

DMS

337
57
85
(4)
(7)

74
—
—
—
—

207
—
(33)
—
(6)

468

74

168

Commission Agents

Company
Operated

73
1
24
(1)
3
100

Total

116
37
(76)
—
(1)

807
95
—
(5)
(11)

76

886

(a) This amount excludes 403 independent dealer sites and includes 28 closed sites and 71 sites where CrossAmerica only collects rent.

Our principal executive offices are in Allentown, Pennsylvania in approximately 27,000 square feet of leased office space.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. These actions typically
seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury, breach of contract, property damages, environmental damages, employment-related
claims and damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive
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or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we record a reserve when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and
the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, we disclose matters for which management believes a material loss is at least reasonably possible.
None of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. In all instances, management has assessed the matter based on current information and made a judgment concerning its potential
outcome, giving due consideration to the nature of the claim, the amount and nature of damages sought and the probability of success. Management’s
judgment may prove materially inaccurate, and such judgment is made subject to the known uncertainties of litigation.
We are a co-defendant, together with our General Partner, CST and CST Services LLC, in a lawsuit brought by Charles Nifong, a former employee of CST
Services LLC who previously provided services to us as Chief Investment Officer and Vice President of Finance (Court of Common Pleas, Lehigh County,
Pennsylvania, case number 2015-1003). The plaintiff alleges breach of contract and associated claims relating to his termination of employment and claimed
severance benefits under the EICP totaling approximately $1.6 million. We intend to contest the action vigorously. Under the EICP, we are obligated to pay
reasonable legal expenses incurred by the plaintiff in connection with this dispute whether we are successful in our defense or not.
Additional information regarding legal proceedings is included in Note 16 to the financial statements.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
As of February 24, 2017, we had 33,524,952 common units outstanding, held by approximately 19 holders of record. Our common units are listed and trade
on the NYSE under the symbol “CAPL.” Included in the number of common units outstanding are 5,838,830 common units currently owned by CST, which
cannot be transferred absent registration with the SEC or an available exemption from the SEC’s registration requirements. See “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Unitholder Matters.”
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common units, as reported by the NYSE, and cash distributions
paid per common unit. The last reported sales price of our common units on the NYSE on February 24, 2017 was $26.38 per share.
Common Unit Price Range
High
2015
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
2016
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Low

Cash Distributions
Declared
Per Unit

$
$
$
$

40.87
35.89
31.49
27.69

$
$
$
$

32.03
26.70
20.00
21.31

$
$
$
$

0.5425
0.5475
0.5625
0.5775

$
$
$
$

26.65
25.50
26.95
27.91

$
$
$
$

17.39
22.50
23.01
24.07

$
$
$
$

0.5925
0.5975
0.6025
0.6075

Cash Distribution Policy
General
The Board has adopted a policy to make cash distributions per unit each quarter, in an amount determined by the Board following the end of such quarter. In
general, we expect that cash distributed for each quarter will equal cash generated from operations less cash needed for maintenance capital expenditures,
accrued but unpaid expenses (including the management fee to CST), reimbursement of expenses incurred by our General Partner, debt service and other
contractual obligations and reserves for future operating and capital needs or for future distributions to our partners. We expect that the Board will reserve
excess cash, from time to time, in an effort to sustain or permit gradual or consistent increases in quarterly distributions. Restrictions in our credit facility
could limit our ability to pay distributions upon the occurrence of certain events. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Credit Facility.” The Board may also determine to borrow to fund distributions in quarters
when we generate less cash available for distribution than necessary to sustain or grow our cash distributions per unit. The factors that we believe will be the
primary drivers of our cash generated from operations are changes in demand for motor fuels, the number of sites to which we distribute motor fuels, the
margin per gallon we are able to generate at such sites and the profitability of sites we own and lease.
Our cash distribution policy, established by our General Partner, is to distribute each quarter an amount at least equal to the minimum quarterly distribution
of $0.4375 per unit on all units ($1.75 per unit on an annualized basis). The distribution declared by the Board in January 2017 was $0.6125 per unit (or
$2.45 per unit on an annualized basis). Our General Partner may determine at any time that it is in the best interest of our Partnership to modify or revoke our
cash distribution policy. Modification of our cash distribution policy may result in distributions of amounts less than, or greater than, our minimum quarterly
distribution, and revocation of our cash distribution policy could result in no distributions at all. In addition, our credit facility includes certain restrictions
on our ability to make cash distributions.
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IDRs
IDRs represent the right to receive an increasing percentage (15.0%, 25.0% and 50.0%) of our quarterly distributions from operating surplus after the
minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels (as described under Minimum Quarterly Distribution below) have been achieved. CST holds
our IDRs and has the right to transfer these rights at any time. The distributions declared since March 2014 exceed the 15% threshold and the distributions
declared since June 2015 exceed the 25% threshold.
Minimum Quarterly Distribution
If cash distributions to our unitholders exceed $0.5031 per unit in any quarter, our unitholders and the holders of our IDRs, will receive distributions
according to the following percentage allocations:

Total Quarterly Distribution Per Common and Subordinated Unit

Marginal Percentage Interest in Distribution

Target Amount

Unitholders

above $0.5031 up to $0.5469
above $0.5469 up to $0.6563
above $0.6563

Holders of IDRs

85%
75%
50%

15%
25%
50%

Quarterly distribution activity during 2016 was as follows:

Quarter Ended
March 31, 2016
June 30, 2016
September 30, 2016
December 31, 2016

Record Date
February 12, 2016
May 19, 2016
August 8, 2016
November 4, 2016

Cash Distribution (per
unit)

Payment Date
February 24, 2016
May 31, 2016
August 15, 2016
November 15, 2016

$
$
$
$

0.5925
0.5975
0.6025
0.6075

Cash Distribution (in
millions)
$
$
$
$

19.6
19.9
20.1
20.4

We expect to continue the practice of paying quarterly cash distributions, though the timing, declaration, amount and payment of future distributions to
unitholders will fall within the discretion of the Board. Our indebtedness also restricts our ability to pay distributions. As such, there can be no assurance we
will continue to pay distributions in the future.
Subordination Period
On February 25, 2016, the subordination period under the Partnership Agreement ended. At that time, each outstanding subordinated unit converted into one
common unit and as such participates pro rata with the other common units in cash distributions.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
We issued an aggregate of 440,266 and 5,398,564 common units to CST in 2016 and 2015 as consideration for asset purchases and settlement of the
management fee. These units are restricted and cannot be transferred absent registration with the SEC or an available exemption from the SEC’s registration
requirements. These issuances were made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. See “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Unitholder Matters.”
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Common Unit Repurchase Program
On November 2, 2015, our Board approved a common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing us to repurchase up to an
aggregate of $25 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, we may make purchases in the
open market after November 9, 2015 in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan
under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The common unit repurchase program does
not require us to acquire any specific number of common units and may be suspended or terminated by us at any time without prior notice. The purchases will
not be made from any officer, director or control person of CrossAmerica or CST. The Merger Agreement prohibits us from making any further repurchases of
our common units. The following table shows the purchases made during the year ended December 31, 2016:
Total Number of
Units Purchased

Period
January 1 - March 31, 2016
April 1 - June 30, 2016
July 1 - September 30, 2016
October 1 - December 31, 2016
January 1 - December 31, 2016

Average Price Paid
per Unit

112,492
20,971
—
—

$
$
$
$

133,463

24.47
23.86
—
—

Total Cost of Units
Purchased

Amount Remaining
under the Program

$
$
$
$

2,752,240
500,413
—
—

$
$
$
$

18,644,689
18,144,276
18,144,276
18,144,276

$

3,252,653

$

18,144,276

CrossAmerica Common Unit Purchases by CST
On September 21, 2015, CST announced that the independent executive committee of its board of directors approved a unit purchase program under Rule
10b-18 of the Exchange Act, authorizing CST to purchase up to an aggregate of $50 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in
CrossAmerica. The unit purchase program does not have a fixed expiration date and may be modified, suspended or terminated at any time at CST’s
discretion. Through February 24, 2017, CST had purchased $19.8 million, or 804,667 common units, at an average price of $24.64 per common unit, which
cannot be transferred absent registration with the SEC or an available exemption from the SEC’s registration requirements. The Merger Agreement prohibits
CST from making any further purchases of CrossAmerica common units.
Management Fee Issuance
As approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of CST’s board of directors, the Partnership and CST
mutually agreed to settle, from time to time, a portion of the full amount due under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement in newly issued common
units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. These issuances of common units were made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. We issued the following common units to CST for the periods presented below under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement:

Quarter Ended
June 30, 2015
September 30, 2015
December 31, 2015
March 31, 2016
June 30, 2016
September 30, 2016
December 31, 2016

Date of Issuance
July 16, 2015
October 26, 2015
March 31, 2016
May 9, 2016
August 2, 2016
October 27, 2016
*

* Expected to be issued on February 28, 2017
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Number of Common Units Issued
145,056
114,256
145,137
83,218
101,087
110,824
171,039

ITEM 6. SELECTED HISTORICAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED AND CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected financial data reflect the operating data for the periods and as of the dates indicated. On October 30, 2012, we completed our IPO. At
the closing of our IPO, a portion of the business of our Predecessor and its subsidiaries and affiliates was contributed to us. As such, the results of our
Predecessor are not comparable to our results as certain assets were not contributed to us as they did not meet our strategic and geographic plan.
To ensure a full understanding, you should read the selected financial data presented below in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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The financial data below are presented in thousands.

Period from
October 31 to
December 31, 2012

Combined Lehigh
Gas Entities
(Predecessor)
Period from
January 1 to
October 30, 2012

$

$

Consolidated CrossAmerica Partners LP
For the Year Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

2013

Income Statement Data:
Total revenues (a)

$

1,869,806

$

2,226,271

$

2,664,868

$

1,936,059

311,774

32,171

26,017

8,640

30,177

881

10,715

11,462

(6,171)

18,070

(1,356)

10,704

11,441

(6,162)

18,070

(1,356)

1,573,502

Operating income
Income (loss) from
continuing operations
after income taxes
Net income (loss)
attributable to partners
Net income (loss) per
common and
subordinated unit-basic

15,148

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

$

1.18

$

(0.09)

n/a

Net income (loss) per
common and
subordinated unit-diluted

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

$

1.18

$

(0.09)

n/a

667

576

2,805
$

3,114

Operating Data:
Wholesale
Average motor fuel
distribution sites
Gallons of motor fuel
distributed (in millions) (b)

1,128

1,064

1,034.6

Motor fuel gross margin
Motor fuel gross margin per
gallon (c)

$

Rent income(a)

923

1,051.4

54,112

$

$

0.052

$

74,955

708

887.7

58,606

$

$

0.056

$

59,956

637.8

60,606

$

$

0.068

$

47,348

103.6

501.6

43,850

$

9,936

$

32,788

$

0.069

$

0.096

$

0.065

$

40,210

$

5,178

$

16,044

Retail
Average total system sites
Gallons of motor fuel
sold (in millions)
Motor fuel gross margin
per gallon
Merchandise gross margin
percentage
Other Financial Data
(unaudited)

$

157

202

119

21

n/a

n/a

159.7

211.2

136.5

20.2

n/a

n/a

0.032

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

0.053

$

24.6%

0.092

$

0.059

26.3%

$

30.6%

Adjusted EBITDA (d)

$

103,634

$

90,314

$

61,424

$

54,904

$

2,992

Distributable Cash Flow (d)
Distributions paid per
common unit

$

81,628

$

69,733

$

44,063

$

39,296

$

999

$

25,804
(e)

$

2.4000

$

2.2300

$

2.0800

$

1.7273

$

—

(e)

(a)

Prior to 2016, we netted lease executory costs such as real estate taxes, maintenance, and utilities that we paid and re-billed customers against rental income on our statement of
operations. During the first quarter of 2016, we began accounting for such amounts as rent income and operating expenses and reflected this change in presentation
retrospectively back through 2014. This change resulted in a $10.8 million and $8.9 million increase in rent and other income and operating expenses for the wholesale
segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We did not reflect this change in 2013 or 2012.

(b)

Excludes gallons of motor fuel distributed to sites classified as discontinued operations with respect to the periods presented for our Predecessor.
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(c)

Fuel margin per gallon represents (1) total revenues from motor fuel sales, less total cost of revenues from motor fuel sales, divided by (2) total gallons of motor fuel
distributed.

(d)

See reconciliation of non-GAAP measures under the heading “Management’s Discussion of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Results of Operations—NonGAAP Measures” below.

(e)

Results for these periods were not presented as these non-GAAP financial measures were not used at that time.

Consolidated CrossAmerica Partners LP
As of December 31,
2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets (a)
Total assets (a) (b)
Total current liabilities (a)
Long-term debt, excluding current portion (b)
Total liabilities (a) (b)
Total equity

$

$

1,350
65,407
931,989
75,133
465,119
711,178
220,811

$

1,192
58,119
861,444
74,898
403,714
592,588
268,856

$

$

$

15,170
76,805
598,446
95,222
226,815
407,955
190,491

$

$

4,115
35,496
391,621
38,857
173,509
296,950
94,671

$

$

4,768
22,974
317,851
32,153
183,751
303,306
14,545

(a) Balances as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were not retrospectively adjusted for the adoption of ASU 2015-17, which related to the presentation of deferred taxes.
(b) Balances as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were not retrospectively adjusted for the adoption of ASU 2015-03, which related to the presentation of deferred
financing costs.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
MD&A is organized as follows:
•

CST’s Merger Agreement—This section provides information on the pending Merger.

•

Significant Factors Affecting Our Profitability —This section describes the significant impact on our results of operations caused by crude oil
commodity price volatility, seasonality and acquisition and financing activities.

•

Results of Operations—This section provides an analysis of our results of operations, including the results of operations of our business
segments, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, an outlook for our business and non-GAAP financial measures.

•

Liquidity and Capital Resources—This section provides a discussion of our financial condition and cash flows. It also includes a discussion of
our debt, capital requirements and other matters impacting our liquidity and capital resources.

•

New Accounting Policies—This section describes new accounting pronouncements that we have already adopted, those that we are required to
adopt in the future, and those that became applicable in the current year as a result of new circumstances.

•

Critical Accounting Policies Involving Critical Accounting Estimates —This section describes the accounting policies and estimates that we
consider most important for our business and that require significant judgment.
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The following MD&A is intended to help the reader understand our results of operations and financial condition. This section is provided as a supplement to,
and should be read in conjunction with, Items 1., 1A. and 8. (which includes our consolidated financial statements) included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
CST’s Merger Agreement
Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Circle K Stores Inc. will, through its acquisition of CST, control CST’s interest in the General Partner and CST’s
19.8% limited partner interest in us as well as all of the IDRs. The transaction is subject to the receipt of regulatory approvals in the United States and
Canada. The transaction is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2017. See CST’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on October 11,
2016.
Significant Factors Affecting our Profitability
The Significance of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on Our Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
Wholesale segment
The prices paid to our motor fuel suppliers for wholesale motor fuel (which affects our cost of sales) are highly correlated to the price of crude oil. The crude
oil commodity markets are highly volatile, and the market prices of crude oil, and, correspondingly, the market prices of wholesale motor fuel, experience
significant and rapid fluctuations. We receive a fixed mark-up per gallon on approximately 87% of gallons sold to our customers. The remaining gallons are
primarily DTW priced contracts with our customers. These contracts provide for variable, market based pricing that results in motor fuel gross profit effects
similar to retail motor fuel gross profits (as crude oil prices decline, motor fuel gross profit generally increases, as discussed in our Retail segment below). The
increase in DTW gross profit results from the acquisition cost of wholesale motor fuel declining at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail motor fuel prices
decline. Conversely, our DTW motor fuel gross profit declines when the cost of wholesale motor fuel increases at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail
motor fuel prices increase.
Regarding our supplier relationships, a majority of our total gallons purchased are subject to discounts for prompt payment and other rebates and incentives,
which are recorded within cost of sales. Prompt payment discounts are based on a percentage of the purchase price of motor fuel. As such, the dollar value of
these discounts increase and decrease corresponding with motor fuel prices. Therefore, in periods of lower wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is
negatively affected and, in periods of higher wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is positively affected (as it relates to these discounts). Based on our
current volumes, we estimate a $10 per barrel change in the price of crude oil would impact our overall annual wholesale motor fuel gross profit by
approximately $2.2 million related to these payment discounts.
Retail segment
The prices we pay for wholesale motor fuel are closely correlated to the price of crude oil. The crude oil commodity markets are highly volatile, and the
market prices of crude oil and wholesale motor fuel experience significant and rapid fluctuations. We attempt to pass along wholesale motor fuel price
changes to our retail customers through “at the pump” retail price changes; however, market conditions do not always allow us to do so immediately. The
timing of any related increase or decrease in “at the pump” retail prices is affected by competitive conditions in each geographic market in which we operate.
As such, the prices we charge our customers for motor fuel and the gross profit we receive on our motor fuel sales can increase or decrease significantly and
rapidly over short periods of time.
Changes in our average motor fuel selling price per gallon and gross margin for the periods ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are directly related to the
changes in crude oil and wholesale motor fuel prices over the same period. Variations in our reported revenues and cost of sales are, therefore, primarily
related to the price of crude oil and wholesale motor fuel prices and generally not as a result of changes in motor fuel sales volumes, unless otherwise
indicated and discussed below.
We typically experience lower retail motor fuel gross profits in periods when the wholesale cost of motor fuel increases, and higher retail motor fuel gross
profits in periods when the wholesale cost of motor fuel declines rapidly.
Seasonality Effects on Volumes
Our business is subject to seasonality due to our wholesale and retail sites being located in certain geographic areas that are affected by seasonal weather and
temperature trends and associated changes in retail customer activity during different seasons. Historically, sales volumes have been highest in the second
and third quarters (during the summer months) and lowest during the winter months in the first and fourth quarters.
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Impact of Inflation
Inflation affects our financial performance by increasing certain of our operating expenses and cost of goods sold. Operating expenses include labor costs,
leases, and general and administrative expenses. While our Wholesale segment benefits from higher terms discount as a result of higher fuel costs, inflation
could negatively impact our Retail segment as a result of higher motor fuel, merchandise and operating costs. Although we have historically been able to
pass on increased costs through price increases, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so in the future.
Acquisition and Financing Activity
Our results of operations and financial condition are also impacted by our acquisition and financing activities as summarized below.
2016
•

On February 5, 2016, we purchased independent dealer and subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million. See Notes 3 and 15 of the notes to
the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

On March 29, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of Franchised Holiday Stores and company operated liquor stores from S/S/G Corporation for
approximately $52.4 million, including working capital. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
report for additional information.

•

On July 7, 2016, CST provided an $18.2 million refund payment to us related to our interest in CST Fuel Supply. See Note 15 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

On September 27, 2016, we acquired the State Oil Assets located in the greater Chicago market for approximately $41.9 million, including working
capital. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

On December 13, 2016, we amended our credit facility to provide additional flexibility to support achieving our growth strategy. See Note 12 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

On December 21, 2016, we sold the real property at 17 fee sites acquired in the State Oil Assets acquisition for $25.0 million in proceeds, which were
used to repay borrowings under the credit facility. We then leased these sites back under a triple net lease agreement. See Note 11 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

2015
•

In January 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply for aggregate consideration of 1.5 million
common units. See Notes 3 and 16 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

In January 2015, in connection with the joint acquisition by CST and the Partnership of 22 retail sites from Landmark, we acquired the real property
of the 22 fee sites for $41.2 million. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional
information.

•

In February 2015, we closed on the purchase of all of the outstanding capital stock of Erickson and certain related assets for an aggregate purchase
price of $83.8 million, including working capital. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report
for additional information.

•

In June 2015, we closed on the sale of 4.6 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $138.5 million. In July 2015, we closed on the
sale of an additional 0.2 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $6.4 million in accordance with the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional common units associated with the June offering. We used the proceeds to reduce indebtedness outstanding under our credit
facility. See Note 17 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 12.5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply for aggregate consideration of 3.3 million
common units and cash in the amount of $17.5 million. See Notes 3 and 16 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this report for additional information.
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•

In July 2015, we completed the purchase of real property at 29 NTIs from CST in exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately 0.3
million common units and cash in the amount of $124.4 million, with an aggregate consideration of $134.0 million on the date of closing. See Note
3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

•

In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of retail sites from One Stop and certain related assets for $45.0 million, including working capital. See Note
3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.

2014
•

In March 2014, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement. The amended and restated credit facility is a senior secured revolving
credit facility maturing March 4, 2019 with a total borrowing capacity of $550.0 million.

•

In April 2014, we acquired PMI for an aggregate purchase price of $73.5 million, including working capital, which resulted in the acquisition of 87
retail sites in Virginia and West Virginia.

•

In May 2014, we completed our acquisition of 52 wholesale supply contracts, one sub-wholesaler contract, five fee sites, six leasehold sites and
certain other assets from affiliates of Atlas Oil Company for an aggregate purchase price of $39.2 million, including working capital.

•

In September 2014, we issued 4.1 million common units resulting in net proceeds of $135.0 million. We used the proceeds to reduce indebtedness
outstanding under our credit facility.

•

On October 1, 2014, CST completed the GP Purchase and we entered into the Amended Omnibus Agreement.

•

In November 2014, in connection with the joint acquisition by CST and the Partnership of Nice N Easy, we acquired the real property and
underground storage tanks relating to 23 fee sites and the fuel distribution agreements with respect to 25 Nice N Easy retail sites for $53.8 million.
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Results of Operations
Consolidated Income Statement Analysis
Below is an analysis of our consolidated statements of operations and provides the primary reasons for significant increases and decreases in the various
income statement line items from period to period. Our consolidated statements of operations are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2016
Operating revenues
Cost of sales

$

2015

1,869,806
1,714,239

$

2014

2,226,271
2,056,807

$

2,664,868
2,539,967

155,567

169,464

124,901

16,048

10,528

—

Operating expenses

61,074

72,229

47,749

General and administrative expenses

24,156

36,238

36,880

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense

54,412

48,227

33,285

139,642

156,694

117,914

Gross profit
Income from CST Fuel Supply equity
Operating expenses:

Total operating expenses

198

2,719

1,653

Operating income

32,171

26,017

8,640

Other income, net

848

396

Gain on sales of assets, net

(22,757)

Interest expense

10,262

Income (loss) before income taxes
Consolidated net income (loss)
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income (loss) attributable to CrossAmerica limited
Partners
Distributions to CST as holder of the incentive
distribution rights
Net income (loss) available to CrossAmerica limited
Partners

$
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(16,631)

7,920

(7,525)

(3,542)

(1,354)

10,715

11,462

(6,171)

11

21

(9)

10,704

11,441

(6,162)

(3,392)

(1,390)

(453)

Income tax benefit

466

(18,493)

7,312

$

10,051

(245)
$

(6,407)

Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015
Consolidated Results
Operating revenues declined $356.5 million, or 16%, while gross profit declined $13.9 million, or 8%.
Operating revenues
Significant items impacting these results prior to the elimination of intercompany revenues were:
•

•

A $268.2 million, or 14%, decline in our Wholesale segment revenues primarily attributable to:
◦

A $254.2 million decline (95% of the total decline in Wholesale Segment operating revenues) attributable to a decrease in the wholesale
price of our motor fuel. The average daily spot price of West Texas Intermediate crude oil decreased 11% to $43.29 per barrel during 2016,
compared to $48.66 per barrel during 2015. The wholesale price of motor fuel is highly correlated to the price of crude oil.

◦

A $29.5 million decrease as a result of the divestiture of low margin wholesale fuel supply contracts and other assets acquired in the PMI
acquisition, partially offset by the impact of the Erickson, One Stop, Franchised Holiday Stores and State Oil Assets acquisitions.

◦

Partially offsetting this decline was a $15.0 million increase primarily related to rental income associated with the acquisition from CST of
NTI retail sites in July 2015 and the State Oil Assets acquisition as well as converting company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites.

A $205.2 million, or 31%, decline in our Retail segment revenues primarily attributable to:
◦

A decline of $44.6 million primarily attributable to a decrease in the retail price of our motor fuel driven by a decline in wholesale motor
fuel prices as noted above.

◦

A decrease of $124.0 million from a 24% decrease in motor fuel volumes sold related to the conversion of company operated retail sites to
lessee dealer sites during 2015 and 2016, partially offset by the incremental volume generated by the Franchised Holiday Stores
acquisition.

◦

A $36.6 million decline in our merchandise revenues attributable to the conversion of company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites
during 2015 and 2016, partially offset by the incremental merchandise revenues generated by the Franchised Holiday Stores acquisition.

Intersegment revenues
We present the results of operations of our segments consistently with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consist of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). As a result, in order to reconcile to our
consolidated change in operating revenues, a discussion of the change in intersegment revenues is included in our consolidated MD&A discussion.
•

Our intersegment revenues decreased $116.9 million, primarily attributable to the declines in price and volume discussed above.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales declined $342.6 million as a result of the decline in the wholesale price and gallons sold of motor fuel as noted above. See “Results of
Operations—Segment Results” for additional gross profit analyses.
Income from CST Fuel Supply equity
See “Results of Operations—Segment Results—Wholesale” for discussion.
Operating expenses
See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional operating expenses analyses.
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General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses declined $12.1 million primarily attributable to the integration of prior year acquisitions and other cost savings
initiatives, which reduced expenses by approximately $9.9 million. Additionally, equity-based compensation expense decreased $1.2 million as a result of
less equity awards being granted in 2016 as compared to 2015.
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense increased $6.2 million primarily driven by our 2015 and 2016 acquisitions.
Interest expense
Interest expense increased $4.3 million due to additional borrowings during 2015 and 2016 to fund acquisitions.
Income tax benefit
We recorded income tax benefits of $0.5 million and $3.5 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively. The decrease in the income tax benefit was primarily due
to a decrease in the loss generated by our corporate subsidiaries. In addition, we recorded a reduction in the valuation allowance of $0.2 million during 2015.
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Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014
Consolidated Results
Operating revenues declined $438.6 million, or 16%, while gross profit increased $44.6 million, or 36%.
Operating revenues
Significant items impacting these results prior to the elimination of intercompany revenues were:
•

•

A $443.7 million, or 19%, decline in our Wholesale segment primarily attributable to:
◦

An $879.7 million decline attributable to a decrease in the wholesale price of our motor fuel. The average daily spot price of WTI crude oil
decreased 48% to $48.66 per barrel for 2015, compared to $93.17 per barrel for 2014. The wholesale price of motor fuel is highly correlated
to the price of crude oil.

◦

Partially offsetting this decline was a $423.7 million increase primarily related to an 18.4% increase in volume from our 2014 and 2015
acquisitions.

◦

Other revenues increased $13.0 million driven by additional rental income from the Nice N Easy, Landmark and NTI acquisitions, as well as
our company operated retail sites being converted to lessee dealer sites during 2015.

A $160.1 million, or 31%, increase in our Retail segment primarily attributable to:
◦

An increase of $242.5 million from a 55% increase in motor fuel volumes sold related to the Erickson and One Stop acquisitions.

◦

A $101.1 million increase in our merchandise revenues attributable to retail site operations from our 2014 and 2015 acquisitions.

◦

Partially offsetting these revenue increases was a decline of $183.5 million primarily attributable to a decrease in the retail price of our
motor fuel driven by a decline in wholesale motor fuel prices as noted above, as well as converting company operated retail sites to
independent dealer sites.

Intersegment revenues
We present the results of operations of our segments consistently with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consist of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). As a result, in order to reconcile to our
consolidated change in operating revenues, a discussion of the change in intersegment revenues is included in our consolidated MD&A discussion.
•

Our intersegment revenues increased $155.0 million, primarily attributable to an increase in our Wholesale segment selling motor fuel to the retail
sites acquired in the One Stop and the Erickson acquisitions, which are included in our Retail segment.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales declined $483.2 million, primarily from the decline in wholesale gasoline prices, which were partially offset by an increase in volumes
purchased by our 2014 and 2015 acquisitions. See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional gross profit analyses.
Income from CST Fuel Supply
See “Results of Operations—Segment Results—Wholesale” for discussion.
Operating expenses
See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional operating expenses analyses.
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General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses declined $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the prior year, primarily attributable to a $6.8
million decrease in stock based compensation related to the accelerated vesting as a result of the GP Purchase in 2014. This decrease was offset by higher
costs associated with the Erickson and One Stop acquisitions in 2015.
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense increased $14.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year, primarily driven
by our 2014 and 2015 acquisitions.
Gains on sales of assets, net
Gains on sales of assets, net, increased $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the prior year. The net gain recognized for the year
ended December 31, 2015 primarily related to the sale of individual sites and the divestiture of certain assets acquired in the PMI acquisition.
Income tax benefit
The income tax benefit increased from $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 to $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The income
tax benefit for both periods was due primarily to losses reported by LGWS.
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Segment Results
We present the results of operations of our segments consistent with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consist of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). These comparisons are not necessarily
indicative of future results.
Wholesale
The following table highlights the results of operations and certain operating metrics of our Wholesale segment. The narrative following these tables
provides an analysis of the results of operations of that segment (thousands of dollars, except for the number of distribution sites and per gallon amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Gross profit:
Motor fuel–third party
Motor fuel–intersegment and related party

$

Motor fuel gross profit
Rent and other(a)
Total gross profit
Income from CST Fuel Supply equity (b)
Operating expenses(a)
$

Adjusted EBITDA(c)

2015

29,242
24,870

$

2014

29,377
29,229

$

31,193
29,413

54,112
58,672

58,606
45,757

60,606
34,321

112,784

104,363

94,927

16,048
(25,956)

10,528
(26,091)

102,876

$

88,800

—
(24,915)
$

70,012

Motor fuel distribution sites (end of period):(d)
Motor fuel–third party
Independent dealers(e)
Lessee dealers(f)
Total motor fuel distribution–third party sites
Motor fuel–intersegment and related party
DMS (related party)(g)
CST (related party)
Commission agents (Retail segment)(h)
Company operated retail sites (Retail segment)(i)
Total motor fuel distribution–intersegment and
related party sites

403
420

370
290

416
205

823

660

621

153
43
95
73

191
43
66
115

197
21
75
87

364

415

380

749

626

565

379

438

358

Motor fuel distribution sites (average during the period):
Motor fuel-third party distribution
Motor fuel-intersegment and related party
distribution
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Year Ended December 31,
2016
Total volume of gallons distributed (in thousands)

2015

2014

1,034,585

1,051,357

887,677

Motor fuel gallons distributed per site per day:(j)
Motor fuel–third party
Total weighted average motor fuel distributed–
third party
Independent dealers
Lessee dealers

2,204
2,363
2,033

2,422
2,733
1,926

2,391
2,656
1,924

Motor fuel–intersegment and related party
Total weighted average motor fuel distributed–
intersegment and related party
DMS (related party)
CST (related party)
Commission agents (Retail segment)
Company operated retail sites (Retail segment)

2,914
2,496
5,013
2,932
2,723

2,899
2,486
5,032
2,909
2,824

2,657
2,607
3,832
3,101
2,271

Wholesale margin per gallon–total system
Wholesale margin per gallon–third party sites(k)
Wholesale margin per gallon–intersegment and
related party

$
$

0.052
0.046

$
$

0.056
0.050

$
$

0.068
0.058

$

0.062

$

0.063

$

0.085

(a) Prior to 2016, we netted lease executory costs such as real estate taxes, maintenance, and utilities that we paid and re-billed to customers on our statement of operations. During
the first quarter of 2016, we began accounting for such amounts as rent income and operating expenses and reflected this change in presentation retrospectively. This change
resulted in a $10.8 million and $8.9 million increase in rent and other income and operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
(b) Represents income from our equity interest in CST Fuel Supply.
(c) Please see the reconciliation of our segment’s Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated net income under the heading “Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”
(d) In addition, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we distributed motor fuel to 14 and 17 sub-wholesalers who distributed to additional sites.
(e) The increase in the independent dealer site count was primarily attributable to 21 independent dealer contracts assigned to us by CST and 25 wholesale fuel supply contracts
acquired in the State Oil Assets acquisition, partially offset by a net 13 terminated motor fuel supply contracts that were not renewed.
(f)

The increase in the lessee dealer site count was primarily attributable to converting 77 company operated retail sites in our Retail segment to lessee dealers in our Wholesale
segment in 2016 and the 49 sites acquired in the September 2016 State Oil Assets acquisition.
(g) The decrease in the DMS site count was primarily due to sites converted to a third party lessee dealer or commission agent. Through the first five years of the lease with DMS,
the lease agreement allows for a limited number of sites to be removed from the lease by each of DMS and us. This right generally expires October 31, 2017.
(h) The increase in the commission agent site count was primarily attributable to 25 DMS sites being converted to commission agent sites in 2016.
(i)

The decrease in the company operated retail site count was primarily attributable to 77 company operated retail sites being converted to lessee dealer sites in 2016, partially
offset by the 31 Franchised Holiday Stores.

(j)

Does not include the motor fuel gallons distributed to sub-wholesalers. The decrease in independent dealer gallons sold per day are due to the divestiture of commercial
wholesale supply contracts associated with the PMI acquisition, whereby gallons distributed are reduced but the site count is not affected.

(k) Includes the wholesale gross margin for motor fuel distributed to sub-wholesalers.
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Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015
The results were driven by:
Motor Fuel Gross profit
The $4.5 million decrease in motor fuel gross profit was due to a $3.6 million decline primarily from decreased payment discounts and incentives due to the
decline in motor fuel prices as a result of the decrease in crude oil and the remaining decline was primarily due to a decline in motor fuel gallons sold due to
the termination of commercial wholesale fuel supply contracts and disposing certain terminal assets acquired in the PMI acquisition, partially offset by the
impact of the Erickson, One Stop, Franchised Holiday Stores and State Oil Assets acquisitions. The average daily spot price of West Texas Intermediate crude
oil decreased 11% to $43.29 per barrel during 2016, compared to $48.66 during 2015. See “Significant Factors Affecting our Profitability—The Significance
of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on Our Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit.”
Rent and other gross profit
Rent and other margin increased $12.9 million primarily as a result of our acquisition from CST of NTI retail sites in July 2015 and the State Oil Assets
acquisition in September 2016, as well as converting company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites.
Income from CST Fuel Supply equity
Income from our investment in CST Fuel Supply increased $5.5 million as a result of the additional 12.5% equity interest we acquired in July 2015, partially
offset by CST’s sale of its California and Wyoming retail sites.
Operating expenses
Operating expenses decreased $0.1 million primarily from a $5.2 million cost savings associated with disposing of certain transportation and terminal assets
acquired in the PMI acquisition, partially offset by an increase in operating expenses driven by our acquisitions.

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014
The results were driven by:
Motor Fuel Gross profit
•

The decrease in gross profit was due to a decline of $13.2 million in our motor fuel gross profit primarily attributable to a decline in our payment
discounts and incentives, which are discussed under the heading “The Significance of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on Our Revenues,
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit” partially offset by an $11.1 million increase primarily attributable to an increase in motor fuel volume.

Rent and other gross profit
•

Rent and other margin increased $11.4 million primarily from our acquisitions, including the acquisition and leaseback of NTIs with CST, as well as
converting company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites.

Income from CST Fuel Supply
•

We recorded $10.5 million of income from our investment in CST Fuel Supply, which we acquired in January (5%) and July (12.5%) of 2015.

Operating expenses
•

Operating expenses increased $1.2 million primarily as a result of incremental operating expenses from our 2014 and 2015 acquisitions, partially
offset by the divestiture of certain PMI assets during 2015.
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Retail
The following table highlights the results of operations and certain operating metrics of our Retail segment. The narrative following these tables provides an
analysis of the results of operations of that segment (thousands of dollars, except for the number of retail sites and per gallon amounts):
Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Gross profit:
Motor fuel

$

Merchandise and services
Other
Total gross profit
Operating expenses
Acquisition-related costs
Inventory fair value adjustments(a)
$

Adjusted EBITDA(b)

8,538

$

19,444

$

8,088

30,068

41,690

4,073

4,014

17,598
4,394

42,679

65,148

30,080

(35,118)

(46,138)

(22,834)

212

—

—

91

1,356

1,483

7,864

$

20,366

$

8,729

Retail sites (end of period):
Commission agents(c)
Company operated retail

sites(d)

Total system sites at the end of the period
Total system operating statistics:
Average retail sites during the period (c)(d)
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
fees and commissions
Commission agents statistics:
Average retail sites during the period (c)
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
fees and commissions
Company operated retail site statistics:
Average retail sites during the period (d)
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
fees
Merchandise and services sales (per site per day)(e)
Merchandise and services gross profit percentage,
net of credit card fees

$

95

66

76

116

87

171

182

162

157
2,780

202
2,862

119
3,148

0.053

$

71
2,875
$

0.018

0.085
3,790
24.6%

0.092

$

70
2,957
$

86
2,701
$
$

75

0.023

64
3,086
$

132
2,812
$
$

0.130
3,345
26.3%

0.059

0.003
54
3,221

$
$

0.123
2,902
30.6%

(a) The inventory fair value adjustments represent the write-offs of the step-up in value ascribed to inventory acquired in the Franchised Holiday Stores acquisition for 2016, the
Erickson and One Stop acquisitions for 2015, and the PMI acquisition for 2014.
(b) Please see the reconciliation of our segment’s Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated net income under the heading “Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures”
below.
(c) The increase in the commission agent site count was primarily attributable to 25 DMS sites being converted to commission agent sites in 2016.
(d) The decrease in retail sites relates to the conversion of 77 company operated retail sites to lessee dealer in 2016, partially offset by the 34 Franchised Holiday Stores acquired in
2016.
(e) Includes the results from car wash sales and commissions from lottery, money orders, air/water/vacuum services and ATM fees.
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Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015
Gross profit declined $22.5 million, while operating expenses declined $11.0 million.
These results were impacted by:
Gross profit
•

Our motor fuel gross profit decreased $10.9 million attributable to a 24% decrease in volume driven by the conversion of company operated retail
sites acquired in prior acquisitions to lessee dealer sites during 2015 and 2016 and a 42% decrease in margin per gallon as a result of crude oil prices
being more volatile during the second half of 2015 than the second half of 2016 and the resulting impact on our motor fuel gross margin. The daily
spot price of WTI crude oil decreased approximately 35% during the last six months of 2015 compared to an increase of approximately 10% during
the same period of 2016. See “Significant Factors Affecting our Profitability—The Significance of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on
Our Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit.”

•

Our merchandise and services gross profit declined $11.6 million as a result of the conversion of company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites
in 2015 and 2016, partially offset by the incremental gross profit generated by the Franchised Holiday Stores acquisition. The decline in our
merchandise gross profit percentage was the result of low gross margin items, such as cigarettes, comprising a higher percentage of our merchandise
sales as a result of the change in product mix of our stores following our 2015 acquisitions and conversion of company operated retail sites to lessee
dealer sites.

Operating expenses
•

An $11.0 million decline in operating expenses attributable to the conversion of company operated retail sites to lessee dealer sites, partially offset
by the impact of the Erickson, One Stop and Franchised Holiday Stores acquisitions.

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014
Gross profit increased $35.1 million, while operating expenses increased $23.3 million.
These results were driven by:
Gross profit
•

An $11.4 million increase in our motor fuel gross profit due to an increase in our cents per gallon gross profit associated with the lower wholesale
cost of motor fuel and higher volumes associated with our acquisitions.

•

Our merchandise gross profit increased $24.1 million attributable to our acquisitions, while our merchandise gross profit percentage declined. The
decline in our merchandise gross profit percentage was the result of low gross margin items, such as cigarettes, comprising a higher percentage of our
merchandise sales as a result of our 2015 acquisitions. Additionally, we converted 52 company operated retail sites acquired in the PMI acquisition
to lessee dealer sites during 2015, and these sites generally had a higher gross profit product mix.

Operating expenses
•

A $23.3 million increase in operating expenses attributable to our acquisitions.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures
We use non-GAAP financial measures EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage Ratio. EBITDA represents net income
available to us before deducting interest expense, income taxes and depreciation, amortization and accretion. Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA as
further adjusted to exclude equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation and the Amended Omnibus Agreement, gains or losses on sales of
assets, certain discrete acquisition related costs, such as legal and other professional fees and severance expenses associated with recently acquired
companies, and certain other discrete non-cash items arising from purchase accounting. Distributable Cash Flow represents Adjusted EBITDA less cash
interest expense, sustaining capital expenditures and current income tax expense. Distribution Coverage Ratio is computed by dividing Distributable Cash
Flow by the weighted average diluted common and subordinated units and then dividing that result by the distributions paid per limited partner unit.
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage Ratio are used as supplemental financial measures by management and by
external users of our financial statements, such as investors and lenders. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are used to assess our financial performance without
regard to financing methods, capital structure or income taxes and the ability to incur and service debt and to fund capital expenditures. In addition, Adjusted
EBITDA is used to assess the operating performance of our business on a consistent basis by excluding the impact of items which do not result directly from
the wholesale distribution of motor fuel, the leasing of real property, or the day to day operations of our retail site activities. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA,
Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage Ratio are also used to assess the ability to generate cash sufficient to make distributions to our unitholders.
We believe the presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage Ratio provides useful information to
investors in assessing the financial condition and results of operations. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage
Ratio should not be considered alternatives to net income or any other measure of financial performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage Ratio have important limitations as analytical tools because they
exclude some but not all items that affect net income. Additionally, because EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash Flow and Distribution Coverage
Ratio may be defined differently by other companies in our industry, our definitions may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies,
thereby diminishing their utility.
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The following table presents reconciliations of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow to net income, the most directly comparable U.S.
GAAP financial measure, for each of the periods indicated (in thousands, except for per unit amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Net income (loss) available to CrossAmerica limited partners

$

Interest expense
Income tax (benefit)
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
EBITDA

7,312
22,757
(453)
54,412

2015
$

10,051
18,493
(3,542)
48,227

2014
$

(6,407)
16,631
(1,354)
33,285

84,028

73,229

42,155

16,060

14,036

11,958

(2,719)
4,412
—
1,356

(1,653)
7,481
—
1,483

90,314

61,424

(20,974)

(16,689)

(13,851)

Sustaining capital expenditures(c)

(798)

(1,318)

(3,104)

Current income tax expense

(234)

(2,574)

(406)

Equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation and the
Amended Omnibus Agreement (a)
Gain on sales of assets, net

(198)
3,318
335
91

Acquisition-related costs(b)
Working capital adjustment
Inventory fair value adjustments
Adjusted EBITDA

103,634

Cash interest expense

Distributable Cash Flow

$

Weighted average diluted common and subordinated units

Distributions paid per limited partner unit (d)
Distribution coverage

ratio (e)

81,628

$

33,367

$

2.40
1.02x

69,733

$

29,086

$

2.23
1.08x

44,063

19,934(f)

$

2.08
1.06x

(a) As approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of CST and its board of directors, the Partnership and CST mutually agreed to
settle certain amounts due under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement in limited partnership units of the Partnership.
(b) Relates to certain discrete acquisition related costs, such as legal and other professional fees, severance expenses and purchase accounting adjustments associated with recently
acquired businesses.
(c) Under the First Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement of CrossAmerica, as amended, sustaining capital expenditures are capital expenditures made to maintain our
long-term operating income or operating capacity. Examples of sustaining capital expenditures are those made to maintain existing contract volumes, including payments to
renew existing distribution contracts, or to maintain our sites in conditions suitable to lease, such as parking lot or roof replacement/renovation, or to replace equipment
required to operate the existing business.
(d) On January 26, 2017, the Board approved a quarterly distribution of $0.6125 per unit attributable to the fourth quarter of 2016. The distribution is payable on February 13,
2017 to all unitholders of record on February 6, 2017.
(e) The distribution coverage ratio is computed by dividing Distributable Cash Flow by the weighted average diluted common and subordinated units and then dividing that result
by the distributions paid per limited partner unit.
(f)

Amount includes approximately 6,000 diluted units that are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per unit on the face of the income statement because to do so
would be anti-dilutive.
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The following table reconciles our segment Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA presented in the table above (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Adjusted EBITDA - Wholesale segment

$

Adjusted EBITDA - Retail segment

102,876

2015
$

7,864

Adjusted EBITDA - Total segment

$

110,740

2014

88,800

$

20,366
$

109,166

70,012
8,729

$

78,741

Reconciling items:
Elimination of intersegment profit in ending inventory
balance

104

General and administrative expenses

(24,156)

Other income, net
Equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation
and the Amended Omnibus Agreement
Working capital adjustment
Acquisition-related costs
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
IDR distributions
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA

$

53

(47)

(106)

(36,238)

(36,880)

848

396

466

16,060

14,036

11,958

335

—

—

3,106

4,412

7,481

(11)

(21)

(3,392)

(1,390)

103,634

$

90,314

9
(245)
$

61,424

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity
Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance our operations, fund acquisitions, service our debt and pay distributions to our unitholders and IDR
distributions. We expect our ongoing sources of liquidity to include cash generated by our operations and borrowings under the revolving credit facility and,
if available to us on acceptable terms, issuances of equity and debt securities. We regularly evaluate alternate sources of capital, including sale-leaseback
financing of real property with third parties, to support our liquidity requirements.
Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures, acquisitions, and partnership distributions,
will depend on our future operating performance, which, in turn, will be subject to general economic, financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory
and other conditions, many of which are beyond our control. As a normal part of our business, depending on market conditions, we will, from time to time,
consider opportunities to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtedness. Changes in our operating plans, lower than anticipated sales, increased
expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity financing in future periods.
We believe that we will have sufficient cash flow from operations, borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility and access to capital markets and
alternate sources of funding to meet our financial commitments, debt service obligations, contingencies, anticipated capital expenditures, and partnership
distributions. However, we are subject to business and operational risks that could adversely affect our cash flow. A material decrease in our cash flows would
likely produce an adverse effect on our borrowing capacity as well as our ability to issue additional equity and/or debt securities.
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes cash flow activity (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2016
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

$

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

$

2015
79,440

$

(96,906) $
17,624

$

2014
64,487

$

(311,518) $
233,053

$

28,531
(156,150)
138,674

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $15.0 million in 2016 compared to 2015, driven primarily by incremental cash flow generated by our
acquisitions. In addition, we settled $3.2 million more in management fees in equity with CST in 2016 compared to 2015.
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $36.0 million in 2015 compared to 2014, driven by incremental cash flow generated by our acquisitions.
In addition, we settled $8.9 million in management fees in equity in 2015 whereas all management fees were paid in cash in 2014.
Investing Activities
During 2016, $94.2 million of cash was used in the Franchised Holiday Stores and State Oil Assets acquisitions and $2.9 million for independent dealer and
subwholesaler contracts purchased from CST. We also incurred $20.8 million of capital expenditures and received $17.5 million in proceeds from the refund
payment related to CST's sale of the California and Wyoming assets. See Note 15 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.
During 2015, $167.8 million of cash was used in the Landmark, Erickson and One Stop acquisitions and $141.9 million on the acquisitions of CST’s NTIs
and CST Fuel Supply equity interests. We also had $10.2 million in capital expenditures.
During 2014, $163.6 million of cash was used in the PMI, Atlas and Nice N Easy acquisitions and $14.0 million in capital expenditures. We received $15.7
million in proceeds on our sales of the lubricant business acquired as part of the PMI acquisition and the wholesale fuel supply contracts to DMI.
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Financing Activities
During 2016, we paid $83.6 million in distributions and purchased $3.3 million in common units under our common unit purchase program. We received
$25.0 million in proceeds on the sale-leaseback transaction and had $83.1 million in net borrowings under our credit facility to fund our acquisitions.
During 2015, we received $144.9 million in net proceeds on equity offerings and $158.0 million in net borrowings under our credit facility to fund our
acquisitions. We paid $66.1 million in distributions and purchased $3.6 million in common units under our common unit purchase program.
During 2014, we received $135.0 million in net proceeds on equity offerings and $54.1 million in net borrowings under our credit facility to fund our
acquisitions. We also paid $41.5 million in distributions.
Refund payment related to CST sale of California and Wyoming assets
On July 7, 2016, as approved by the independent executive committee of the board of directors of CST, CST provided a refund payment to the purchase price
paid by us for our interest in CST Fuel Supply. The total refund payment received by us was approximately $18.2 million. See Note 15 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Distributions
Distribution activity for 2016 was as follows:
Quarter Ended
December 31, 2015
March 31, 2016
June 30, 2016
September 30, 2016
December 31, 2016

Record Date
February 12, 2016
May 19, 2016
August 8, 2016
November 4, 2016
February 6, 2017

Cash Distribution (per
unit)

Payment Date
February 24, 2016
May 31, 2016
August 15, 2016
November 15, 2016
February 13, 2017

$
$
$
$
$

0.5925
0.5975
0.6025
0.6075
0.6125

Cash Distribution (in
thousands)
$
$
$
$
$

19,618
19,910
20,125
20,359
20,534

IDRs
During 2016 and 2015, we distributed $3.4 million and $1.4 million to CST with respect to the IDRs.
Expiration of the Subordination Period
In accordance with the terms of the Partnership Agreement, on February 25, 2016, the first business day after the payment of the fourth quarter 2015
distribution of $0.5925 per unit, the subordination period under the Partnership Agreement ended. At that time, each of the 7,525,000 outstanding
subordinated units converted into one common unit and now participate in distributions pro rata with other common units.
Debt
As of December 31, 2016, our consolidated debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following (in thousands):
$550 million revolving credit facility

$

Note payable

441,500
822

Capital lease obligations

28,455

Total debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion

470,777
2,100

Noncurrent portion
Deferred financing fees

468,677
(3,558)
$

Total

465,119

Our revolving credit facility is secured by substantially all of our assets. Our borrowings under the revolving credit facility had a weighted-average interest
rate of 3.53% as of December 31, 2016 (LIBOR plus an applicable margin, which was 3.25% as of December 31, 2016). Letters of credit outstanding at
December 31, 2016 totaled $6.5 million. The credit facility is secured by
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substantially all of the assets of CrossAmerica and its subsidiaries. The amount of availability under the revolving credit facility at February 24, 2017, was
$84.2 million. In connection with future acquisitions, the revolving credit facility requires, among other things, that we have, after giving effect to such
acquisition, at least, in the aggregate, $20 million of borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash on the balance sheet on
the date of such acquisition. We are required to maintain a total leverage ratio (as defined in the revolving credit facility) for the most recently completed four
fiscal quarters of less than or equal to 4.50 : 1.00, except for the first three full fiscal quarters following a material acquisition with a ratio of 5.00 : 1.00, and a
consolidated interest coverage ratio (as defined in the revolving credit facility) of greater than or equal to 2.75 : 1.00. As of December 31, 2016, we were in
compliance with these financial covenant ratios. The computation of our total leverage ratio allows for a pro forma application of the EBITDA (as defined in
the revolving credit facility) of acquired entities and was 4.16 : 1.00 as of December 31, 2016.
In December 2016, the credit facility was amended as summarized below:
•

Modified certain terms to permit the acquisition of the Partnership’s general partner indirectly by Couche-Tard;

•

Reduced the threshold for qualifying as a “material acquisition” from $50 million to $30 million;

•

Extended the time period from two to three quarters that the leverage ratio following a material acquisition can be 5.00 : 1.00;

•

Created further flexibility to conduct sale leaseback transactions;

•

Increased swing-line loan capacity from $10 million to $25 million; and

•

Certain other operational and technical amendments.

Renegotiation of Rocky Top Purchase Obligation
In connection with the Rocky Top acquisition that we completed in September 2013, we entered into a deferred seller financing arrangement, which
obligated us to purchase certain sites over a 5-year period for an average $5.2 million per year beginning in 2016 at an approximately 7.7% capitalization
rate. In June 2016, we renegotiated the terms with the sellers, eliminating the deferred seller financing obligation and agreeing to terms of a new lease of the
assets for an initial term of 15 years and 8 months with four renewal options of five years each. Under this triple net lease, annual rent is initially $1.8 million
based on a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases 1.5% per year. However, because of the continuing involvement we have with the sites through the lease
and sublease of the properties, we recorded the liability on our balance sheet at fair value on the date of the reclassification, which approximated its carrying
value. During the second quarter of 2016, we reclassified the liability from debt and capital lease obligations to accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and other noncurrent liabilities on the balance sheet.
Sale Leaseback Transaction
In December 2016, we sold the real property at 17 sites acquired through the State Oil Assets asset acquisition for cash proceeds of $25.0 million, which were
used to repay borrowings on the credit facility. We leased these properties for an initial term of 15 years with three renewal options of approximately five
years each. Under the triple net lease, annual rent is initially $1.6 million based on a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases every 5 years based on inflation.
Because of the continuing involvement we have with the sites through the lease and sublease of the properties, we recorded a liability for the proceeds
received and will amortize this liability over the lease term as rent payments are made.
Capital Expenditures
We make investments to expand, upgrade and enhance existing assets. We categorize our capital requirements as either sustaining capital expenditures,
growth capital expenditures or acquisition capital expenditures. Sustaining capital expenditures are those capital expenditures required to maintain our longterm operating income or operating capacity. Acquisition and growth capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that we expect will increase our
operating income or operating capacity over the long term. We have the ability to fund our capital expenditures by additional borrowings under our
revolving credit facility or, if available to us on acceptable terms, issuing additional equity, debt securities or other options, such as the sale of assets. With
the significant decline in energy prices since 2014, access to the capital markets has tightened for the energy and MLP industries as a whole, which has
impacted our cost of capital and our ability to raise equity and debt financing at favorable terms. Our ability to access the capital markets may have an impact
on our ability to fund acquisitions. We may not be able to complete any offering of securities or other options on terms acceptable to us, if at all.
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The following table outlines our consolidated capital expenditures and acquisitions for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2016
Sustaining capital
Growth
Acquisitions
Total consolidated capital expenditures and acquisitions

2015

2014

$

798
19,978
97,134

$

1,318
8,865
309,702

$

3,104
10,868
163,562

$

117,910

$

319,885

$

177,534

Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2016 are summarized below (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
2017
Long-term debt

$

57

2018
$

2019

765

$ 441,500

2020
$

—

2021
$

—

Thereafter
$

Total

—

$ 442,322
33,529

Interest payments on debt

15,484

15,470

2,575

—

—

—

Capital lease obligations

2,803

2,894

2,986

3,080

3,175

18,590

33,528

Operating lease obligations

17,348

15,375

13,810

11,569

9,093

39,138

106,333

Management fees

10,272

10,272

7,704

—

—

—

28,248

6,515

6,603

6,670

6,647

6,738

69,672

102,845

—

4,887

1,461

1,270

611

38,637

46,866

56,266

$ 476,706

166,037

$ 793,671

Sale leaseback obligations
Other liabilities
Total consolidated
obligations

$

52,479

$

$

22,566

$

19,617

$

Interest Payments on Debt
Such amounts include estimates of interest expense related to our credit facility assuming a 3.5% interest rate.
Capital Lease Obligations
We have certain retail site properties under capital leases. Capital lease obligations in the table above include both principal and interest.
Operating Lease Obligations
The operating lease obligations include leases for land, office facilities and retail sites. Operating lease obligations reflected in the table above include all
operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable terms in excess of one year, and are not reduced by minimum rentals to be received by us under
subleases. In addition, such amounts do not reflect contingent rentals that may be incurred in addition to minimum rentals.
Our principal executive offices are in Allentown, Pennsylvania, in an office space leased by CST, for which the rent is charged to us as a cost under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement. Future lease payments on this office lease are included within operating lease obligations.
Sale Leaseback Obligations
The payments in the table above represent payments on sale-leaseback transactions for which the sale was not recognized as a result of the continuing
involvement with the sites. As such, the table above includes the payments under the lease.
Management Fees
The payments in the table above represent contractually obligated payments under the Amended Omnibus Agreement. See Note 15 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
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Other Liabilities
Other liabilities include asset retirement obligations described in Note 11 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K and excludes other liabilities whose payment period or amount is not determinable. For purposes of reflecting amounts for asset retirement
obligations in the table above, we have made our best estimate of expected payments based on information available as of December 31, 2016.
Under the terms of various supply agreements, the Partnership is obligated to minimum volume purchases measured in gallons of motor fuel. Future minimum
volume purchase requirements are 385 million gallons in 2017, reducing to 25 million gallons in 2021. Future minimum volume purchase requirements from
2022 through 2024 total 75 million gallons. The aggregate dollar amount of the future minimum volume purchase requirements is dependent on the future
weighted average wholesale cost per gallon charged under the applicable supply agreements. The amounts and timing of the related payment obligations
cannot reasonably be estimated reliably. As a result, payment of these amounts has been excluded from the table above. See Note 16 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Amended Omnibus Agreement contingently requires us to perform environmental remediation work as further discussed in Note 14 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. We also have operating leases and motor fuel purchase commitments as previously
discussed in “Contractual Obligations” and in Note 16 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Other Matters Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources
Concentration of Customers
For the year ended December 31, 2016, we distributed approximately 16% of our total wholesale distribution volumes to DMS and its affiliates and received
26% of our rent income from DMS and its affiliates. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we distributed 8% of our total wholesale distribution volumes to
CST and received 21% of our rent income from CST. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we received 9% of our rent income from a lessee dealer that
operates many of the sites acquired through the PMI and One Stop acquisitions.
For the year ended December 31, 2015, we distributed approximately 17% of our total wholesale distribution volumes to DMS and its affiliates and received
36% of our rent income from DMS and its affiliates. For the year ended December 31, 2015, we distributed 7% of our total wholesale distribution volumes to
CST and received 17% of our rent income from CST. See Note 15 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
CrossAmerica Common Unit Offering
On June 19, 2015, we closed on the sale to the public of 4.6 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $138.5 million. On July 16, 2015, we
closed on the sale of an additional 0.2 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $6.4 million in accordance with the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional common units. See Note 15 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional
information.
Partnership Common Unit Purchases by CST
On September 21, 2015, CST announced that the independent executive committee of its board of directors approved a common unit purchase program under
Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, authorizing CST to purchase up to an aggregate of $50 million of the common units representing limited partner interests
in the Partnership. The unit purchase program does not have a fixed expiration date and may be modified, suspended or terminated at any time at CST’s
discretion. CST made no purchases under the common unit purchase program during the year ended December 31, 2016. From inception until December 31,
2016, CST had purchased $19.8 million, or 804,667 common units, at an average price of $24.64 per common unit, which common units cannot be
transferred absent registration with the SEC or an available exemption from the SEC’s registration requirements. The Merger Agreement precludes CST from
making any further purchases of CrossAmerica common units.
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Common Unit Repurchase Program
In November 2015, the Board approved a common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing us to repurchase up to an
aggregate of $25 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, we may make purchases in the
open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of
the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The common unit repurchase program does not require us to
acquire any specific number of common units and may be suspended or terminated by us at any time without prior notice. The purchases will not be made
from any officer, director or control person of the Partnership or CST. The Merger Agreement precludes us from making any further repurchases of our
common units. The following table shows the purchases made through December 31, 2016:

Period
January 1 - December 31, 2015
January 1 - March 31, 2016
April 1 - June 30, 2016
July 1 - September 30, 2016
October 1 - December 31, 2016
Total

Total Number of
Units Purchased
154,158
112,492
20,971
—
—

Average Price Paid
per Unit
$
$
$
$
$

287,621

23.37
24.47
23.86
—
—

Total Cost of Units
Purchased

Amount Remaining
under the Program

$
$
$
$
$

3,603,071
2,752,240
500,413
—
—

$
$
$
$
$

21,396,929
18,644,689
18,144,276
18,144,276
18,144,276

$

6,855,724

$

18,144,276

We did not repurchase any common units under the plan subsequent to December 31, 2016.
Purchase of CST Fuel Supply Equity Interests
In January 2015 and again in July 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 5% and 12.5%, respectively, limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply for
aggregate consideration of 4.8 million common units and cash in the amount of $17.5 million. See Notes 3 and 15 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Acquisition of Landmark Assets
In January 2015, in connection with the joint acquisition by CST and CrossAmerica of 22 retail sites from Landmark, we acquired the real property of the 22
fee sites for $41.2 million. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Acquisition of Erickson
In February 2015, we closed on the purchase of all of the outstanding capital stock of Erickson and certain related assets for an aggregate purchase price of
$83.8 million, including working capital and net of cash acquired. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
report for additional information.
Purchase of NTI retail sites
In July 2015, we completed the purchase of real property at 29 NTIs from CST in exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately 0.3 million
common units and cash in the amount of $124.4 million, with an aggregate consideration of $134.0 million on the date of closing. See Note 3 of the notes to
the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Acquisition of One Stop
In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of retail sites from One Stop and certain related assets for $45.0 million, including working capital and net of cash
acquired. See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
59

Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST
In February 2016, CST sold 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts to us for $2.9 million.
See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Acquisition of Franchised Holiday Stores
On March 29, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of 31 Franchise Holiday Stores and 3 company operated liquor stores from S/S/G Corporation for
approximately $52.4 million, including working capital. Of the 34 company operated retail sites, 31 are located in Wisconsin and 3 are located in Minnesota.
The acquisition was funded by borrowings under our credit facility.
See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Acquisition of State Oil Assets
On September 27, 2016, we acquired certain assets of State Oil Company located in the greater Chicago market for approximately $41.9 million, including
working capital.
See Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for additional information.
Contingencies
Legal Matters
See Note 16 under the caption “Litigation Matters” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K for a
discussion of our legal matters.
Environmental Matters
See Note 14 under the caption “Environmental Matters” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K for a
discussion of our environmental matters.
Quarterly Results of Operations
See Note 22 included elsewhere in this Form 10-K for financial and operating quarterly data for each quarter of 2016 and 2015.
Outlook
This outlook section does not take into account or give any effect to the impact of CST’s proposed Merger on our business. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—The
pending Merger could adversely impact our business and strategic plans for growth.”
As a result of our recent acquisitions, we expect our total motor fuel volume sold for 2017 to be higher than 2016 volumes. While the U.S. energy markets,
including wholesale and retail motor fuel prices, are likely to continue to be volatile in the coming year, crude prices increased in the latter part of 2016 and
have remained at those levels in early 2017, which supports the payment terms discount component of our motor fuel gross margin on an absolute basis while
this price increase negatively impacts our retail motor fuel gross margin in our Retail Segment. We expect our rent income to increase in 2017 based on our
recent acquisitions and our expectation that we will continue to convert company operated retail sites to lessee dealers.
We will continue to evaluate acquisitions on an opportunistic basis. Additionally, we will pursue acquisition targets that fit into our strategy. Whether we
will be able to execute acquisitions will depend on market conditions, availability of suitable acquisition targets at attractive terms, accretive to our
unitholders, and our ability to finance such acquisitions on favorable terms.
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New Accounting Policies
For information on recent accounting pronouncements impacting our business, see Note 2 included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Critical Accounting Policies Involving Critical Accounting Estimates
We prepare our financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. See Note 2 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K for a summary of our significant accounting policies.
Critical accounting policies are those we believe are both most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results, and require our most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often because we must make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and
uncertainties affecting the application of those policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different
assumptions. We believe the following policies to be the most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing our financial statements.
Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenues from wholesale motor fuel sales when motor fuel is delivered to the customer. The purchase and delivery of motor fuels generally
occurs on the same day. We recognize revenues from retail sales when motor fuel is sold to the customer. We record inventory from the time of the purchase of
motor fuels from third party suppliers until the retail sale to the end customer.
We recognize revenue from leasing arrangements ratably over the term of the underlying lease. Renewals are not assumed unless reasonably assured.
Revenues from retail food and merchandise sales are recognized net of applicable provisions for discounts and allowances upon delivery, generally at the
point of sale.
Accounts receivable primarily result from the sale of motor fuels to customers and rental fees for retail sites. The majority of our accounts receivable relate to
motor fuel sales that can generally be described as high volume and low margin activities. Credit is extended to a customer based on an evaluation of the
customer’s financial condition. In certain circumstances collateral may be required from the customer. Receivables are recorded at face value, without interest
or discount.
The provision for bad debts is generally based upon a specific analysis of aged accounts while also factoring in any new business conditions that might
impact the historical analysis, such as market conditions and bankruptcies of particular customers. Bad debt provisions are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.
We review all accounts receivable balances on at least a quarterly basis and provide an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and
on a specific identification basis.
LGW collects motor fuel taxes, which consist of various pass through taxes collected from customers on behalf of taxing authorities, and remits such taxes
directly to those taxing authorities. LGW’s accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted from wholesale revenues and cost of sales and
account for them as liabilities. LGWS’s retail sales and cost of sales include motor fuel taxes as the taxes are included in the cost paid for motor fuel and
LGWS has no direct responsibility to collect or remit such taxes to the taxing authorities.
Business Combinations
We account for business combinations in accordance with the guidance under ASC 805– Business Combinations. Acquisitions of assets or entities that
include inputs and processes and have the ability to create outputs are accounted for as business combinations. The purchase price is recorded for assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The excess of the fair value of the consideration conveyed over the fair value of the net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. The income statement includes the results of operations for each acquisition from their respective date of acquisition.
Determining the fair value of these items requires management’s judgment, the utilization of independent valuation experts and involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions with respect to the timing and amounts of future cash inflows and outflows, discount rates, market prices and asset
lives, among other items. The judgments made in the determination of the estimated fair value assigned to the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
noncontrolling interest in the investee, as well as the estimated useful life of each asset and the duration of each liability, can materially impact the financial
statements in periods after acquisition, such as through depreciation and amortization. For more information on our acquisitions and application of the
acquisition method, see Note 3 to the consolidated and statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment at
the reporting unit level at least annually, and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired. The annual
impairment testing date of goodwill is October 1.
In performing our annual impairment analysis, ASC 350–20, Intangibles–Goodwill and Other, allows us to use qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not (likelihood of more than 50%) that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, including goodwill.
If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, no further testing is necessary. However, if we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, then we perform the first step of the two-step goodwill impairment test.
In the first step of the goodwill impairment test, the reporting unit’s carrying amount (including goodwill) and its fair value are compared. If the estimated fair
value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an “implied fair
value” of goodwill. The determination of our “implied fair value” requires us to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and
liabilities of the reporting unit. Any unallocated fair value represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying
value. If the “implied fair value” is less than the carrying value, an impairment charge would be recorded.
At December 31, 2016, we had $89.1 million of goodwill recorded in our segments. After assessing the totality of events and circumstances, and considering
valuation data of our reporting units as provided by a third party independent appraisal firm, we determined that it is more likely than not that the fair value
of our reporting units exceed their carrying amounts and therefore goodwill is not impaired at December 31, 2016.
Asset Retirement Obligations
When we install or acquire USTs, we recognize the estimated future cost to remove our USTs over their estimated useful lives. We record a discounted
liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation with a corresponding increase to the carrying value of the related long-lived asset at the time a
UST is installed. We depreciate the amount added to property and equipment and recognize accretion expense in connection with the discounted liability
over the remaining life of the UST.
We base our estimates of such future costs on our prior experience with removal and include normal and customary costs we expect to incur associated with
UST removal. We compare our cost estimates with our actual removal cost experience on an annual basis, and when the actual costs we experience exceed our
original estimates, we will recognize an additional liability for estimated future costs to remove the USTs. Because these estimates are subjective and are
currently based on historical costs with adjustments for estimated future changes in the associated costs, the dollar amount of these obligations could change
as more information is obtained.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, our liabilities related to the removal of USTs recorded in the consolidated financial statements were $27.8 million and
$23.5 million, respectively. A 10% change in our estimate of anticipated future costs for removal of USTs as of December 31, 2016 would change our asset
retirement obligation by approximately $3.4 million. See also Note 11 under the caption “Asset Retirement Obligations” of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Environmental Liabilities
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, our environmental reserves recorded in the consolidated financial statements were $4.2 million and $2.8 million,
respectively. These environmental reserves represent our estimates for future expenditures for remediation and related litigation associated with contaminated
retail sites as a result of releases (e.g. overfills, spills and releases) and are based on current regulations, historical results and certain other factors.
Environmental liabilities that we have recorded are based on internal and external estimates of costs to remediate retail sites. Factors considered in the
estimates of the liability are the expected cost and the estimated length of time to remediate each contaminated site. Estimated remediation costs are not
discounted because the timing of payments cannot be reasonably estimated. Reimbursements under state trust fund programs are recognized when received
because such amounts are insignificant. The adequacy of the liability is evaluated quarterly and adjustments are made based on updated experience at
existing retail sites, newly identified retail sites and changes in governmental policy. A 10% change in our estimate of future costs related to environmental
liabilities recorded as of December 31, 2016 would change our environmental liabilities and operating expenses by $0.4 million.
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See also Note 14 under the caption “Environmental Matters” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Tax Matters
As a limited partnership, we are not subject to federal and state income taxes. Income tax attributable to CrossAmerica’s taxable income, which may differ
significantly from income for financial statement purposes, is assessed at the individual level of the unit holder. CrossAmerica is subject to a statutory
requirement that non-qualifying income, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, cannot exceed 10% of total gross income for the calendar year. If nonqualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, we would be taxed as a corporation. The non-qualifying income did not exceed the statutory limit in any
period.
Certain activities that generate non-qualifying income are conducted through our wholly owned taxable corporate subsidiary, LGWS. Current and deferred
income taxes are recognized on the earnings of LGWS. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are measured
using enacted tax rates.
Valuation allowances are initially recorded and reevaluated each reporting period by assessing the likelihood of the ultimate realization of a deferred tax
asset. We consider a number of factors in assessing the realization of a deferred tax asset, including the reversal of temporary differences, future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. The amount of deferred tax assets ultimately realized may differ materially from the
estimates utilized in the computation of valuation allowances and may materially impact the financial statements in the future. Our valuation allowance at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $5.5 million and $5.4 million, respectively.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk
We purchase gasoline and diesel fuel from several suppliers at costs that are subject to market volatility. These purchases are generally made pursuant to
contracts or at market prices established with the supplier. We do not currently engage in hedging activities for these purchases due to our pricing structure
that allows us to generally pass on price changes to our customers and related parties.
Interest Rate Risk
As of December 31, 2016, we had $441.5 million outstanding on our revolving credit facility. Our outstanding borrowings bear interest at LIBOR plus an
applicable margin, which was 3.25% at December 31, 2016. Our borrowings had a weighted-average interest rate at December 31, 2016 of 3.53%. A one
percentage point change in our average rate would impact annual interest expense by approximately $4.4 million.
Commodity Price Risk
We have not historically hedged or managed our price risk with respect to our commodity inventories (gasoline and diesel fuel), as the time period between
the purchases of our motor fuel inventory and the sales to our customers is very short.
Regarding our supplier relationships, a majority of our total gallons purchased are subject to discounts for prompt payment and other rebates and incentives,
which are recorded within cost of sales. Prompt payment discounts are based on a percentage of the purchase price of motor fuel. As such, the dollar value of
these discounts increase and decrease corresponding with motor fuel prices. We have not historically hedged or managed our price risk with respect to these
terms discounts. Based on our current volumes, we estimate a $10 per barrel change in the price of crude oil would impact our annual wholesale motor fuel
gross profit by approximately $2 million related to these payment discounts.
Foreign Currency Risk
Our operations are located in the U.S., and therefore are not subject to foreign currency risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, adopted rules requiring companies to file reports with the SEC to include a management
report on such company’s internal control over financial reporting in its Form 10-K. In addition, our independent registered public accounting firm must
attest to our internal control over financial reporting.
The management of CrossAmerica is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. This internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. CrossAmerica
management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016. In making this assessment, it used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework, 2013
version. Based on our assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2016, the company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on
those criteria.
Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Grant Thornton LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.
Their report dated February 27, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion on our internal control over financial reporting, which begins on page 68 of this
report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors
General Partner and Limited Partners of CrossAmerica Partners LP
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CrossAmerica Partners LP (a Delaware Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries (the
“Partnership”) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in partners’ capital and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CrossAmerica Partners
LP and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Partnership’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Arlington, Virginia
February 27, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors
General Partner and Limited Partners of CrossAmerica Partners LP
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of CrossAmerica Partners LP (a Delaware Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries (the
“Partnership”) as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Partnership’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on
criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial
statements of the Partnership as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and our report dated February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Arlington, Virginia
February 27, 2017
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Thousands of Dollars, except unit data)
December 31,
2016

December 31,
2015

ASSETS
Current assets:
$

Cash

1,350

$

1,192

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $487 and $1,090, respectively

29,251

21,953

Accounts receivable from related parties

12,975

11,003

Inventories

13,164

15,739

Assets held for sale

2,111

3,288

Other current assets

6,556

4,944

65,407

58,119

677,329

628,564

Intangible assets, net

80,760

82,315

Goodwill

89,109

80,821

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets

19,384
$

Total assets

11,625

931,989

$

2,100

$

861,444

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
$

Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

7,608

34,903
9,958
15,705
12,467

32,577
8,350
16,545
9,818

75,133

74,898

465,119

403,714

Deferred tax liabilities, net

42,923

43,609

Asset retirement obligations

27,750

23,165

Motor fuel taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Debt and capital lease obligations, less current portion

Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
CrossAmerica Partners’ Capital
Common units—(33,524,952 and 25,585,922 units issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively)
Subordinated units—affiliates (0 and 7,525,000 units issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively)

100,253

47,202

711,178

592,588

221,044

374,458

—

(105,467)

221,044

Total CrossAmerica Partners’ Capital

268,991

(233)

Noncontrolling interests

(135)

220,811

Total equity
$

Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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931,989

268,856
$

861,444

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Thousands of Dollars, Except Unit and Per Unit Amounts)
Year Ended December 31,
2016
Operating revenues (a)

$

2015

1,869,806

$

2014

2,226,271

$

2,664,868

Costs of sales (b)

1,714,239

2,056,807

2,539,967

Gross profit

155,567

169,464

124,901

16,048

10,528

—

Operating expenses

61,074

72,229

47,749

General and administrative expenses

24,156

36,238

36,880

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense

54,412

48,227

33,285

139,642

156,694

117,914

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity interests
Operating expenses:

Total operating expenses

198

2,719

1,653

Operating income

32,171

26,017

8,640

Other income, net

848

396

Gain on sales of assets, net

(22,757)

Interest expense

10,262

Income (loss) before income taxes
Consolidated net income (loss)
Less: net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income (loss) attributable to CrossAmerica limited
Partners
IDR distributions
Net income (loss) available to CrossAmerica limited
Partners

(16,631)

7,920

(7,525)

(3,542)

(1,354)

10,715

11,462

(6,171)

11

21

(9)

10,704

11,441

(6,162)

(3,392)

(1,390)

(453)

Income tax benefit

466

(18,493)

(245)

$

7,312

$

10,051

$

(6,407)

Basic earnings (loss) per common unit

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

Diluted earnings (loss) per common unit

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per subordinated unit

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

Net income (loss) per CrossAmerica limited partner unit:

Weighted-average CrossAmerica limited partner units:
Basic common units

32,159,156

21,462,665

12,402,938

Diluted common units

32,216,004

21,561,403

12,402,938

1,151,366

7,525,000

7,525,000

33,367,370

29,086,403

19,927,938

Basic and diluted subordinated units
Total diluted common and subordinated units
Distribution paid per common and subordinated units

$

2.4000

$

2.2300

$

2.0800

Distribution declared (with respect to each respective
period) per common and subordinated units

$

2.4200

$

2.2800

$

2.1100

Supplemental information:
(a) Includes excise taxes of:

$

79,537

$

99,339

$

64,942

(a) Includes revenues from fuel sales to related parties of:

$

373,037

$

458,731

$

764,509

(a) Includes income from rentals of:

$

80,594

$

65,431

$

52,513

(b) Includes expenses from fuel sales to related parties of:

$

359,820

$

445,237

$

735,202

(b) Includes expenses from rentals of:

$

19,656

$

17,024

$

15,078

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
70

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Thousands of Dollars)
(Unaudited)
Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
$

Consolidated net income (loss)

10,715

$

11,462

$

(6,171)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flows provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense

54,412

48,227

33,285

1,666

1,475

2,780

Amortization of below market leases, net

198

394

236

Provision for losses on doubtful accounts

36

521

Amortization of deferred financing fees

(686)

Deferred income taxes

618

(6,116)

(1,760)
11,958

Equity-based employees and directors compensation expense

3,927

5,119

Amended Omnibus Agreement fees: settled in common units

12,133

8,917

—

Gain on sales of assets, net

(198)

(2,719)

(1,653)

Gain on settlement of capital lease obligations

(132)

(25)

(393)

335

—

Erickson working capital adjustment

—

Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions

(2,966)

(2,768)

(10,369)

Net cash provided by operating activities

79,440

64,487

28,531

2,682

6,409

3,504

—

—

10,001

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of lubricants business

—

Proceeds from sale of wholesale fuel supply contracts and assignment of leases to DMI

—

(20,776)

Capital expenditures

(13,972)

794

1,958

2,179

17,528

—

Principal payments received on notes receivable
Refund payment related to the sale by CST of California and Wyoming assets

(94,234)

(167,777)

Cash paid to CST in connection with acquisitions

(2,900)

(141,925)

Net cash used in investing activities

(96,906)

(311,518)

Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired

5,700

(10,183)

—
(163,562)
—
(156,150)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under the revolving credit facility
Repayments on the revolving credit facility

214,788

369,495

353,144

(131,699)

(211,484)

(299,074)

Proceeds from issuance of common units

—

144,939

135,032

Proceeds from sale leaseback transactions

25,035

—

—

Repurchases of common units

(3,252)

(3,603)

Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations

(2,262)

(1,983)

Payments of sale leaseback obligations

(734)

(682)

Debt issuance costs

(694)
—

Repayments from related party
Distributions paid to holders of the IDRs

(534)

—

(3,918)

2,465

(2,465)

(45)

(13)

(3,392)

(1,390)

Distributions paid on distribution equivalent rights

—
(2,048)

—
(245)

(109)

(125)

(22)

Distributions paid on common and subordinated units

(80,012)

(64,566)

(41,196)

Net cash provided by financing activities

17,624

233,053

138,674

(13,978)

11,055

Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests

Net increase (decrease) in cash

158
1,192

Cash at beginning of period
$

Cash at end of period

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1,350

15,170
$

1,192

4,115
$

15,170

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Thousands of Dollars, Except Unit and Per Unit Amounts)
Limited Partners’ Interest
Common
Unitholders
Units
Balance at December 31, 2013
Vesting of incentive and director
awards, net of units withheld
for taxes
Proceeds of equity offering and
overallotment exercise, net of
issuance costs

Subordinated
Units - Affiliates
Dollars

11,097,348

$

Units

Dollars
$

(73,988)

$

General
Partner’s
Interest

Incentive
Distribution
Rights

Noncontrolling
Interest

Equity

Dollars

Dollars

Dollars

Dollars

168,659

7,525,000

—

$

—

$

—

$

94,671

200,356

6,100

—

—

—

—

—

6,100

4,140,000

135,032

—

—

—

—

—

135,032

Sale of wholesale fuel supply
contracts and assignment of
leases to DMI

—

1,558

—

764

—

—

—

2,322

Net income (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss)

—

(3,988)

—

(2,419)

—

245

(9)

(6,171)

Distributions paid

—

(25,544)

—

(15,652)

—

(245)

(22)

(41,463)

7,525,000

(91,295)

—

—

(31)

190,491

—

—

—

Balance at December 31, 2014

15,437,704

281,817

Vesting of incentive and director
awards, net of units withheld
for taxes

96,812

3,261

Issuance of units to CST for the
payment of fees due under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement

259,312

7,200

—

—

—

—

—

7,200

5,139,252

163,292

—

—

—

—

—

163,292

(182,092)

—

—

—

—

—

(182,092)

(3,603)

—

—

—

—

—

(3,603)

144,939

—

—

—

—

—

Issuance of units to CST in
connection with sale of fuel
supply interests and purchase
of NTIs
Distributions to CST in
connection with sale of
fuel supply interests
Repurchase of common units

—

—
(154,158)

—

3,261

Proceeds of equity offering and
overallotment exercise, net of
issuance costs

4,807,000

Net income and comprehensive
income

—

7,442

—

2,609

—

1,390

21

11,462

Distributions paid

—

(47,798)

—

(16,781)

—

(1,390)

(125)

(66,094)

7,525,000

(105,467)

—

—

(135)

268,856

Balance at December 31, 2015

25,585,922

Vesting of incentive and director
awards, net of units withheld
for taxes

107,227

Conversion of subordinated units

7,525,000

Issuance of units to CST for the
payment of fees due under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement

468,645

Distributions to CST in
connection with the purchase
of independent dealer and
subwholesaler contracts

374,458

2,606
(109,673)

—

—
(7,525,000)

144,939

—

—

—

—

2,606

109,673

—

—

—

—

11,245

—

—

—

—

—

11,245

(2,900)

—

—

—

—

—

(2,900)

Refund payment related to the
sale of California and
Wyoming assets

(28,379)

17,528

—

—

—

—

—

17,528

Repurchase of common units

(133,463)

(3,252)

—

—

—

—

—

(3,252)

253

—

3,392

11

10,715

—

(3,392)

(109)

(83,558)

Net income and comprehensive
income

—

7,059

—

Distributions paid

—

(75,598)

—

(429)

—

Other
Balance at December 31, 2016

—
33,524,952

$

221,044

—

(4,459)
—
$

—

—
$

—

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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—
$

—

—
$

(233)

(429)
$

220,811

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OTHER DISCLOSURES
CST’s Merger Agreement
Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Circle K Stores Inc. will, through its acquisition of CST, control CST’s interest in the General Partner and CST’s
19.8% limited partner interest in CrossAmerica as well as own all of the IDRs. The transaction is subject to the receipt of regulatory approvals in the United
States and Canada. The transaction is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2017.
Description of Business
On October 1, 2014, CST completed the GP Purchase and the IDR Purchase. After the GP Purchase, the name of Lehigh Gas Partners LP was changed to
CrossAmerica Partners LP and the name of our General Partner was changed from Lehigh Gas GP LLC to CrossAmerica GP LLC. The General Partner manages
our operations and business activities. The General Partner is managed and operated by the executive officers of the General Partner, under the oversight of
the Board. As a result of the GP Purchase, CST controls the General Partner and has the right to appoint all members of the Board.
Our business consists of:
•

the wholesale distribution of motor fuels;

•

the retail distribution of motor fuels to end customers at retail sites operated by commission agents or us;

•

the owning or leasing of retail sites used in the retail distribution of motor fuels and, in turn, generating rental income from the lease or sublease of
the retail sites; and

•

the operation of retail sites.

The financial statements reflect the consolidated results of the Partnership and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Our primary operations are conducted by the
following consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries:
•

LGW, which distributes motor fuels on a wholesale basis and generates qualified income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code;

•

LGPR, which functions as our real estate holding company and holds the assets that generate rental income that is qualifying under Section
7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

•

LGWS, which owns and leases (or leases and sub-leases) real estate and personal property used in the retail distribution of motor fuels, as well as
provides maintenance and other services to its customers. In addition, LGWS distributes motor fuels on a retail basis and sells convenience
merchandise items to end customers at company operated retail sites and sells motor fuel on a retail basis at retail sites operated by commission
agents. Income from LGWS generally is not qualifying income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

As part of our business strategy with CST, we intend, when favorable market conditions exist and pending approval by the Board’s independent conflicts
committee and the approval of the executive committee of the board of directors of CST and mutual agreement upon terms and other conditions, to purchase
equity interests at fair market value in CST Fuel Supply, over time. The Merger Agreement prohibits, among other things, CST from selling its tangible and
intangible properties or assets to us between August 21, 2016 and completion of the Merger. As such, there can be no assurance we will be able to purchase
equity interests in CST Fuel Supply in the future. As of December 31, 2016, our total equity interest in CST Fuel Supply was 17.5%. See Note 15 for
discussion of the July 2016 refund of a portion of the purchase price paid in 2015 by the Partnership to CST Fuel Supply associated with the reduction in
wholesale distribution volume resulting from CST’s sale of its California and Wyoming assets.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additionally, we have previously issued common units as consideration in the purchase of equity interests in CST Fuel Supply and the real property
associated with some of CST’s NTI retail sites. We have previously issued, and may continue to issue, common units as payment for charges and expenses
incurred under the Amended Omnibus Agreement. There is no obligation for the General Partner to accept Partnership common units in lieu of cash for
amounts due under the Amended Omnibus Agreement. Pursuant to a unit purchase program announced in September 2015, CST has also acquired our
common units through open market purchases. Through December 31, 2016, after giving effect to these transactions, CST owned 19.8% of our limited partner
interests.
Concentration Risk
For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, we distributed approximately 16%, 17% and 25% of our total wholesale distribution volumes to
DMS and its affiliates and DMS and its affiliates accounted for approximately 26%, 36% and 47% of our rental income, respectively. For more information
regarding transactions with DMS and its affiliates, see Note 15.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, our wholesale business purchased approximately 30%, 25% and 24% of its motor fuel from ExxonMobil, BP and
Motiva (Shell), respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2015, our wholesale business purchased approximately 30%, 26% and 26% of its motor fuel
from ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva (Shell), respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2014, our wholesale business purchased approximately 37%, 28%
and 22% of its motor fuel from ExxonMobil, BP and Motiva (Shell), respectively. No other fuel suppliers accounted for 10% or more of our motor fuel
purchases in 2016, 2015 or 2014.
Valero supplied substantially all of the motor fuel purchased by CST Fuel Supply during all periods presented. During the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, CST Fuel Supply purchased approximately 1.8 billion and 1.9 billion gallons, respectively, of motor fuel from Valero.
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we distributed 8% and 7% of our total wholesale distribution volume to CST retail sites that are not
supplied by CST Fuel Supply and received 21% and 17% of our rental income from CST, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, we received 9% of our rental income from a lessee dealer that operates certain of the retail sites acquired through the
PMI and One Stop acquisitions.
Note 2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These financial statements include the consolidated accounts of
CrossAmerica and subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications were made to prior year lease executory costs to conform to the current year presentation, as discussed further in Note 21. Such
reclassifications had no effect on net income or total equity for any periods.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results and outcomes could differ from those estimates and assumptions. On an ongoing basis, management reviews its estimates based on currently
available information. Changes in facts and circumstances could result in revised estimates and assumptions.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all short-term investments with maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are
stated at cost, which, for cash equivalents, approximates fair value due to their short-term maturity. We are potentially subject to financial instrument
concentration of credit risk through our cash and cash equivalents. We maintain cash and cash equivalents with several major financial institutions. We have
not experienced any losses on our cash equivalents.
Receivables
Accounts receivable primarily result from the sales of motor fuels to customers and rental fees for retail sites. The majority of our accounts receivable relate to
our motor fuel sales that can generally be described as high volume and low margin activities. Credit
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is extended to a customer based on an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition. In certain circumstances collateral may be required from the customer.
Receivables are recorded at face value, without interest or discount.
The provision for bad debts is generally based upon a specific analysis of aged accounts while also factoring in any new business conditions that might
impact the historical analysis, such as market conditions and bankruptcies of particular customers. Bad debt provisions are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.
We review all accounts receivable balances on at least a quarterly basis and provide an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and
on a specific identification basis.
Inventories
Motor fuel inventory consists of gasoline, diesel fuel and other petroleum products and is stated at the lower of average cost or market using the first-in, firstout method. No provision for potentially obsolete or slow-moving inventory has been made. We record inventory from the time of the purchase of motor fuels
from third party suppliers until the retail sale to the end customer.
Food and merchandise inventory is valued at the lower of average cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Property and equipment acquired through a business combination is recorded at fair value. Depreciation is
recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, including: 10 to 20 years for buildings and improvements and
5 to 30 years for equipment. Amortization of leasehold improvements is based upon the shorter of the remaining terms of the leases including renewal periods
that are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful lives, which generally range from 7 to 10 years.
Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to operations as incurred. Gains or losses on the disposition of property and equipment are recorded in the period the sale meets the criteria for recognition.
Impairment of Assets
Long-lived assets, which include property and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets, are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset is not recoverable if its carrying amount exceeds the
sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. If a long-lived asset is not recoverable, an impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value, with fair value determined based on discounted
estimated net cash flows or other appropriate methods.
Business Combinations
We account for business combinations in accordance with the guidance under ASC 805– Business Combinations. Acquisitions of assets or entities that
include inputs and processes and have the ability to create outputs are accounted for as business combinations. The purchase price is recorded for assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The excess of the fair value of the consideration conveyed over the fair value of the net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. The income statement includes the results of operations for each acquisition from their respective date of acquisition.
Determining the fair value of these items requires management’s judgment, the utilization of independent valuation experts and involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions with respect to the timing and amounts of future cash inflows and outflows, discount rates, market prices and asset
lives, among other items. The judgments made in the determination of the estimated fair value assigned to the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
noncontrolling interest in the investee, as well as the estimated useful life of each asset and the duration of each liability, can materially impact the financial
statements in periods after acquisition, such as through depreciation and amortization. For more information on our acquisitions and application of the
acquisition method, see Note 3.
Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs that are incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are deferred and amortized to interest expense using the straight line method
(which approximates the effective interest method) over the contractual term of the underlying indebtedness. Debt issuance costs are classified as a reduction
of the associated liability.
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Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment
at the reporting unit level at least annually, and tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be
impaired. Our annual impairment testing date is October 1.
In its annual impairment analysis, an entity can use qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not (likelihood of more than 50%) that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, including goodwill.
If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances an entity determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than
its carrying amount, then performing the two-step test is unnecessary. However, if we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount, we then perform the first step of the two-step goodwill impairment test.
In the first step of the goodwill impairment test, the reporting unit’s carrying amount (including goodwill) and its fair value are compared. If the estimated fair
value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an “implied fair
value” of goodwill. The determination of our “implied fair value” requires us to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and
liabilities of the reporting unit. Any unallocated fair value represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying
value. If the “implied fair value” is less than the carrying value, an impairment charge would be recorded.
No goodwill was impaired for any period presented.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets associated with wholesale fuel supply contracts, wholesale fuel
distribution rights and trademarks are amortized over 10 years. Covenants not to compete are amortized over the shorter of the contract term or 5 years.
Intangible assets associated with above and below market leases are amortized over the lease term, which approximates 5 years. Intangible assets with definite
useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment if we believe that changes or triggering events have
occurred that could have caused the carrying value of the intangible assets to exceed its fair value. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized,
but are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the intangible assets might be impaired.
Environmental Matters
Liabilities for future remediation costs are recorded when environmental assessments from governmental regulatory agencies and/or remedial efforts are
probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Other than for assessments, the timing and magnitude of these accruals generally are based on the
completion of investigations or other studies or a commitment to a formal plan of action. Environmental liabilities are based on best estimates of probable
undiscounted future costs using currently available technology and applying current regulations, as well as our own internal environmental policies, without
establishing a range of loss for these liabilities. Environmental liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to uncertainties related to the magnitude of
possible remediation, the timing of such remediation and the determination of our obligation in proportion to other parties. Such estimates are subject to
change due to many factors, including the identification of new retail sites requiring remediation, changes in environmental laws and regulations and their
interpretation, additional information related to the extent and nature of remediation efforts and potential improvements in remediation technologies.
Amounts recorded for environmental liabilities have not been reduced by possible recoveries from third parties.
Asset Retirement Obligations
We record a liability, which is referred to as an asset retirement obligation, at fair value for the estimated cost to remove USTs used to store motor fuel at
owned and leased retail sites at the time we incur that liability, which is generally when the UST is installed or upon entering the lease. We record a
discounted liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation with a corresponding increase to the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. We
depreciate the amount added to property and equipment and recognize accretion expense in connection with the discounted liability over the estimated
remaining life of the UST. Accretion expense is reflected in depreciation, amortization and accretion expense. We base our estimates of the anticipated future
costs for removal of a UST on our prior experience with removal. Removal costs include the cost to remove the USTs, soil remediation costs resulting from
the spillage of small quantities of motor fuel in the normal operations of our business and other miscellaneous costs. We review our assumptions for
computing the estimated liability for the removal of USTs on an annual basis. Any change in estimated cash flows is reflected as an adjustment to the liability
and the associated asset.
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Segment Reporting
We present our segment reporting in accordance with ASC 280– Segment Reporting and engage in both the wholesale and retail distribution of motor fuels,
primarily gasoline and diesel fuel. We present our results to our chief operating decision maker segregated between wholesale and retail activities. As a result,
we are deemed to conduct our business in two segments: 1) the wholesale segment and 2) the retail segment. The class of customer and gross margins are
sufficiently different between these two businesses to warrant two reportable segments. See Note 21 for additional information.
Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recorded upon delivery of the products to our customers, by which the price is fixed, title to the products is transferred and payment has either
been received or collection is reasonably assured.
Revenues from leasing arrangements for which we are the lessor are recognized ratably over the term of the underlying lease.
Lease Accounting
We account for leases in accordance with ASC 840– Leases. We lease certain retail sites from third parties under long-term arrangements with various
expiration dates. U.S. GAAP requires leases be evaluated and classified as either operating or capital for financial reporting purposes. The lease term used for
lease evaluation includes option periods only in instances in which the exercise of the option period can be reasonably assured and failure to exercise such
options would result in an economic penalty. Minimum lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease including renewal
periods that are reasonably assured at the inception of the lease. In addition to minimum lease payments, certain leases require additional contingent
payments based on sales volume or future inflation.
We are the lessee in certain sale-leaseback transactions for certain retail sites, and as we have continuing involvement in the underlying retail sites, or the
lease agreement has a repurchase feature, the sale-leaseback arrangements are accounted for as financing transactions.
Income Taxes
Our wholly owned taxable subsidiaries recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future income tax consequences of temporary
differences between financial statement carrying amounts and the related income tax basis.
Income tax attributable to our earnings and losses, excluding the earnings and losses of our wholly owned taxable subsidiaries, are assessed at the individual
level of the unitholder. Accordingly, we do not record a provision for income taxes other than for those earnings and losses generated or incurred by our
wholly owned taxable subsidiaries.
Tax positions not meeting the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the financial statement date may not be recognized or continue to be recognized
under the accounting guidance for income taxes. Where required, we recognize interest and penalties for uncertain tax positions in income taxes.
Valuation allowances are initially recorded and reevaluated each reporting period by assessing the likelihood of the ultimate realization of a deferred tax
asset. Management considers a number of factors in assessing the realization of a deferred tax asset, including the reversal of temporary differences, future
taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. The amount of deferred tax assets ultimately realized may differ materially from the
estimates utilized in the computation of valuation allowances and may materially impact the financial statements in the future.
Cost of Sales
We include in our cost of sales all costs we incur to acquire motor fuel and merchandise, including the costs of purchasing, storing and transporting inventory
prior to delivery to our customers. A component of our cost of sales is the discount for prompt payment and other rebates, discounts and incentives offered by
our suppliers. Prompt payment discounts from suppliers are based on a percentage of the purchase price of motor fuel and the dollar value of these discounts
varies with motor fuel prices. Cost of sales does not include any depreciation of our property and equipment, as these amounts are included in depreciation,
amortization and accretion expense on our statements of income.
Motor Fuel Taxes
LGW collects motor fuel taxes, which consist of various pass through taxes collected from customers on behalf of taxing authorities, and remits such taxes
directly to those taxing authorities. LGW’s accounting policy is to exclude the taxes collected and remitted from wholesale revenues and cost of sales and
account for them as liabilities. LGWS’s retail sales and cost of sales include motor
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fuel taxes as the taxes are included in the cost paid for motor fuel and LGWS has no direct responsibility to collect or remit such taxes to the taxing
authorities.
Earnings Per Common Unit
In addition to the common and subordinated units, we have identified the IDRs as participating securities and compute income per unit using the two-class
method under which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to the partners based on their respective sharing of income
specified in the Partnership Agreement. Net income per common unit applicable to limited partners (including common and subordinated unitholders) is
computed by dividing the limited partners’ interest in net income, after deducting any incentive distributions, by the weighted-average number of
outstanding common and subordinated units. As discussed in Note 17, all subordinated units converted to common units in the first quarter of 2016.
Financial Instruments
Our financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, payables, our credit facilities, capital lease obligations, and trade payables. The estimated fair
values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts, except for certain debt as discussed in Note 12.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09– Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which results in comprehensive new revenue accounting
guidance, requires enhanced disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue that is
recognized, and develops a common revenue standard under U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. Specifically, the core principle of
the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. With the issuance of ASU 2015-1, which deferred the
effective date by one year, this guidance is effective January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted, but no earlier than January 1, 2017. The guidance can be
applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented, or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. Management is
currently evaluating this new guidance, including how it will apply the guidance at the date of adoption. We do not anticipate adopting this guidance early.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02– Leases (Topic 842). This standard modifies existing guidance for reporting organizations that enter into
leases to increase transparency by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2018, and requires a modified
retrospective approach to adoption. Early adoption is permitted. Management continues to evaluate the impact of this new guidance, but the adoption will
have a material impact on our balance sheet. We do not anticipate adopting this guidance early. We intend to apply each of the practical expedients in
adopting this new guidance.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09– Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting. This standard is issued as part of a simplification initiative involving several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09
is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016. The approach to adoption is dependent upon which
amendments are applicable. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing of
adoption.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01– Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business. This standard clarifies the
definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions
(or disposals) of assets or businesses. The definition of a business affects many areas of accounting including acquisitions, disposals, goodwill and
consolidation. ASU 2017-01 is effective for public fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing of adoption.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04– Intangibles–Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. This standard
removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair
value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. ASU 2017-04 is effective for a Company's annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the
timing of adoption.
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Certain other new financial accounting pronouncements have become effective for our financial statements and the adoption of these pronouncements will
not affect our financial position or results of operations, nor will they require any additional disclosures.
Note 3. ACQUISITIONS
Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST
In February 2016, we purchased 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million. This transaction was approved on
behalf of us by the independent conflicts committee of our Board and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST. See Note 15 of the
Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
Acquisition of Franchised Holiday Stores
On March 29, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of 31 Franchised Holiday Stores and 3 liquor stores from S/S/G Corporation for approximately $52.4
million, including working capital. Of the 34 stores, 31 are located in Wisconsin and 3 are located in Minnesota. The acquisition was funded by borrowings
under our credit facility.
The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition were as follows (in thousands):
Current assets (excluding cash and inventories)
Inventories
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Goodwill
Current liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Total consideration, net of cash acquired

$

41
3,536
33,055
7,710
9,126
(56)
(1,062)

$

52,350

The fair value of inventory was estimated at retail selling price less estimated costs to sell and a reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort.
The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated remaining useful lives of 20 years for the buildings and 5 to 10 years for equipment.
The $6.5 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights included in intangibles was based on an income approach and management believes the
level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.
The $1.0 million fair value of the discount related to lease agreements with below average market value was based on an income approach, and management
believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. These intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the respective lease agreements, with an estimated weighted average useful life of 5 years.
Goodwill recorded is primarily attributable to the end-customer relationships not eligible for recognition as an intangible asset. Of the goodwill recorded,
$1.8 million was assigned to the Wholesale segment and $7.3 million was assigned to the Retail segment. Goodwill deductible for tax purposes amounted to
$29.0 million.
Operating revenue since the date of acquisition was $82.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Acquisition of State Oil Assets
On September 27, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of 57 controlled retail sites (56 fee sites and 1 leased site) and certain other assets of State Oil Company,
being operated as 55 lessee dealer accounts and 2 non-fuel tenant locations, as well as 25 independent dealer accounts located in the greater Chicago market
for approximately $41.9 million, including working capital.
The preliminary fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition were as follows (in thousands):
Current assets (excluding cash and inventories)
Inventories
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Other noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Other long-term liabilities
Total consideration, net of cash acquired

914
210
35,291
6,530
2,720
(1,261)
(1,897)
(623)
$

41,884

The $3.4 million fair value of the notes receivable, which is included within current and other noncurrent assets, was based on an income approach using
relevant market participant assumptions.
The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated remaining useful lives of 20 years for the buildings and 5 to 10 years for equipment.
The $4.9 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights included in intangibles was based on an income approach and management believes the
level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.
The $1.6 million fair value of the wholesale fuel supply agreements was based on an income approach, and management believes the level and timing of cash
flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel supply agreements are being amortized over an estimated useful life of
approximately 10 years.
Operating revenues since the date of acquisition were $24.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Management is reviewing the valuation and confirming the result to determine the final purchase price allocation.
Purchase of CST Wholesale Fuel Supply Equity Interests
In January 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply in exchange for approximately 1.5 million common
units with an aggregate consideration of $60.0 million on the date of closing. In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of an additional 12.5% limited partner
equity interest in CST Fuel Supply in exchange for approximately 3.3 million common units and cash in the amount of $17.5 million, with an aggregate
consideration of approximately $110.9 million on the date of closing. These transactions were approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board
and the executive committee of, and full board of directors of, CST. Because these transactions were between entities under common control, the excess of the
purchase price paid by CrossAmerica over the carrying value recorded on CST’s balance sheet in the amount of $170.0 million is recorded as a distribution to
CST in our consolidated equity. See Note 15 for additional information regarding the refund payment related to CST’s sale of California and Wyoming
assets.
CST Fuel Supply distributes motor fuel primarily to CST’s retail sites at its cost plus a fixed margin of $0.05 per gallon and has 0 material net assets. CST
Fuel Supply distributed approximately 1.8 billion and 1.9 billion gallons of motor fuel during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Acquisition of Landmark
In January 2015, CST and CrossAmerica jointly purchased 22 retail sites from Landmark. CrossAmerica purchased the real property of the 22 fee sites for
$41.2 million. During the fourth quarter of 2015, we finalized the valuation of Landmark, the results of which are reproduced in the table below.
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LGWS leases the acquired real property to CST under triple net leases at a lease rate per annum of 7.5% of the fair value of the leased property on the
acquisition date and LGW distributes wholesale motor fuel to CST for these retail sites under long term agreements with a fuel gross profit margin of
approximately $0.05 per gallon.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date (in thousands):

Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill

$

24,977
3,147
13,085

Total consideration

$

41,209

The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated useful lives of 20 years.
Acquisition of Erickson
In February 2015, we closed on the purchase of all of the outstanding capital stock of Erickson and separate purchases of certain related assets with an
aggregate purchase price of $80.8 million, net of $3.0 million of cash acquired. These transactions resulted in the acquisition of a total of 64 retail sites
located in Minnesota, Michigan, Wisconsin and South Dakota.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date (in thousands):
Current assets (excluding cash and inventories)
Inventories
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Other liabilities
Total consideration, net of cash acquired

$

4,202
8,484
75,028
14,010
26,235
(16,233)
(28,438)
(2,204)
(273)

$

80,811

The fair value of inventory was estimated at retail selling price less estimated costs to sell and a reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort.
The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated remaining useful lives of 15 years for the buildings and 5 to 30 years for equipment.
The $11.7 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights included in intangibles was based on an income approach and management believes the
level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.
Goodwill recorded is primarily attributable to the deferred tax liabilities arising from the application of purchase accounting. In 2016, we received $0.8
million related to a working capital settlement, reducing net consideration and resulting goodwill. As of December 31, 2015, $9.4 million of the goodwill
recorded was assigned to the Wholesale segment and $17.9 million was assigned to the Retail segment. As a result of converting a portion of these retail sites
to lessee dealer sites and the resulting reduction in future cash flows in the Retail segment and the expected increase in future cash flows that will be received
by the Wholesale segment subsequent to the date of conversion, $5.2 million of the goodwill assigned to the Retail segment at December 31, 2015 was
reassigned to the Wholesale segment. See Note 9 for additional information.
Purchase and Lease Back of NTIs with CST
In July 2015, we completed the purchase of real property at 29 NTIs from CST in exchange for approximately 0.3 million common units and cash in the
amount of $124.4 million, for an aggregate consideration of $134.0 million on the date of closing. We leased the real property associated with the NTIs back
to CST and CST will continue to operate the retail sites pursuant to a triple net
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lease at a lease rate of 7.5%, per annum of the fair value of the property at lease inception. This transaction was approved by the independent conflicts
committee of the Board and the executive committee of, and full board of directors of, CST. We accounted for the transactions as entities under common
control.
Acquisition of One Stop
In July 2015, we completed the purchase of the 41 company operated One Stop retail site network based in Charleston, West Virginia, along with four
commission agent sites, nine dealer fuel supply agreements and one freestanding franchised QSR for approximately $44.6 million in cash, net of cash
acquired.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date (in thousands):
Current assets (excluding cash and inventories)
Inventories
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Other assets
Current liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Other liabilities
Total consideration, net of cash acquired

$

1,138
4,764
40,651
6,032
279
132
(3,617)
(1,421)
(3,318)

$

44,640

The fair value of inventory was estimated at retail selling price less estimated costs to sell and a reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort.
The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated remaining useful lives of 20 years for the buildings and 7 to 30 years for equipment.
The $4.4 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights included in intangibles was based on an income approach and management believes the
level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.
The $1.0 million fair value of the wholesale fuel supply agreements was based on an income approach, and management believes the level and timing of cash
flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel supply agreements are being amortized on an accelerated basis over an estimated
useful life of approximately 10 years.
Pro Forma Results
Our pro forma results, giving effect to the State Oil Assets, Franchised Holiday Stores, Erickson and One Stop acquisitions and assuming an acquisition date
of January 1, 2015 for each acquisition, would have been (in thousands, except per unit amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015
(unaudited)

Total revenues

$

1,996,205

$

2,613,011

Net income

$

7,208

$

6,739

Net income per limited partnership unit

$

0.11

$

0.18
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Note 4. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
We have classified four and seven retail sites as held for sale at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. These assets are expected to be sold within a year
of the date they were initially classified as held for sale. Assets held for sale were as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Land

$

Buildings and site improvements
Equipment and other
Total
Less accumulated depreciation

882

December 31,
2015
$

1,054

1,558

702

1,225

2,638

4,478

(527)

Assets held for sale

$

1,695

2,111

(1,190)
$

3,288

During the third quarter of 2015, we sold one site for $1.8 million, resulting in a gain of $1.3 million. In addition, we divested certain assets acquired in the
PMI acquisition through several transactions occurring throughout 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2015, total proceeds from these sales amounted to
$3.1 million, resulting in net gains of $1.5 million.
Note 5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
General
We measure and report certain financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). U.S. GAAP specifies a three-level
hierarchy that is used when measuring and disclosing fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices available in active
markets (i.e., observable inputs) and the lowest priority to data lacking transparency (i.e., unobservable inputs). An instrument’s categorization within the fair
value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of significant input to its valuation. The following is a description of the three hierarchy levels.
Level 1—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities. Active
markets are considered to be those in which transactions for the assets or liabilities occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.
Level 2—Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
asset or liability. This category includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in inactive markets.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs are not corroborated by market data. This category is comprised of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies using significant inputs that are generally less readily
observable from objective sources.
Transfers into or out of any hierarchy level are recognized at the end of the reporting period in which the transfers occurred. There were no transfers between
any levels in 2016 or 2015.
As further discussed in Note 18, we have accrued for unvested phantom units and vested and unvested profits interests as a liability and adjust that liability
on a recurring basis based on the market price of our common units each balance sheet date. Such fair value measurements are deemed Level 1 measurements.
The fair value of our accounts receivable, notes receivable, and accounts payable approximated their carrying values as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 due
to the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of the revolving credit facility approximated its carrying values of $441.5 million as of
December 31, 2016 and $358.4 million as of December 31, 2015, due to the frequency with which interest rates are reset and the consistency of the market
spread.
Nonfinancial assets, such as property and equipment, and nonfinancial liabilities are recognized at their carrying amounts in our balance sheets. U.S. GAAP
does not permit nonfinancial assets and liabilities to be remeasured at their fair values on a recurring basis. However, U.S. GAAP requires the remeasurement
of such assets and liabilities to their fair values upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the impairment of property and equipment, intangible assets or
goodwill. In addition, if such an event
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occurs, U.S. GAAP requires the disclosure of the fair value of the asset or liability along with other information, including the gain or loss recognized in
income in the period the remeasurement occurred.
Note 6. RECEIVABLES
Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Balance as of beginning of year

$

Increase in allowance charged to expense

2015

1,090

$

36

Accounts charged against the allowance, net of recoveries
$

487

$

136

521

(639)

Balance as of end of year

2014
754

618

(185)
$

1,090

—
$

754

Notes receivable from lessee dealers totaled $3.5 million and $0.8 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and are included in other current
assets and other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
Note 7. INVENTORIES
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016

2015

Retail site merchandise

$

$

Motor fuel
Inventories

8,374
4,790

11,354
4,385

$

13,164

$

15,739

Note 8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Land

$

Buildings and site improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment and other
Construction in progress
Property and equipment, at cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

2015

280,400
346,834

$

9,095

8,867

169,245

140,264

3,173

3,666

808,747

722,959

(131,418)

Property and equipment, net

$

251,632
318,530

677,329

(94,395)
$

628,564

Other in the table above consists primarily of the assets related to our asset retirement obligations and computer hardware and software.
Approximately $581.7 million of property and equipment, net was used for leasing purposes at December 31, 2016.
We are the lessee in certain sale-leaseback transactions for certain retail sites, and because we have continuing involvement in the underlying retail sites, or
the lease agreement has a repurchase feature, the sale-leaseback arrangements are accounted for as lease financing obligations. The table above includes these
retail sites, as well as certain leases accounted for as capital leases. The total cost and accumulated amortization of property and equipment recorded by us
under sale leaseback transactions and capital leases was $101.0 million and $23.9 million, respectively, at December 31, 2016 and $58.4 million and $17.0
million, respectively, at December 31, 2015.
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See Note 13 for future minimum rental payments on capital lease obligations and Note 11 for future minimum rental payments on sale-leaseback obligations.
Depreciation expense, including amortization of assets recorded under sale-leasebacks and capital lease obligations, was approximately $39.5 million, $33.7
million and $22.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
In addition to the business combinations discussed in Note 3 and the divestitures discussed in Note 4, we sold 4 retail sites during 2014, resulting in a gain of
$1.7 million.
Note 9. GOODWILL
Changes in goodwill during the year ended December 31, 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Wholesale
Segment
Balance at December 31, 2015

$

Retail
Segment

61,548

$

Consolidated

19,273

Acquisitions

1,720

6,568

Reassignment

6,489

(6,489)

Balance at December 30, 2016

$

69,757

$

19,352

$

80,821
8,288
—

$

89,109

Our business model includes the conversion of retail sites from company operated retail sites to lessee dealers. As a result of these conversions, there is a
reduction in future cash flows in the Retail segment and an expected increase in future cash flows that will be received by the Wholesale segment subsequent
to the date of conversion. The effect of these conversions, for the period ended December 31, 2016, is a $6.5 million reassignment of goodwill originally
assigned to the Retail segment to the Wholesale segment.
Note 10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2016
Gross Amount
Wholesale fuel supply
contracts/rights
Trademarks
Covenant not to compete
Below market leases
Total intangible assets

December 31, 2015

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross Amount

Net Carrying
Amount

$

118,201
1,094
4,131
12,081

$

(44,298)
(685)
(2,503)
(7,261)

$

73,903
409
1,628
4,820

$

105,181
2,494
3,911
11,181

$

(32,498)
(1,264)
(1,600)
(5,090)

$

72,683
1,230
2,311
6,091

$

135,507

$

(54,747)

$

80,760

$

122,767

$

(40,452)

$

82,315

Intangible assets associated with wholesale fuel supply contracts/rights are amortized over 10 years using either an accelerated or straightline amortization
method as appropriate. Trademarks are amortized over 5 years. Covenants not to compete are amortized over the shorter of the contract term or 5 years.
Intangible assets associated with above and below market leases are amortized over the lease term, which approximates 5 years.
Amortization expense, including amortization of above and below market lease intangible assets, which is classified as rent expense, was $13.7 million,
$13.4 million and $11.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Aggregate amortization expense is expected to be
$13.6 million, $12.6 million, $10.1 million, $9.9 million, and $9.5 million for the years ending December 31, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021,
respectively.
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Note 11. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2016
Equity-based incentive compensation

$

1,758

Professional fees
Taxes other than income

2015
$

3,266

464

804

7,177

3,311

Accrued interest

993

898

Termination benefits

151

1,561

—

400

856

734

Acquisition costs
Current portion of sale leaseback obligations
Current portion of environmental liabilities

1,602

903

Other

2,704

4,668

$

Total accrued expenses

15,705

$

16,545

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2016
Environmental liabilities

$

Security deposits

2,567

2015
$

9,443

Above market leases
Sale leaseback obligations, net of deferred financing fees
Other
$

Total other long-term liabilities
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1,850
7,176

4,841

6,691

77,412

26,918

5,990

4,567

100,253

$

47,202

Sale Leaseback Obligations
We are the lessee in certain sale-leaseback transactions for certain retail sites that expire through 2032, and as we have continuing involvement in the
underlying retail sites, or the lease agreement has a repurchase feature, the sale-leaseback arrangements are accounted for as lease financing obligations. In
lieu of recognizing rent expense for the lease rental payments, we record interest expense, which amounted to $3.3 million, $2.4 million and $2.5 million for
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The future minimum lease payments under sale leaseback financing obligations as of December 31, 2016 are as follows
(in thousands):

Sale Leaseback
Obligations
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

Total future minimum lease payments
Less interest component

6,515
6,603
6,670
6,647
6,738
69,672
102,845
70,371

Present value of minimum lease payments
Plus net book value of property at end of lease
Plus deferred gain to be recognized at end of lease

32,474
20,410
26,261

Gross sale leaseback obligations
Current portion

79,145
856

Long-term portion
Deferred financing costs, net

78,289
877

Long-term portion, net of deferred financing costs

$

77,412

Renegotiation of Rocky Top Purchase Obligation
In connection with the Rocky Top acquisition completed in September 2013, we entered into a deferred seller financing arrangement, which obligated us to
purchase certain retail sites over a 5-year period for an average of $5.2 million per year beginning in 2016 at an approximately 7.7% capitalization rate. In
June 2016, we renegotiated the terms with the sellers, eliminating the deferred seller financing obligation and agreeing to terms of a new lease of the assets for
an initial term of 15 years and 8 months with four renewal options of five years each. Under this triple net lease, annual rent is initially $1.8 million based on
a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases 1.5% per year. However, because of the continuing involvement we have with the retail sites through the lease and
sublease of the properties, we recorded the liability on our balance sheet at fair value on the date of the reclassification, which approximated its carrying
value. During the second quarter of 2016, we reclassified the liability from debt and capital lease obligations to lease financing obligations within accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. See Note 12 for additional information.
Sale Leaseback Transaction
In December 2016, we sold the real property at 17 retail sites acquired through the State Oil Assets acquisition for cash proceeds of $25.0 million, which were
used to repay borrowings on the credit facility. We lease these properties for an initial term of 15 years with three renewal options of approximately five years
each. Under the triple net lease, annual rent is initially $1.6 million based on a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases every 5 years based on inflation.
Because of the continuing involvement we have with the retail sites through the lease and sublease of the properties, we recorded a liability for the proceeds
received and will amortize this liability over the lease term as rent payments are made.
Asset Retirement Obligations
Environmental laws in the U.S. require the permanent closure of USTs within one to two years after the USTs are no longer in service, depending on the
jurisdiction in which the USTs are located. We have estimated that USTs at our owned retail sites will remain in service approximately 30 years and that we
will have an obligation to remove those USTs at that time. For our leased retail sites, our lease agreements generally require that we remove certain
improvements, primarily USTs and signage, upon
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termination of the lease, and so an asset retirement obligation is incurred upon entering the lease. There are no assets that are legally restricted for purposes of
settling our asset retirement obligations.
A rollforward of our asset retirement obligation is below (in thousands):

December 31,
2016
Beginning balance
Recognition of asset retirement obligations
Changes in estimated cash flows or settlement dates
Accretion
Obligations settled

$

23,484
3,205
(291)
1,403
(51)

Total balance
Current portion, classified within accrued expenses and other current liabilities

2015
$

19,109
4,098
(591)
1,189
(321)

27,750
—
$

Long-term portion, classified within noncurrent other liabilities

27,750

23,484
319
$

23,165

Note 12. DEBT
Our balances for long-term debt and capital lease obligations are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2016
$550 million revolving credit facility

$

2015

441,500

Financing obligation associated with Rocky Top acquisition
Note payable
Capital lease obligations

$

358,412

—

26,250

822

876

28,455

30,248

Total debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion

470,777
2,100

415,786
7,608

Noncurrent portion
Deferred financing fees

468,677
(3,558)

408,178
(4,464)

$

Noncurrent portion, net of deferred financing fees

465,119

$

403,714

The following represents principal payments on debt and future minimum lease payments on capital lease obligations for the next five years (in thousands):

Capital Lease
Obligations

Debt
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

57
765
441,500
—
—
—

$

2,803
2,894
2,986
3,080
3,175
18,590

Total
$

2,860
3,659
444,486
3,080
3,175
18,590

Total future minimum lease payments
Less interest component

442,322
—

33,528
5,073

475,850
5,073

Present value of minimum lease payments
Current portion

442,322
57

28,455
2,043

470,777
2,100

$

Long-term portion
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$

26,412

$

468,677
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Renegotiation of Rocky Top Purchase Obligation
As discussed in Note 11, we renegotiated the terms of a deferred seller financing obligation that obligated us to purchase certain retail sites. As a result,
during the second quarter of 2016, we reclassified the liability associated with this financing obligation from debt and capital lease obligations to lease
financing obligations included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. See
Note 11 for additional information.
Capital Lease Obligations
In May 2012, the Predecessor Entities entered into a 15-year master lease agreement with renewal options of up to an additional 20 years with Getty. Pursuant
to the lease, the Predecessor Entities leased 105 retail sites in Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Maine. The lease was assigned to the Partnership. In
December 2012, the agreement was amended to add an additional 25 retail sites in New Jersey. Since then, the agreement has been amended from time to time
to add an insignificant number of additional retail sites. We pay fixed rent, which increases 1.5% per year. In addition, the lease requires contingent rent
payments based on gallons of motor fuel sold. During the initial 3.5 years of the lease, we were required to make capital expenditures of at least $1.0 million
at the New Jersey retail sites, which requirement has been met.
Because the fair value of the land at lease inception was estimated to represent more than 25% of the total fair value of the real property subject to the lease,
the land element of the lease was analyzed for operating or capital treatment separately from the rest of the property subject to the lease. The land element of
the lease was classified as an operating lease and all of the other property was classified as a capital lease. As such, future minimum lease payments are
included in both the capital lease obligations table above as well as the operating lease table in Note 13.
Through December 31, 2016, certain retail sites have been or are in the process of being terminated from the lease. Any property and equipment or capital
lease obligations associated with these retail sites were removed from the balance sheet, which resulted in a gain of $0.4 million for 2014, which is classified
as a reduction of rent expense.
Credit Facility
The credit facility is a senior secured revolving credit facility maturing on March 4, 2019, with a total borrowing capacity of $550.0 million, under which
swing-line loans may be drawn up to $25.0 million and standby letters of credit may be issued up to an aggregate of $45.0 million. The credit facility may be
increased, from time to time, upon our written request, subject to certain conditions, up to an additional $100.0 million. Letters of credit outstanding at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 totaled $6.5 million and $16.0 million, respectively. The amount of availability at December 31, 2016 under the revolving
credit facility, after taking into account outstanding letters of credit and debt covenant constraints, was $94.1 million. In connection with future acquisitions,
the revolving credit facility requires, among other things that we have, after giving effect to such acquisition, at least $20.0 million, in the aggregate, of
borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash on the balance sheet on the date of such acquisition. All obligations under the
credit facility are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Partnership and its subsidiaries.
Outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin, which was 3.25% at December 31, 2016. Our
borrowings had a weighted-average interest rate of 3.53% at December 31, 2016.
We are required to comply with certain financial covenants under the credit facility. We are required to maintain a total leverage ratio (as defined) for the
most recently completed four fiscal quarters of less than or equal to 4.50 : 1.00, except for periods following a material acquisition. The total leverage ratio
shall not exceed 5.00 : 1.00 for the first three full fiscal quarters following the closing of a material acquisition. The ratio shall not exceed 5.50 : 1.00 upon
the issuance of Qualified Senior Notes (as defined) in the aggregate principal amount of $175.0 million or greater. We are also required to maintain a senior
leverage ratio (as defined) after the issuance of Qualified Senior Notes of $175.0 million or greater of less than or equal to 3.00 : 1.00 and a consolidated
interest coverage ratio (as defined) of at least 2.75 : 1.00.
The credit facility prohibits us from making distributions to our unitholders if any potential default or event of default occurs or would result from the
distribution, or we are not in compliance with our financial covenants. In addition, the credit facility contains various covenants which may limit, among
other things, our ability to grant liens; create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist other indebtedness; or make any material change to the nature of our business,
including mergers, liquidations, and dissolutions; and make certain investments, acquisitions or dispositions.
In December 2016, the credit facility was amended as summarized below:
•

Modified certain terms to permit the acquisition of our general partner indirectly by Couche-Tard;

•

Reduced the threshold for qualifying as a “material acquisition” from $50 million to $30 million;
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•

Extended the time period from two to three quarters that the leverage ratio following a material acquisition can be 5.00 : 1.00;

•

Created further flexibility to conduct sale leaseback transactions;

•

Increased swing-line loan capacity from $10 million to $25 million; and

•

Certain other operational and technical amendments.

In connection with the December 2016 amendment, we incurred $0.7 million in deferred financing costs.
Note Payable
In connection with the June 2013 acquisition of certain retail sites in Florida noted previously, we issued a $1.0 million note payable with interest at 4.0%.
The note matures July 1, 2018, at which time a balloon payment for all outstanding principal and any unpaid interest is due. The loan is secured by all the
real and personal property at these retail sites.
Note 13. OPERATING LEASES
Operating Leases of Retail Sites as Lessee
We lease retail sites from third parties under certain non-cancelable operating leases that expire from time to time through 2030.
The future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of December 31, 2016 were as follows (in thousands):

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

17,348
15,375
13,810
11,569
9,093
39,138

Total future minimum lease payments

$

106,333

The future minimum lease payments presented above do not include contingent rent based on future inflation, future revenues or volumes, or amounts that
may be paid as reimbursements for certain operating costs incurred by the lessor. Most lease agreements include provisions for renewals.
Contingent rent expense, based on gallons sold, was approximately $2.1 million, $1.3 million and $1.0 million for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Operating Leases of Retail Sites as Lessor
Motor fuel stations are leased to tenants under operating leases with various expiration dates ranging through 2031.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with third parties, CST and DMS as of December 31, 2016 were as follows (in
thousands):

Third Parties
2017
2018
2019

$

2020
2021
Thereafter
Total future minimum lease payments

31,947
25,564
19,694

CST
$

15,869
14,157
47,152
$

154,383
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14,483
14,483
14,483

DMS
$

14,483
14,483
48,273
$

120,688

15,541
15,801
16,038

Total
$

16,278
16,522
107,579
$

187,759

61,971
55,848
50,215
46,630
45,162
203,004

$

462,830

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Through the first five years of the lease with DMS, the lease agreement allows for a limited number of sites to be removed from the lease by each of DMS and
us. This right generally expires October 31, 2017.
The future minimum lease payments presented above do not include contingent rent based on future inflation, future revenues or volumes of the lessee, or
amounts that may be received as tenant reimbursements for certain operating costs. Most lease agreements include provisions for renewals.
Deferred rent income from straight-line rent relates to the cumulative amount by which straight-line rental income recorded to date exceeds cash rents billed
to date under the lease agreement and totaled $5.6 million and $3.6 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Note 14. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
We currently own or lease retail sites where refined petroleum products are being or have been handled. These retail sites and the refined petroleum products
handled thereon may be subject to federal and state environmental laws and regulations. Under such laws and regulations, we could be required to remove or
remediate containerized hazardous liquids or associated generated wastes (including wastes disposed of or abandoned by prior owners or operators), to
remediate contaminated property arising from the release of liquids or wastes into the environment, including contaminated groundwater, or to implement
best management practices to prevent future contamination.
We maintain insurance of various types with varying levels of coverage that is considered adequate under the circumstances to cover operations and
properties. The insurance policies are subject to deductibles that are considered reasonable and not excessive. In addition, we have entered into
indemnification and escrow agreements with various sellers in conjunction with several of their respective acquisitions, as further described below. Financial
responsibility for environmental remediation is negotiated in connection with each acquisition transaction. In each case, an assessment is made of potential
environmental liability exposure based on available information. Based on that assessment and relevant economic and risk factors, a determination is made
whether to, and the extent to which we will assume liability for existing environmental conditions.
The table below presents a rollforward of our environmental liability (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Beginning balance

$

2015

Provision for new environmental losses
Changes in estimates for previously incurred losses
Payments

2,753 $
—
1,951
(535)

1,074
1,228
781
(330)

Ending balance
Current portion

4,169
1,602

2,753
903

Long-term portion

$

2,567

$

1,850

A t December 31, 2016, we were indemnified by third-party escrow funds, state funds or insurance totaling $4.2 million, which are recorded as
indemnification assets. State funds represent probable state reimbursement amounts. Reimbursement will depend upon the continued maintenance and
solvency of the state. Insurance coverage represents amounts deemed probable of reimbursement under insurance policies.
The estimates used in these reserves are based on all known facts at the time and an assessment of the ultimate remedial action outcomes. We will adjust loss
accruals as further information becomes available or circumstances change. Among the many uncertainties that impact the estimates are the necessary
regulatory approvals for, and potential modifications of remediation plans, the amount of data available upon initial assessment of the impact of soil or water
contamination, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and equipment and the possibility of existing legal claims giving rise to
additional claims.
Environmental liabilities related to the contributed retail sites have not been assigned to us, and are still the responsibility of certain of the Predecessor
Entities. Under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, certain of the Predecessor Entities must indemnify us for any costs or expenses that we incur for
environmental liabilities and third-party claims, regardless of when a claim is made, that are based on environmental conditions in existence at contributed
retail sites prior to the closing of the IPO. Certain of the Predecessor Entities are beneficiaries of escrow accounts created to cover the cost to remediate certain
environmental liabilities. In addition, certain of the Predecessor Entities maintain insurance policies to cover environmental liabilities and/or, where
available, participate
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in state programs that may also assist in funding the costs of environmental liabilities. Certain retail sites that were contributed to us were identified as having
existing environmental liabilities that are not covered by escrow accounts, state funds or insurance policies. For more information on the Amended Omnibus
Agreement, see Note 15.
The following table presents a summary rollforward for 2016 of the Predecessor Entities’ environmental liabilities associated with retail sites contributed to
us, on an undiscounted basis (in thousands):

2016
Beginning balance
Changes in estimates for previously incurred losses
Payments

$

7,027 $
316
(1,243)

$

Ending balance

December 31,
2015

6,100

7,584
539
(1,096)

$

7,027

A significant portion of the Predecessor Entities’ environmental reserves have corresponding indemnification assets. The breakdown of the indemnification
assets as of December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

2016
Escrowed funds
State funds
Insurance coverage
Total indemnification assets

December 31,
2015

$

1,198
2,431
1,455

$

1,400
3,038
580

$

5,084

$

5,018

Note 15. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with CST
Fuel Sales and Rental Income
We sell wholesale motor fuel under a master fuel distribution agreement to 43 CST retail sites and lease real property on 74 retail sites to CST under a master
lease agreement each having initial 10-year terms. The fuel distribution agreement provides us with a fixed wholesale mark-up per gallon. The master lease
agreement is a triple net lease.
Revenues from wholesale fuel sales and real property rental income from CST were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Revenues from motor fuel sales to CST
Rental income from CST

2015

2014

$

118,745

$

135,813

$

13,186

$

17,188

$

11,422

$

546

Receivables from CST were $4.4 million and $2.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to these transactions.
Amended Omnibus Agreement and Management Fees
We incurred $15.9 million, $15.3 million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, including incentive
compensation costs and non-cash stock-based compensation expense under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, which are recorded as a component of
operating expenses and general and administrative expenses in the statement of operations. Effective January 1, 2016, the fixed billing component of the
management fee under the Amended Omnibus Agreement was increased to $856,000 per month, which was approved on our behalf by the independent
conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST. At the end of each calendar year, we and CST have the
right to negotiate a reduction or increase to the amounts due under the Amended Omnibus Agreement for such year. CST and we also have the right to
negotiate the amount of the annual management fee as circumstances require. Amounts payable to CST related to these transactions were $10.0 million and
$8.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See Note 17 for additional information on the settlement of amounts due under the Amended
Omnibus Agreement that were settled in our common units.
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CST Fuel Supply Equity Interests
CST Fuel Supply provides wholesale motor fuel distribution to the majority of CST’s U.S. Retail retail sites on a fixed markup per gallon. We owned a 17.5%
total interest in CST Fuel Supply at December 31, 2016 and 2015. We account for the income derived from our equity interest of CST Fuel Supply as
“Income from CST Fuel Supply equity” on our statement of operations, which amounted to $16.0 million and $10.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.
Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST
In February 2016, we purchased 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million with historic annual volumes of
approximately 20 million gallons. This transaction was approved on our behalf by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive
committee of the board of directors of CST. Since this was a transaction between entities under common control, the $2.9 million purchase price was
accounted for as a distribution recorded in partners’ capital.
We purchase the fuel supplied to these 32 retail sites from CST Fuel Supply, of which we own a 17.5% interest, and resell the wholesale motor fuel to the
independent dealers and subwholesalers. We purchased $20.4 million of motor fuel from CST Fuel Supply for the year ended December 31, 2016 in
connection with these 32 retail sites.
Refund payment related to CST sale of California and Wyoming Assets
In July 2016, CST provided a refund payment to us related to our 17.5% interest in CST Fuel Supply resulting from the sale by CST of 79 retail sites in
California and Wyoming to 7-Eleven, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SEI Fuel Services, Inc., to which CST Fuel Supply no longer supplies motor
fuel. The purpose of the refund payment was to make us whole for the decrease in the value of our interest in CST Fuel Supply arising from sales volume
decreases. The total refund payment received by us, as approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the
board of directors of CST, was approximately $18.2 million ($17.5 million in cash with the remainder in CrossAmerica common units owned by CST) and
was accounted for as a contribution to equity.
IDR and Common Unit Distributions
We distributed $3.4 million and $1.4 million to CST related to its ownership of our IDRs and $15.5 million and $8.1 million related to its ownership of our
common units during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Wholesale Motor Fuel Sales and Real Estate Rentals
Revenues from motor fuel sales and rental income from DMS and its affiliates were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Revenues from motor fuel sales to DMS and its
affiliates

$

254,292

$

322,918

$

676,210

Rental income from DMS and its affiliates

$

21,208

$

23,474

$

25,083

Receivables from DMS and its affiliates totaled $8.6 million and $7.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Revenues from rental income from Topstar was $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
We lease real estate from certain entities affiliated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr. Rent expense paid to these entities was $0.9 million, $0.9 million and $0.8
million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Maintenance and Environmental Costs
Certain maintenance and environmental monitoring and remediation activities are performed by a related party of Joseph V. Topper, Jr. as approved by the
independent conflicts committee of the Board. We incurred charges with this related party of $1.6 million, $1.3 million, and $1.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
93

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aircraft Usage Costs
From time to time, we lease, on a non-exclusive basis, aircraft owned by a group of individuals that includes Joseph V. Topper, Jr. and John B. Reilly, III,
members of our Board, as previously approved in August 2013 by the independent conflicts committee of the Board. CrossAmerica incurred an immaterial
amount of lease costs related to these aircraft in 2016. Lease costs incurred by us for use of these aircraft were $0.2 million and $0.3 million for the years
ended 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Principal Executive Offices
Our principal executive offices are in Allentown, Pennsylvania. Through February 2016, we subleased office space from CST that CST leased from DMI.
Since February 2016, we have subleased office space from CST that CST leased from an affiliate of John B. Reilly, III, a director of our Board. The
management fee charged by CST to us under the Amended Omnibus Agreement incorporates this rental expense, which amounted to $0.1 million and $0.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. In addition, we paid amounts directly to DMI and the affiliate of J.B. Reilly, III
amounting to $0.5 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Note 16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Purchase Commitments
The future minimum volume purchase requirements under the existing supply agreements are approximate gallons, with a purchase price at prevailing market
rates for wholesale distributions. We purchased approximately 869.6 million, 884.6 million and 869.5 million gallons of motor fuel under the existing supply
agreements for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The following provides total annual future minimum volume purchase
requirements (in thousands of gallons):

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

385,271
316,362
284,454
32,749
25,000
75,000
1,118,836

Total

In the event for a given contract year we fail to purchase the required minimum volume, the underlying third party’s exclusive remedies (depending on the
magnitude of the failure) are either termination of the supply agreement and/or a financial penalty per gallon based on the volume shortfall for the given year.
We did not incur any significant penalties for the periods presented.
Litigation Matters
We are from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. These actions typically
seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury, breach of contract, property damages, environmental damages, employment-related
claims and damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and
proceedings, we record a reserve when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, we
disclose matters for which management believes a material loss is at least reasonably possible. None of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, are
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In all instances, management has
assessed the matter based on current information and made a judgment concerning its potential outcome, giving due consideration to the nature of the claim,
the amount and nature of damages sought and the probability of success. Management’s judgment may prove materially inaccurate, and such judgment is
made subject to the known uncertainties of litigation.
We are a co-defendant, together with our General Partner, CST and CST Services LLC, in a lawsuit brought by Charles Nifong, a former employee of CST
Services LLC who previously provided services to us as Chief Investment Officer and Vice President of Finance (Court of Common Pleas, Lehigh County,
Pennsylvania, case number 2015-1003). The plaintiff alleges breach of contract and associated claims relating to his termination of employment and claimed
severance benefits under the EICP totaling approximately $1.6 million. We intend to contest the action vigorously. Under the EICP, we are obligated to pay
reasonable legal expenses incurred by the plaintiff in connection with this dispute whether we are successful in our defense or not.
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Note 17. PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
In 2016, we issued 107,227 common units (net of units withheld for income taxes) as a result of the vesting of phantom units and conversion of profits
interests previously issued primarily to CST employees who provide services principally to CrossAmerica. See Note 18 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements for additional information.
In January 2015, we issued 1,497,946 common units to a subsidiary of CST in connection with the acquisition of a 5% interest in CST Fuel Supply. See
Notes 3 and 15 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
In March 2015, we issued 90,671 common units (net of units withheld for income taxes) as a result of the vesting of phantom units previously issued
primarily to CST employees who provide services principally to CrossAmerica. See Note 18 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for
additional information.
On June 19, 2015, we closed on the sale of 4.6 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $138.5 million. On July 16, 2015, CrossAmerica
closed on the sale of an additional 0.2 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $6.4 million in accordance with the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional common units associated with the June offering. CrossAmerica used the net proceeds from this offering to reduce indebtedness
outstanding under its revolving credit facility.
On July 1, 2015, we issued 3,303,208 of our common units to a subsidiary of CST in connection with the acquisition of an additional 12.5% equity interest
in CST Fuel Supply. See Notes 3 and 15 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
On July 1, 2015, we issued 338,098 of our common units to subsidiaries of CST in connection with the acquisition of real property at 29 NTIs. See Note 3 of
the notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
Common Units Issued to CST as Consideration for Amounts Due Under the Terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement
As approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of CST’s board of directors, the Partnership and CST
mutually agreed to settle, from time to time, some or all of the amounts due under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement in newly issued common
units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. We issued the following common units to CST as consideration for amounts due under the
terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement:

Period
Quarter ended June 30, 2015
Quarter ended September 30, 2015
Quarter ended December 31, 2015
Quarter ended March 31, 2016
Quarter ended June 30, 2016
Quarter ended September 30, 2016
Quarter ended December 31, 2016

Date of Issuance
July 16, 2015
October 26, 2015
March 31, 2016
May 9, 2016
August 2, 2016
October 27, 2016
*

* Expected to be issued on February 28, 2017
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Common Unit Repurchase Program
In November 2015, the Board approved a CrossAmerica common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing us to
repurchase up to an aggregate of $25.0 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, we may
make purchases in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan
under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The CrossAmerica common unit repurchase
program does not require us to acquire any specific number of our common units and may be suspended or terminated by us at any time without prior notice.
The purchases will not be made from any officer, director or control person of the Partnership or CST. The Merger Agreement prohibits us from making any
further repurchases of our common units. The following table shows the purchases made through December 31, 2016:

Total Number of
Units Purchased

Period
January 1 - December 31, 2015
January 1 - March 31, 2016
April 1 - June 30, 2016
July 1 - September 30, 2016
October 1 - December 31, 2016

Average Price Paid
per Unit

154,158
112,492
20,971
—
—

$
$
$
$
$

23.37
24.47
23.86
—
—

287,621

Total

Total Cost of Units
Purchased

Amount Remaining
under the Program

$
$
$
$
$

3,603,071
2,752,240
500,413
—
—

$
$
$
$
$

21,396,929
18,644,689
18,144,276
18,144,276
18,144,276

$

6,855,724

$

18,144,276

CST Purchases of CrossAmerica Common Units
On September 21, 2015, CST announced that the independent executive committee of its board of directors approved a CrossAmerica common unit purchase
program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, authorizing CST to purchase up to an aggregate of $50 million of the common units representing limited
partner interests in CrossAmerica. The common unit purchase program does not have a fixed expiration date and may be modified, suspended or terminated at
any time at CST’s discretion.
CST made no purchases under the unit purchase program during the year ended December 31, 2016. From inception until December 31, 2016, CST had
purchased $19.8 million, or 804,667 common units, at an average price of $24.64 per common unit, which units cannot be transferred absent registration with
the SEC or an available exemption from the SEC’s registration requirements. The Merger Agreement prohibits CST from making any further purchases of
CrossAmerica common units.
Distributions
Quarterly distribution activity for 2016 was as follows:

Quarter Ended
March 31, 2016
June 30, 2016
September 30, 2016
December 31, 2016

Record Date
May 19, 2016
August 8, 2016
November 4, 2016
February 6, 2017

Cash Distribution (per
unit)

Payment Date
May 31, 2016
August 15, 2016
November 15, 2016
February 13, 2017

$
$
$
$

0.5975
0.6025
0.6075
0.6125

Cash Distribution (in
thousands)
$
$
$
$

19,618
19,910
20,125
20,359

Conversion of Subordinated Units
On February 25, 2016, the first business day after the payment of the distribution of $0.5925 per unit for the fourth quarter 2015, the subordination period
under the Partnership Agreement ended. At that time, each outstanding subordinated unit converted into one common unit and participates pro rata with the
other common units in cash distributions.
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Note 18. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION
CrossAmerica Equity-Based Awards
The maximum number of common units that may be delivered with respect to awards under the Plan is 1,505,000. Generally, the Plan provides for grants of
restricted units, unit options, performance awards, phantom units, unit awards, unit appreciation rights, distribution equivalent rights, and other unit-based
awards, with various limits and restrictions attached to these awards on a grant-by-grant basis. The Plan is administered by the Board or a committee thereof.
The Board may terminate or amend the Plan at any time with respect to any common units for which a grant has not yet been made. The Board also has the
right to alter or amend the Plan or any part of the Plan from time to time, including increasing the number of common units that may be granted, subject to
unitholder approval as required by the exchange upon which common units are listed at that time; however, no change in any outstanding grant may be made
that would adversely affect the rights of a participant with respect to awards granted to a participant prior to the effective date of such amendment or
termination, except that the Board may amend any award to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan will expire on
the tenth anniversary of its approval, when common units are no longer available under the Plan for grants or upon its termination by the Board, whichever
occurs first.
In March 2014, we contributed our investments in our operating subsidiaries and certain other assets and liabilities to LGP Operations. Since March 2014,
LGP Operations granted profits interests, which are represented by Class B Units in LGP Operations. Upon vesting, Class B Unitholders will be entitled to
receive cash distributions proportionate to those received by common unitholders. Class B Units are redeemable two years after they were granted, subject to
certain limitations, for cash or common units of CrossAmerica at the discretion of the Board.
Because the Class B Units are an interest in the equity of LGP Operations, they represent a noncontrolling interest from our perspective. As such, the Class B
Units are presented as a noncontrolling interest on the balance sheet and the Class B Unitholders’ interest in the net income of LGP Operations is presented as
net income attributable to noncontrolling interests on the statement of operations.
We record equity-based compensation as a component of general and administrative expenses in the statements of operations. Compensation expense for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $1.3 million, $3.0 million and $11.4 million, respectively.
In connection with the GP Purchase, as specified in the EICP, all unvested awards held by executive officers and other participants (as defined under the
EICP) vested on October 1, 2014. The incremental charge recorded in 2014 associated with the accelerated vesting of these awards was approximately $4.5
million.
There were no grants of equity-based awards in 2016 to employees.
It is the intent of CrossAmerica to settle the phantom units upon vesting by issuing common units and to settle the profits interests upon conversion by the
grantee by issuing common units. However, the awards may be settled in cash at the discretion of the Board.
Since we grant awards to employees of CST, and since the grants may be settled in cash, unvested phantom units and vested and unvested profits interests
receive fair value variable accounting treatment. As such, they are measured at fair value at each balance sheet reporting date and the cumulative
compensation cost recognized is classified as a liability, which is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet. The balance of the accrual at December 31, 2016 and 2015 totaled $1.8 million and $3.3 million, respectively. The weighted average period over
which compensation expense related to nonvested awards will be recognized was approximately five months as of December 31, 2016.
CST Awards
In addition to our equity-based awards previously discussed, CST also granted equity-based awards of approximately 102,000 and 163,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which were granted to certain employees of CST for services rendered on our behalf. Expense associated
with these awards that was charged to us under the Amended Omnibus Agreement was $2.3 million and $2.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively.
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Awards to Members of the Board
During 2016, we also granted the following awards to members of the Board as a portion of director compensation:

Phantom Units
Non-vested at beginning of period
Granted
Vested

11,476
5,364
(11,476)
5,364

Non-vested at end of period
Note 19. NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT

Under the Partnership Agreement, a subsidiary of CST, as the holder of CrossAmerica’s IDRs, has an interest in distributions from CrossAmerica that are
increasing percentages starting at 15% of quarterly distributions out of the operating surplus (as defined in our Partnership Agreement) in excess of $0.5031
per limited partner unit.
In addition to the common units, we have identified the IDRs as participating securities and compute income per unit using the two-class method under
which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to the partners based on their respective sharing of income as specified in the
Partnership Agreement. Net income per unit applicable to limited partners (including common and subordinated unitholders) is computed by dividing the
limited partners’ interest in net income (loss), after deducting the IDRs, by the weighted-average number of outstanding common units.
As discussed in Note 17, on February 25, 2016, the subordinated units converted into common units and participates pro-rata with the other common units in
cash distributions.
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of net income (loss) and weighted-average units used in computing basic and diluted net income (loss) per
limited partner unit for the following periods (in thousands, except unit and per unit amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Common Units

Subordinated Units

Common Units

$

$

$

2014

Subordinated
Units

Subordinated
Units

Common Units

Numerator:
Distributions paid(a)
Allocation of distributions in excess of net
income(b)

(68,539)

Limited partners’ interest in net income (loss) basic
Adjustment for phantom units
Limited partners’ interest in net income (loss) diluted

75,598

$

4,459

(4,206)

47,798

$

16,781

(18,071)

(3,988)

(2,419)

2,609

—

—

9

—

$

15,652

(29,532)

7,442

253

$

(14,172)

253

$

25,544

(40,356)

7,059

7,059

$

7,451

$

2,609

—
$

(3,988)

—
$

(2,419)

Denominator:
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding - basic
Adjustment for phantom units
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding - diluted

32,159,156

1,151,366

21,462,665

7,525,000

12,402,938

7,525,000

56,848

—

98,738

—

—

—

32,216,004

1,151,366

21,561,403

7,525,000

12,402,938

7,525,000

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit basic

$

0.22

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

$

(0.32)

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit diluted

$

0.22

$

0.22

$

0.35

$

0.35

$

(0.32)

$

(0.32)

(a) Distributions paid per unit were $2.40, $2.23 and $2.08 during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
(b) Allocation of distributions in excess of net income is based on a pro rata proportion to the common and subordinated units as outlined in the Partnership
Agreement.
Note 20. INCOME TAXES
As a limited partnership, we are not subject to federal and state income taxes, however our corporate subsidiaries are subject to income taxes. Income tax
attributable to our taxable income, which may differ significantly from income for financial statement purposes, is assessed at the individual limited partner
unit holder level. We are subject to a statutory requirement that non-qualifying income, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, cannot exceed 10% of total
gross income for the calendar year. If non-qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, we would be taxed as a corporation. The non-qualifying income did
not exceed the statutory limit in any period presented. The reported amounts of our assets, net of the reported amounts of our liabilities, was less than the
related tax basis of assets and liabilities by $9.1 million at December 31, 2016 and greater than the related tax basis by $12.6 million at December 31, 2015.
Certain activities that generate non-qualifying income are conducted through LGWS. LGWS is a tax paying corporate subsidiary of ours that is subject to
federal and state income taxes. Current and deferred income taxes are recognized on the earnings of LGWS. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and are measured using enacted tax rates.
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Components of income tax expense related to net income were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Current:
U.S. federal

$

309

U.S. state

$

1,630

(75)

Total current

234

$

141

944

265

2,574

406

Deferred:
U.S. federal

(1,369)

U.S. state
Total deferred
$

Income tax benefit

(4,279)

(1,963)

682

(1,837)

203

(687)

(6,116)

(1,760)

(453) $

(3,542) $

(1,354)

The difference between the actual income tax provision and income taxes computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate to earnings (losses) before
income taxes is attributable to the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Consolidated income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes - all domestic
(Income) loss from continuing operations before
income taxes of non-taxable entities
Loss from continuing operations before
income taxes of corporate entities

$

10,262

2015
$

(13,408)
$

Federal income tax benefit at statutory rate
Increase (decrease) due to:
Nondeductible expenses
Tax on gains not recognized for book income
Change in valuation allowance
State income taxes, net of federal income tax
benefit
Non-taxable refund
Other
$

Total income tax benefit

100

(3,146) $

7,920

2014
$

(18,409)
(10,489) $

(7,525)
325
(7,200)

(1,070)

(3,566)

(2,448)

(37)
1,104
67

198
—
(247)

3,094
—
(1,972)

40
(589)
32

(343)
—
416

(28)
—
—

(453) $

(3,542) $

(1,354)
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences representing deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2016

2015

Deferred income tax assets:
Deferred rent expense

$

1,244

Above market lease liability

$

747

895

1,516

22,557

23,129

Asset retirement obligations

9,445

7,619

Other assets

1,625

1,935

35,766

34,946

Capital lease and sale leaseback financing obligations

Total deferred income tax assets
Less: Valuation allowance

(5,495)

Net deferred income tax assets

$

30,271

(5,428)
$

29,518

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred rent income
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Other
Total deferred income tax liabilities
$

Net deferred income tax liabilities

982

781

67,523

57,566

3,832

13,078

857

1,702

73,194

73,127

42,923

$

43,609

The change in the balance sheet deferred tax accounts reflects deferred income tax expense and the deferred tax impact of purchase accounting.
The valuation allowance at December 31, 2016 relates primarily to the uncertainty of the availability of future profits to realize the tax benefit of the existing
deductible temporary differences. We believe that we will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the benefits related to the remaining deferred
tax asset. The valuation allowance increase primarily relates to the change in the expected deferred tax rate. In conjunction with our ongoing review of our
actual results and anticipated future earnings, we continuously reassess the possibility of releasing the valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets. It is
reasonably possible that a significant portion of the valuation allowance will be released within the next twelve months.
Changes in the valuation allowance account consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Balance at beginning of period
Charged to costs and expense

$

5,428
67

$

5,675 $
(247)

Balance at end of period

$

5,495

$

5,428

$

7,093
(1,418)
5,675

We provide tax reserves for federal, state and local and uncertain tax positions. The development of these tax positions requires subjective, critical estimates
and judgments about tax matters, potential outcomes and timing. Although the outcome of potential tax examinations is uncertain, in management’s
opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for potential liabilities resulting from these reviews. If actual outcomes differ materially from
these estimates, they could have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations. Differences between actual results and assumptions, or
changes in assumptions in future periods, are recorded in the period they become known. To the extent additional information becomes available prior to
resolution, such accruals are adjusted to reflect probable outcomes.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we did not have unrecognized tax benefits. Our practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax
matters in income tax expense. We had no material interest and penalties for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.
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We file income tax returns with the U.S. federal government as well as the many state jurisdictions in which we operate. The statute remains open for tax years
2013 through 2015; therefore, these years remain subject to examination by federal, state and local jurisdiction authorities.
Note 21. SEGMENT REPORTING
We conduct our business in two segments: 1) the Wholesale segment and 2) the Retail segment. The wholesale segment includes the wholesale distribution
of motor fuel to lessee dealers, independent dealers, commission agents, DMS, CST and company operated retail sites. We have exclusive motor fuel
distribution contracts with lessee dealers who lease the property from us. We also have exclusive distribution contracts with independent dealers to distribute
motor fuel but do not collect rent from the independent dealers. Similar to lessee dealers, we have motor fuel distribution agreements with DMS and CST and
collect rent from both. The Retail segment includes the sale of convenience merchandise items, the retail sale of motor fuel at company operated retail sites
and the retail sale of motor fuel at retail sites operated by commission agents. A commission agent is a retail site where we retain title to the motor fuel
inventory and sell it directly to our end user customers. At commission agent retail sites, we manage motor fuel inventory pricing and retain the gross profit
on motor fuel sales, less a commission to the agent who operates the retail site.
As part of our evaluation of the economic performance of our retail sites, we will from time to time convert company owned retail sites from our Retail
segment to lessee dealers in our Wholesale segment. We have converted 77 company operated retail sites from our Retail segment to lessee dealers in our
Wholesale segment in each of 2016 and 2015. As such, we no longer generate revenues from the retail sale of motor fuel or merchandise at these stores
subsequent to the date of conversion and we no longer incur retail operating expenses related to these retail sites. However, we continue to supply these retail
sites with motor fuel on a wholesale basis pursuant to the fuel supply contract with the lessee dealer. Further, we continue to own/lease the property and earn
rental income under lease/sublease agreements with the lessee dealers under triple net leases. The lessee dealer owns all motor fuel and convenience
merchandise and retains all gross profit on such operating activities.
Prior to 2016, we netted lease executory costs such as real estate taxes, maintenance, and utilities that we paid and re-billed to customers against rental
income on our statement of operations. During the first quarter of 2016, we began accounting for such amounts as rent income and operating expenses and
reflected this change in presentation retrospectively. This change resulted in a $10.8 million and $8.9 million increase in both rent income and operating
expenses for the wholesale segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Unallocated items consist primarily of general and administrative expenses, depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, gains on sales of assets, net,
and the elimination of the Retail segment’s intersegment cost of revenues from motor fuel sales against the Wholesale segment’s intersegment revenues from
motor fuel sales. The profit in ending inventory generated by the intersegment motor fuel sales is also eliminated. Total assets by segment are not presented
as management does not currently assess performance or allocate resources based on that data.
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The following table reflects activity related to our reportable segments (in thousands):
Wholesale

Retail

Unallocated

Consolidated

Year Ended December 31, 2016
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers

$

1,325,563

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales

$

339,758

$

—

$

242,399

—

—

122,084

—

122,084

Rent income

74,955

5,639

—

80,594

Other revenue

1,807

—

—

1,807

Revenues from food and merchandise sales

(242,399)

1,665,321

Total revenues

$

1,644,724

$

467,481

$

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity

$

16,048

$

—

$

Operating income (loss)

$

102,876

$

7,561

$

$

1,492,425

$

508,335

$

(242,399)
—
(78,266)

—

$

1,869,806

$

16,048

$

32,171

$

2,000,760

Year Ended December 31, 2015
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales

—

359,294

—

—

158,716

—

158,716

Rent income

59,956

5,475

—

65,431

Other revenue

1,254

110

—

1,364

Revenues from food and merchandise sales

(359,294)

Total revenues

$

1,912,929

$

672,636

$

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity

$

10,528

$

—

$

Operating income (loss)

$

88,800

$

19,010

$

Wholesale

Retail

(359,294)

—
(81,793)

—

$

2,226,271

$

10,528

$

26,017

Unallocated

Consolidated

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers

$

2,104,128

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales
Revenues from food and merchandise sales
Rent income
Other revenue

$

449,344

$

—

$

(204,276)

2,553,472

204,276

—

—

—

57,603

—

57,603

47,348

5,165

—

52,513

837

443

—

1,280

Total revenues

Operating income (loss)

$

2,356,589

$

512,555

$

(204,276)

$

2,664,868

$

70,012

$

7,246

$

(68,618)

$

8,640
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Note 22. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
The following table summarizes quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

2016 Quarter Ended
March 31

June 30

September 30

December 31

Operating revenues

$

367,740

$

512,644

$

487,950

$

501,472

Gross profit

$

37,190

$

40,515

$

39,138

$

38,724

Operating income

$

5,921

$

9,356

$

9,993

$

6,901

Net income attributable to partners

$

1,767

$

3,626

$

2,989

$

2,322

Basic earnings per common unit (a)

$

0.03

$

0.08

$

0.06

$

0.04

Diluted earnings per common unit (a)

$

0.03

$

0.08

$

0.06

$

0.04

2015 Quarter Ended
March 31

June 30

September 30

December 31

Operating revenues

$

480,457

$

650,136

$

627,802

$

467,876

Gross profit

$

37,727

$

41,171

$

50,969

$

39,597

Operating income (loss)

$

(433)

$

3,674

$

14,830

$

7,946

Net income (loss) attributable to partners

$

(2,966)

$

30

$

10,163

$

4,214

$

(0.13)

$

(0.01)

$

0.29

$

0.11

$

(0.13)

$

(0.01)

$

0.29

$

0.11

Basic earnings (loss) per common

unit (a)

Diluted earnings (loss) per common unit (a)

(a) Earnings (loss) per common unit amounts are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per
share amounts may not equal the annual earnings per share amounts.
Note 23. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
In order to determine net cash provided by operating activities, net income is adjusted by, among other things, changes in current assets and current liabilities
as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Decrease (increase):
Accounts receivable

$

Accounts receivable from related parties

(6,052) $

5,381

$

1,914

(2,104)

(2,428)

3,928

Inventories

4,960

9,857

3,235

Other current assets

2,345

3,092

743

(7,643)

(1,356)

(3,159)

2,132

(12,339)

(20,438)

(1,851)

6,867

2,649

(1,652)

2,553

(1,239)

(11,772)

431

3,837

1,582

(159)

Other assets
Increase (decrease):
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties
Motor fuel taxes payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions

$

(2,966) $

(2,768) $

583

(10,369)

The above changes in current assets and current liabilities may differ from changes between amounts reflected in the applicable balance sheets for the
respective periods due to acquisitions.
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Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds received

2015

$

21,127

$

$

808

$

2014

16,689

$

14,134

5,023(a) $

632

(a) Includes $2.6 million in income tax liabilities assumed in acquisitions.

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Sale of property and equipment in Section 1031 like-kind exchange
transactions

$

(2,232) $

Acquisition of equity investment in CST Fuel Supply funded by
issuance of common units

$

—

$

384

$

—

Acquisition of property through foreclosure on note receivable

$

—

$

930

$

—

Removal of property and equipment and capital lease obligation for
retail sites terminated from Getty lease
Changes in estimate of asset retirement obligations
Issuance of capital lease obligations and recognition of
asset retirement obligation related to Getty lease
Amended Omnibus Agreement fees settled in our
common units
Units issued to CST as consideration for the NTIs and
the equity interest in CST Fuel Supply

$
$

(810) $
(291) $

(322) $

(1,333) $
(591) $

(4,670)

(1,613)
16,877

$

1,223

$

—

$

—

$

11,245

$

7,200

$

—

$

—

$

163,292

$

—

Note 24. TERMINATION BENEFITS
As a result of the continued integration of certain processes and systems for our recently acquired businesses, we committed to a workforce reduction
affecting certain employees in our Retail segment and have accrued substantially all termination costs as of December 31, 2016.
A rollforward of the liability for severance and other termination benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2015
Provision for termination benefits (included in general and administrative expenses)
Termination benefits paid

$

Balance at December 31, 2016

$
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1,665
435
(1,845)
255

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report, and has
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2016.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(a) Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The management report on our internal control over financial reporting appears in Item 8 on page 66 of this report, and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Grant Thornton LLP’s report on our internal control over financial reporting appears in Item 8 on page 68 of this report, and is incorporated herein by
reference.
(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2016, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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Part III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Management
Our General Partner manages our operations and activities on our behalf. The sole member of our General Partner is owned by CST, which gives it sole and
exclusive authority over our General Partner. All of our executive officers and those who provide management and services to the Partnership are employed
by an affiliate of CST.
The Board of our General Partner oversees our management, operations and activities. The Board has seven members, three of whom, Gene Edwards, Justin A.
Gannon and John B. Reilly, III, the Board has determined to be independent as defined under the independence standards established by the NYSE and the
Exchange Act. These directors, whom we refer to as independent directors, are not officers or employees of our General Partner or its affiliates, and have been
determined by the Board to be otherwise independent of CST and its affiliates.
Our General Partner is not elected by our unitholders and is not subject to re-election on a regular basis. Unitholders are not entitled to elect the directors of
our General Partner or directly or indirectly participate in our management or operations. CST appoints all members to the Board.
Our General Partner owes a fiduciary duty to our unitholders. However, our Partnership Agreement contains provisions that limit the fiduciary duties that our
General Partner owes to our unitholders. Our General Partner is liable, as general partner, for all of our debts (to the extent not paid from our assets), except for
indebtedness or other obligations that are made specifically nonrecourse to it. Whenever possible, our General Partner intends to incur indebtedness or other
obligations that are nonrecourse. Except as described in our partnership agreement and subject to its fiduciary duty to act in good faith, our General Partner
has exclusive management power over our business and affairs.
Directors and Executive Officers
The Partnership does not directly employ any of the persons responsible for managing or operating the Partnership. We are managed and operated by the
Board and the executive officers appointed by our General Partner who are employees of an affiliate of CST. The following table shows information for the
directors of our General Partner and our executive officers appointed by our General Partner.
Directors and Executive Officers of the General Partner

Name

Age

Position with our General Partner

Current Directors and Executive Officers
Kimberly S. Lubel
Gene Edwards
Justin A. Gannon
John B. Reilly, III
Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Steven M. Stellato

52
60
67
55
61
44
56
61
50
42

Chairman of the Board
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director, President
Director, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate Secretary
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer

Our General Partner’s directors hold office until the earlier of their death, resignation, removal or disqualification or until their successors have been elected
and qualified. Our executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board. In selecting and appointing directors to the Board, CST, as the owner of the sole
member of our General Partner, does not apply a formal diversity policy or set of guidelines. However, when appointing new directors, CST as the owner of
the sole member of our General Partner, will
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consider each individual director’s qualifications, skills, business experience and capacity to serve as a director, as described below for each director, and the
diversity of these attributes for the Board as a whole.
Kimberly S. Lubel was appointed Chairman of the Board in October 2014. Ms. Lubel has been a member of the CST Board since November 2012, chairman
of the CST Board since April 2013, and has served as CST’s Chief Executive Officer and President since January 2013. Prior to her roles at CST, Ms. Lubel
served in various executive management roles at Valero Energy Corporation (NYSE: VLO), including as Executive Vice President and General Counsel from
April 2006 to November 2012, where she led complex acquisitions and transactions and oversaw legal, environmental, health and safety, ad valorem tax,
government affairs and project execution departments. Ms. Lubel also served as Vice President of Legal Services from January 2003 to April 2006 and
Managing Counsel prior to January 2003. During her tenure at Valero Energy Corporation, Ms. Lubel was the lead lawyer on over $18 billion of acquisitions,
helping grow the company from a small, regional refiner to one of international scope. Prior to joining Valero Energy Corporation in 1997, Ms. Lubel
specialized in mergers and acquisitions with the law firm of Kelly, Hart & Hallman from 1991 to 1997. Since 2011, she has served as a director of the board of
WPX Energy, Inc. (NYSE:WPX), a publicly traded company focusing on extraction of oil and natural gas. Ms. Lubel was named to Fortune’s 50 Most
Powerful Women in 2013 and again in 2015, and was named Retail Leader of the Year by Convenience Store News in 2014. Ms. Lubel holds bachelor’s
degrees in Spanish and in International Studies from Miami University (Ohio), Master of Arts degree in International Relations from Baylor University, and
her Juris Doctor degree from the University of Texas School of Law. She is also a 2009 graduate of the Stanford Executive Program.
Gene Edwards was appointed as a director of the Board and chairman of the conflicts committee in October 2014. Mr. Edwards served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Development Officer of Valero Energy Corporation (NYSE: VLO) until his retirement in April 2014. Mr. Edwards began his 32-year
career with Valero Energy Corporation as an Analyst in Planning & Economics and spent his tenure with Valero Energy Corporation in various managerial
positions, including Planning and Economics, Refinery Operations, Business Development, and Marketing. He was a director of the CST Board from May
2013 until December 2013. Mr. Edwards has served as a director of the board of Green Plains Inc. (NASDAQ: GPRE) since June 2014 where he serves as a
member of the audit committee and compensation committee. He also serves as a director of the board of PBF Energy Inc. (NYSE: PBF) since July 2014 where
he serves on the nominating and governance committee. Mr. Edwards holds a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from Tulane University and a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Texas at San Antonio.
Justin A. Gannon was appointed as a director of the Board and chairman of the audit committee in October 2014. Mr. Gannon has acted as an independent
consultant and private investor since September 2013. From February 2003 through August 2013, Mr. Gannon served in various roles at Grant Thornton LLP,
including as National Leader of Merger and Acquisition Development from June 2011 through August 2013, Central Region Managing Partner from January
2010 through June 2011, Office Managing Partner in Houston, Texas from August 2007 through June 2011 and Office Managing Partner in Kansas City,
Missouri from August 2005 to July 2007. From 1971 through 2002, Mr. Gannon worked at Arthur Andersen LLP. Since December 1, 2014, Mr. Gannon has
served on the board of directors of California Resources Corporation (NYSE: CRC) where he serves as chair of the audit committee and member of the
compensation committee. He is a former chairman of the board of directors of American Red Cross Chapters in the Tulsa, Oklahoma and San Antonio, Texas
areas. Mr. Gannon received a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Loyola Marymount University and is a Certified Public Accountant licensed in
California (inactive) and Texas.
John B. Reilly, III was appointed as a director of the Board in May 2012. Mr. Reilly has also served as the President of City Center Investment Corp since
May 2011. Prior to then, he was President of Landmark Communities and Managing Partner of Traditions of America since 1998. Mr. Reilly has thirty years
of experience in commercial and residential real estate development and planning, finance management and law. Mr. Reilly serves as a trustee of Lafayette
College and also served as the chairman of the board of trustees for the Lehigh Valley Health Network. He holds a Juris Doctor degree from Fordham
University Law School and a bachelor’s degree in economics from Lafayette College. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Pennsylvania
Bar Association.
Joseph V. Topper, Jr. served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the General Partner from October 2012 to March 26, 2015. Mr. Topper resigned as
President effective March 26, 2015 and his term as Chief Executive Officer ended on September 30, 2015. Mr. Topper also served as chairman of the Board
from October 28, 2012 through September 30, 2014. Mr. Topper has 26 years of management experience in the wholesale and retail fuel distribution
business. In 1987, Mr. Topper purchased his family’s retail fuel business and five years later founded DMI (formerly known as Lehigh Gas Corporation),
where he was the Chief Executive Officer since 1992. Mr. Topper currently serves as chairman of the board of trustees for Villanova University and the board
of directors for Lehigh Valley PBS. He served on the CST Board from October 2014 until December 2016. He is the past President of the board of directors for
Lehigh Valley PBS and the Lehigh Valley PBS Foundation. He also served as a board member for the Good Shepherd Rehabilitation Hospital in Allentown.
Mr. Topper holds a Master’s degree of Business Administration from Lehigh University and a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Villanova University.
Mr. Topper is also a Certified Public Accountant.
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Jeremy L. Bergeron was appointed President of our General Partner in March 2015 and director of the Board in October 2015. Prior to his current position,
Mr. Bergeron served as the Senior Vice President of Integration & Development Operations for CST and he served as Vice President and Treasurer for CST
since its spin-off from Valero Energy Corporation (NYSE: VLO) in 2013. Mr. Bergeron was with Valero Energy Corporation for 17 years and held several
positions, including Vice President of Insurance and Corporate Safety Director. He earned a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in Management
and Information Systems from the University of the Incarnate Word and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Texas at San Antonio. He
is also a 2014 graduate of the Stanford Executive Program.
Clayton E. Killinger was appointed as a director of our Board in October 2014. Mr. Killinger has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer since March 2015. He also serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CST. He was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of CST effective January 1, 2013. Previously, he served in various roles at Valero Energy Corporation (NYSE: VLO), including as Senior
Vice President and Controller from July 2007 until January 2013 and as Vice President and Controller from January 2003 until July 2007. Prior to joining
Valero Energy Corporation in December 2001, Mr. Killinger was a partner with Arthur Andersen LLP, having joined that firm in 1983. In August 2015, Mr.
Killinger joined the board of directors of the general partner of GreenPlains Partners LP (NASDAQ: GPP) where he serves as the Chairman of its audit
committee and is a member of its conflicts committee. Mr. Killinger is a Certified Public Accountant, with a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accounting from the University of Texas at San Antonio, where he graduated summa cum laude.
David F. Hrinak was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of our General Partner in October 2014. Previously, he served as
President of our General Partner since May 2012. Mr. Hrinak was the President of DMI from September 2010 until May 2012. From 2005 until September
2010, Mr. Hrinak served as the Vice President of Wholesale for DMI. Mr. Hrinak has 36 years of experience in the wholesale and retail fuel distribution
business. Prior to joining DMI, Mr. Hrinak was the branded wholesale manager at ConocoPhillips.
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr. was appointed Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer of our General Partner in March
2015. Mr. Newsom previously served as Vice President, Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of iHeartMedia, Inc., iHeartCommunications, Inc.,
iHeartMedia Capital I, LLC and Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. from August 2009 until March 2015. Mr. Newsom holds a Juris Doctor degree from
Southern Methodist University Law School and a bachelor’s degree in History from Duke University.
Steven M. Stellato was appointed Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer in June 2015 and, since May 2016, he also served as Vice President and
Controller of CST. From 2009 to 2015, Mr. Stellato served as Vice President and Controller of Energy Transfer Partners, LP (“Energy Transfer”). Prior to
joining Energy Transfer, Mr. Stellato was a Senior Manager at the public accounting firm of KPMG LLP from 2001 to 2009, focusing on clients in the energy
industry. Before joining KPMG LLP, Mr. Stellato held various management positions with a large retail grocery company in South Texas for over 10 years.
Mr. Stellato is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the University of Texas at San Antonio.
Director Independence
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that limited partnerships are not required to have a majority of independent directors. The
Board has adopted a policy that the Board has at all times at least three independent directors or such higher number as may be necessary to comply with the
applicable federal securities law requirements. For the purposes of this policy, “independent director” has the meaning set forth in Section 10A(m)(3) of the
Exchange Act, any applicable stock exchange rules and the rules and regulations promulgated in the Partnership governance guidelines available on its
website www.crossamericapartners.com. The Board has determined that Messrs. Edwards, Gannon and Reilly meet the requirements for independence under
the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and NYSE.
Composition of the Board
The Board consists of seven members. The Board holds regular and special meetings at any time as may be necessary. Regular meetings may be held without
notice on dates set by the Board from time to time. Special meetings of the Board or meetings of any committee thereof may be held at the request of the
Chairman of the Board or a majority of the Board (or a majority of the members of such committee) upon at least two days (if the meeting is to be held in
person) or 24 hours (if the meeting is to be held telephonically) prior oral or written notice to the other members of the Board or committee or upon such
shorter notice as may be approved by the directors or members of such committee. A quorum for a regular or special meeting will exist when a majority of the
members are participating in the meeting either in person or by telephone conference. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board
or at any committee may be taken without a meeting if such action is evidenced in writing and signed by a majority of the members of the Board.
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Committees of the Board
The Board has an audit committee and a conflicts committee. The charter for each of the committees can be found in its entirety on the Partnership’s website
at www.crossamericapartners.com under the “Corporate Governance” tab in the “Investors” section. As a limited partnership, we are not required by NYSE
rules to have a compensation committee or a nominating and corporate governance committee. The Board held seven meetings in 2016, and each director
attended 100% of the Board and respective committee meetings while she or he was a director.
Audit Committee
Effective October 1, 2014, Justin A. Gannon, Gene Edwards and John B. Reilly, III were appointed as members of the audit committee of the Board.
Mr. Gannon is the chair of the audit committee. The audit committee is comprised entirely of directors who meet the financial literacy standards of the NYSE
and the Exchange Act. The rules and regulations established by the NYSE and the Exchange Act also generally require that our audit committee consist
entirely of independent directors. The Board has determined that Messrs. Edwards, Gannon and Reilly meet the independence standards required of audit
committee members by the NYSE and the Exchange Act. The Board has determined that Messrs. Edwards, Gannon and Reilly meet the financial literacy
standards of directors who serve on the audit committee, and Mr. Gannon is an “audit committee financial expert” as defined by SEC rules. The audit
committee assists the Board in its oversight of the integrity of our financial statements and our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
Partnership policies and controls, the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence, the performance of the Partnership’s internal audit function and
risk assessment and risk management. The audit committee has sole authority with respect to the appointment, retention, compensation, evaluation, oversight
of the work and termination of our independent auditors and has the authority to obtain advice and assistance from outside legal, accounting or other
advisors as the audit committee deems necessary to carry out its duties and receives appropriate funding, as determined by the audit committee, from the
Partnership for such advice and assistance. The audit committee held four meetings during 2016.
Conflicts Committee
Effective October 1, 2014, Gene Edwards, Justin A. Gannon and John B. Reilly, III were appointed as members of the conflicts committee. Mr. Edwards is the
chair of the conflicts committee. Pursuant to our Partnership Agreement, the members of the conflicts committee may not be officers or employees of our
General Partner or directors, officers or employees of its affiliates, must not be holders of any ownership interest in the General Partner or any of its affiliates,
other than Partnership units, that is determined by the Board of Directors, after reasonable inquiry, to be likely to have an adverse impact on the ability of
such director to fulfill his or her obligations as a member of the Conflicts Committee, and must meet the independence standards established by the NYSE
and the Exchange Act to serve on an audit committee of a board of directors. The Board has determined that Messrs. Edwards, Gannon and Reilly qualify to
serve on the conflicts committee. The conflicts committee is responsible for reviewing specific matters that the Board believes may involve conflicts of
interest between the General Partner and its affiliates and the Partnership. The conflicts committee determines if the resolution of such conflict is fair and
reasonable to the Partnership. The conflicts committee held five meetings during 2016.
Meeting of Independent Directors and Communications with Directors
At most of the scheduled meetings of the audit committee and conflicts committee of the Board, all of our independent directors met in an executive session
of independent directors without participation by management. The chairman of each of the committees presides over each executive session of the
independent directors. Any independent director may request that additional executive sessions of the independent directors be held, and the presiding
independent director for the previous session will determine whether to call any such meeting.
Unitholders or interested parties may communicate directly with the Board, any committee of the Board, any independent director, or any one director, by
sending written correspondence by mail addressed to the Board, committee or director to the attention of our Corporate Secretary at the following address:
c/o Corporate Secretary, CrossAmerica Partners LP, 19500 Bulverde Road, Suite 100, San Antonio, Texas 78259. Communications are distributed to the
Board, committee of the Board, or director, as appropriate, depending on the facts and circumstances outlined in the communication. Commercial
solicitations or communications will not be forwarded.
Meetings of Unitholders
Our Partnership Agreement provides that the General Partner manages and operates us and that, unlike holders of common stock in a corporation, unitholders
only have limited voting rights on matters affecting our business or governance as set forth in our Partnership Agreement. Accordingly, we do not hold
annual meetings of unitholders.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires members of the Board and executive officers, and beneficial owners of more than 10% of a class of our equity
securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act (collectively, the “Reporting Persons”), to file reports of beneficial ownership and reports of
changes in beneficial ownership of such securities with the SEC. Reporting Persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish to us copies of all
Section 16(a) forms filed with the SEC.
SEC regulations require us to identify in this Form 10-K anyone who filed a required report late during the most recent fiscal year. Based on our review of
forms we received, or written representations from Reporting Persons stating that they were not required to file these forms, we believe that during 2016 all
Section 16(a) filing requirements were satisfied on a timely basis.
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to directors of the General Partner and our executive officers. Our General Partner
also expects all employees of CST providing services to or for the benefit of the Partnership and its operating subsidiaries to adhere to the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct. Amendments to or waivers from the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct can be found on CrossAmerica Partners’ website at
www.crossamericapartners.com under the “Corporate Governance” tab in the “Investors” section. The Board has also adopted Corporate Governance
Guidelines that outline important policies and practices regarding our governance, which can also be found in its entirety on CrossAmerica Partners’ website
at www.crossamericapartners.com under the “Corporate Governance” tab in the “Investors” section. Requests for print copies of the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct and/or the Corporate Governance Guidelines may be directed to Investor Relations at info@crossamericapartners.com or to Investor
Relations, CrossAmerica Partners LP, 515 Hamilton Street, Suite 200, Allentown, PA 18101 or made by telephone at (610) 625-8005. The information
contained on, or connected to, our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part of this or
any other report that we file with or furnish to the SEC.
Reimbursement of Expenses of Our General Partner
Except as otherwise set forth in our Amended Omnibus Agreement, our Partnership Agreement requires us to reimburse our General Partner for all direct and
indirect expenses it incurs or payments it makes on our behalf and all other expenses reasonably allocable to us or otherwise incurred by our General Partner
in connection with operating our business. The Partnership Agreement does not limit the amount of expenses for which our General Partner and its affiliates
may be reimbursed. These expenses include (without limitation) salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other amounts paid to persons who perform
services for us or on our behalf and expenses allocated to our General Partner by its affiliates. Our General Partner is entitled to determine in good faith the
expenses that are allocable to us. Please read “Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Director Independence -Amended
Omnibus Agreement.”
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overview
We do not directly employ or compensate any of our executive officers, including our named executive officers (“NEOs”), or other personnel who provide
services necessary for managing our business. Our General Partner also does not directly employ any of its executive officers or other personnel. For the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2016, all executive officers, including our NEOs, and other personnel who provide services to or on behalf of the Partnership are
employees of and compensated directly by an affiliate of CST. Under our Partnership Agreement, the General Partner manages our operations and activities
on our behalf.
As described elsewhere in this Form 10-K, pursuant to the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement, an affiliate of CST provides services to us and we pay
CST a management fee, which in 2016 was $856,000 per month plus a variable fee of between zero for the first 500 million gallons, $0.003 for the next 500
million gallons and $0.0020 for all gallons above one million for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites we
operate. At the end of each calendar year, we and CST have the right to negotiate a reduction or increase to the amounts due under the Amended Omnibus
Agreement for such year. CST and we also have the right to negotiate the amount of the annual management fee as circumstances require. In addition, the
Partnership is required to reimburse CST for certain outsourced services to be provided by CST to or on behalf of the Partnership under the Amended
Omnibus Agreement. The management fee, which is approved by the conflicts committee of the Board, covers the cash compensation for the services
provided by our NEOs to us.
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As the Partnership is supported by employees of an affiliate of CST, the Compensation Committee of the CST Board (the “CST Compensation Committee”)
has ultimate decision-making authority with respect to the total compensation of our NEOs. All or a portion of such compensation may be allocated for
reimbursement under the Amended Omnibus Agreement.
Named Executive Officers
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, our NEOs were:
•

Jeremy L. Bergeron, President

•

Clayton E. Killinger, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

•

David F. Hrinak, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

•

Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr., Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer

•

Steven M. Stellato, Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Except for the management fee we pay to CST under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, we do not otherwise pay or reimburse any compensation amounts to
or for our NEOs and except with respect to awards that may be granted by CST and/or the Partnership under their respective Plans, which are discussed in
more detail below under the section “Elements of Executive Compensation-Long-Term Incentive Compensation: Equity Awards.”
Compensation Objectives and Philosophy
The CST Compensation Committee determines the compensation of executive officers of CST and certain designated employees of the Partnership, which
includes our NEOs.
The compensation philosophy for our NEOs has been driven by the need to recruit, motivate and retain top talent both in the short-term and long-term. The
same compensation philosophy has been applied to all levels of managerial employees. The CST Compensation Committee also considers other factors,
which included internal pay equity and consistency and the NEO’s job responsibilities, management experience, individual contributions, number of years in
his or her position and recent compensation adjustments, as well as other relevant considerations (with no particular weighting assigned to any of these
factors). Our emphasis on variable or “at risk” components of incentive pay results in actual compensation based on the achievement of the objectives
established in our annual and long-term incentive plans. While the CST Compensation Committee believes that each compensation component should be
considered separately and that payments or awards derived from one component should not negate or reduce payments or awards derived from other
components, the components are considered within the context of each executive’s total compensation.
Elements of Executive Compensation
The core elements of the executive compensation program are base salary, short-term incentives (in the form of annual performance-based cash incentives)
and long-term incentives (in the form of performance and time-vested equity awards). The CST Compensation Committee has adopted guidelines for
allocating compensation among base salary, short-term incentive compensation and long-term incentive compensation, between cash and non-cash
compensation, and among different forms of non-cash compensation, as shown in the table below. CST’s executive compensation program is evaluated on an
ongoing basis and is adapted, as necessary, to ensure continued alignment between long-term company performance and executive compensation.
The compensation for our NEOs reflected in the 2016 Summary Compensation Table was paid by CST, some or all of which was allocated to us under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement as discussed below.
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Elements of Executive Compensation

Type of Payment/Benefit

Purpose

Base salary

Fixed cash payments with each executive
generally eligible for annual increase

To attract and retain qualified executives

Short-term incentive compensation

Variable annual cash payment tied to key
performance metrics and targets, and individual
performance assessments

To motivate and reward performance of key
business and financial metrics to deliver
returns to Partnership unitholders and CST
shareholders

Long-term incentive compensation

CST RSUs, CST Stock Options and CST MSUs

To align long-term interests of NEOs with
those of the Partnership’s unitholders and CST
shareholders

Base Salary
The CST Compensation Committee approved the following salary increases for our NEOs for the 2016 fiscal year:

2015 Annual
Base Salary

Name
Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom
Steven M. Stellato

$
$
$
$
$

375,000
640,500
363,868
310,000
275,000

2016 Annual
Base Salary
$
$
$
$
$

385,000
656,500
371,300
318,000
279,400

% Increase
2.7%
2.5%
2.0%
2.6%
1.6%

Short-Term Incentive Compensation: Annual Performance-Based Cash Incentive
The short-term incentive program is one of the key components of the “at-risk” compensation offered to our executives. An annual performance-based cash
incentive program is utilized to reward short-term performance achievements. Such incentives are also intended to motivate and reward executives for their
contributions toward meeting financial and strategic goals. In March 2016, the CST Board, based on the recommendation of the CST Compensation
Committee, approved performance metrics for the 2016 short-term incentive plan. In determining the goals and weighting of the 2016 performance metrics
for the 2016 short-term incentive plan, the CST Compensation Committee first set quantitative performance goals that encouraged executive officers to focus
on priorities that are directly tied to the Partnership’s and CST’s financial results or operational performance.
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The short-term incentive program was composed of the following performance metrics for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016:

2016 Performance Metrics

% Weight

Why Performance Metric Is Used

CST Brands Total Non-Fuel Gross
Margin Dollars

50%

Total Non-Fuel Gross Margin represents the total non-fuel gross profit
0 - 200%
dollars for the CST retail stores. A major strategic goal for CST is to increase
the contribution of non-fuel margins to 70% of overall gross profit,
including food and merchandise, by enhancing offerings of made to order
food, proprietary food and private label programs and an expanded
selection of store merchandise, including food, beverage and snack
categories. We believe this performance metric aligns the short-term
incentive objectives with the long-term strategies of CST by (i) improving
inside store profitability levels and increasing the number of customers that
visit the CST network, and (ii) promoting merchandise gross profit growth
through the pursuit of quality convenience store acquisitions that
contribute to the core asset base, and organic new store growth.

Payout Range

Consolidated EBITDA (CST and the 25%
Partnership)

This metric measures the EBITDA for both the Partnership and CST on a
consolidated basis, which is a reflection of how well the Partnership and
CST are performing overall against the established goals, representing a
holistic view of the Partnership’s and CST’s strategies.

0 - 200%

CrossAmerica Partners Distributions 25%
per Unit (pro-forma coverage ratio >
1.0)

The Partnership’s distributions per common unit represent the amount of
0 - 200%
cash distributed to our common unitholders, including CST. We believe
this performance metric aligns the growth of cash distribution year over
year with the long-term strategy of both the Partnership and CST. CST owns
100% of the IDRs and receives distributions from us under these IDRs as
well as distributions as a result of CST’s ownership of common units in the
Partnership.

As determined by the CST Compensation Committee, each of these performance metrics has a threshold, target and maximum level for the performance year.
The maximum incentive award payable to our executive officers under the short-term incentive program for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, based
on the performance metrics described above, is 200% of their respective incentive award targets. NEOs were required in 2016 to complete the CST Time
Program, which requires our executive officers to perform five 6-hour shifts at CST retail sites or CrossAmerica operations, was a requirement in 2016 to be
eligible to participate in the 2016 short-term incentive plan.
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Below is a table that explains the short-term incentive award targets, achievement factor and the short-term incentive approved and paid in 2016 for
executive officers:

Name and Principal Position

Short-Term
Incentive Potential
Target Short-Term
2016 Base Salary Incentive as a % of Base Target at 100%
Salary

2016 Short-Term
Incentive Payment
Approved (1)

Jeremy L. Bergeron
President

$

385,000

65%

$

250,250 $

225,225

Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

$

656,500

75%

$

492,375 $

443,138

David F. Hrinak
Executive Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer

$

371,300

60%

$

222,780 $

200,502

Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Vice President, General Counsel,
Corporate Secretary and Chief
Compliance Officer

$

318,000

50%

$

159,000 $

143,100

Steven M. Stellato
Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer

$

279,400

50%

$

139,700 $

125,730

(1) The amounts in this column represent the approved values by the CST Compensation Committee for the total cash payout earned under the CST short-term incentive plan for
the 2016 fiscal year, which were calculated using CST’s achievement factor of 90% for our NEOs.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation: Equity Awards
The long-term incentive program is another key component of “at-risk” compensation and is intended to reward longer-term performance and growth. Longterm incentive awards are granted each year in conjunction with the review of other elements of total compensation. Individual determinations of award
targets are made based on additional factors such as each executive officer’s experience and contribution to the Partnership’s and CST’s success and internal
pay equity.
Grants of CST Equity Awards
In 2016, our NEOs received grants under the CST Brands, Inc. 2013 Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan in the form of CST RSUs,
options to purchase CST common stock (“CST Stock Options”) and CST Market Share Units (“CST MSUs”). CST Stock Options and CST RSUs generally
vest in equal annual installments over a period of three years from the date of grant, and CST MSUs vest 100% three years from the date of grant. Each CST
MSU represents a contingent right at vesting to receive one share of CST’s common stock based on CST’s stock price performance over a three-year
performance period. The target CST MSU award is set at 120% of the Beginning Stock Price, as defined in the award agreement. The CST MSUs cliff vest
three years from the date of grant and the target award will be earned if the Ending Stock Price, as defined in the award agreement, is 120% of the Beginning
Stock Price at the end of the three-year performance period. The number of CST MSU awards earned can increase up to 175% of the target award if the Ending
Stock Price is 175% or greater than the Beginning Stock Price. A threshold 50% of target award is earned if the Ending Stock Price is 67% of the Beginning
Stock Price, with awards forfeited entirely if stock price performance is below this level. The number of MSUs earned based on the CST’s stock performance
will be further adjusted up to plus/minus 20% based on the 2018 cash flow return on capital employed (“ROCE”) performance of New-to-Industry Stores built
in 2014 and 2015. The performance range for the modifier is 12%-18% ROCE for the year 2018, with earned CST MSUs adjusted -20% if ROCE is below the
range and earned CST MSUs adjusted up to +20% if ROCE is above the range, with straight-line interpolation in between. The maximum number of CST
MSUs earned cannot exceed 200% of the target award.
Effect of the Merger - Treatment of CST Equity Awards
CST Stock Options. At the completion of the Merger, each CST Stock Option that is outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the Merger, whether
vested or unvested, will become fully vested and be converted into the right to receive a cash payment equal to the product of (1) the number of shares of
CST common stock subject to such CST Stock Option as of the completion of the Merger and (2) the excess of the merger consideration over the exercise
price.
CST Restricted Shares. At the completion of the Merger, each CST restricted share that is outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the Merger,
whether vested or unvested, will become fully vested and will be converted into the right to receive a
116

cash payment equal to the product of (1) the number of shares of CST common stock as of the completion of the Merger and (2) the merger consideration.
CST RSUs. At the completion of the Merger, each award of CST RSUs that is outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the Merger, whether vested
or unvested, will become fully vested and be converted into the right to receive a cash payment equal to the product of (1) the number of shares of CST
common stock subject to such award as of the completion of the Merger and (2) the merger consideration.
For purposes of unvested CST MSUs, which are CST RSUs that vest based on performance goals related to the price of CST common stock, in accordance
with the award agreements, performance goals will be deemed satisfied based on the merger consideration.
Grants of CrossAmerica Equity Awards
Our General Partner previously adopted the Plan for employees, officers, consultants and directors of our General Partner and its affiliates who perform
services for us. The Plan provides for the grant of restricted units, unit options, performance awards, phantom units, unit awards, unit appreciation rights,
distribution equivalent rights and other unit-based awards. In 2016, no CrossAmerica equity awards were granted to executive officers. Only non-employee
directors of the Board received CrossAmerica equity award grants in the form of phantom units for their service on the Board.
Phantom Units
A phantom unit represents a notional common unit granted under the Plan, which, upon vesting, entitles the holder of the phantom units to receive either a
common unit or an amount of cash equal to the fair market value of a common unit at the time of vesting. All or a portion of the phantom units may be settled
in common units or cash at the discretion of the Board. Phantom unit awards issued in April 2015 or thereafter are accompanied by tandem distribution
equivalent rights that entitle the holder to cash payments equal to the amount of distribution authorized to be paid to the holder of common units. Prior to
April 2015, phantom unit awards were issued without distribution equivalent rights.
Profits Interests
Profits interests are represented by Class B Units in our wholly owned subsidiary, LGP Operations, and are designed to constitute “profits interests” within the
meaning of the Internal Revenue Code, and published Internal Revenue Service guidance. Class B Units generally will not be taxed at the time of grant,
though the holder will be required to report on his/her income tax return his/her allocable share of LGP Operations’ income, gain, loss, deduction and credit,
regardless of whether LGP Operations makes a distribution of cash. Instead, such units are generally taxed upon at disposition of the unit or upon the receipt
of distributions of money to the extent that such amounts received exceed the holder’s tax basis in the units. Generally, no deduction is available to the
Partnership or LGP Operations upon the grant, vesting or disposition of the Class B Units. The profits interests are subject to vesting schedules determined by
the Board. Holders of vested Class B Units are entitled to receive distributions from LGP Operations generally on the same terms as our unitholders. Vested
Class B Units are redeemable for cash or our common units at the discretion of the Board, beginning on the second anniversary of the grant date at a
conversion ratio of not greater than 1:1. In February 2016, the Board approved the redemption of 31,027 profits interests for our common units for
participants who elected to redeem their awards after two years from the date of grant.
Other Benefits
Our NEOs are eligible to participate in the CST Brands Savings Plan, which consists of two components (i) a qualified “Safe Harbor” 401(k) retirement plan,
and (ii) a discretionary profit sharing plan. All contributions made under CST’s 401(k) plan are 100% vested at all times. In 2016, CST suspended the
discretionary profit-sharing plan, which offered a contribution to employee who met eligibility.
Our NEOs are also eligible to participate in the CST Brands Excess Savings Plan (the “Excess Savings Plan”), which is a non-qualified deferred compensation
program that provides benefits to CST employees whose annual contributions to CST Brands Savings Plan are subject to regulatory limitations. All balances
under the Excess Savings Plan are maintained in the books and records of CST and earnings are credited to a participant’s accumulated savings account
under the plan in an amount equal to the prime rate as quoted in the Wall Street Journal on January 1 of the then current year, plus 1%. As with the CST
Brands Savings Plan, participants are 100% vested at all times in any CST contributions credited to their Excess Savings Plan accounts.
In addition, effective January 1, 2016, all eligible employees, including our NEOs, were able to participate in the CST Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(“ESPP”), in which participants in the ESPP elected to purchase shares of CST’s common stock in up to two series of offerings conducted pursuant to the
procedures set forth in the ESPP at a purchase price that was 85% of the fair market
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value of one share of CST’s common stock on the first or last trading day of the offering period. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, there will be no ESPP
offering periods in 2017.
Effective January 1, 2016, certain employees, including our NEOs, were eligible to participate in the CST Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (the
“NQDC”) pursuant to which NEOs were allowed the opportunity to defer up to 75% of their base salary, up to 100% of their annual bonus and up to 100% of
their annual grant of CST RSUs for that calendar year. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the CST Compensation Committee approved the termination of the
NQDC upon closing of the Merger. All deferrals of base salary and excess savings plan accounts are 100% vested and vesting of deferrals of other bonus or
equity awards is determined in accordance with the terms of the applicable awards.
Our NEOs also receive the same benefits as those generally available to other employees of CST. Both CST subsidized and voluntary benefit programs are
provided and include medical, dental, vision, life insurance and disability coverage.
Other Compensation Policies and Practices
Insider Trading Policy
We maintain an insider trading policy (the “Insider Trading Policy”) that governs trading in our units by directors of the Board and executive officers of the
General Partner and CST, as well as certain other employees who may have regular access to material non-public information about us. These policies include
pre-clearance requirements for all trades and periodic trading “black-out” periods designed with reference to our quarterly financial reporting schedule.
Restrictions on Hedging, Pledging and Other Transactions
Our Insider Trading Policy prohibits (a) speculative transactions such as short sales, puts, calls or other similar derivative transactions, hedging or
monetization transactions with respect to the Partnership securities; (b) holding securities of the Partnership in a margin account; and (c) pledging Partnership
securities as collateral for loans. Transactions that are otherwise prohibited by our Insider Trading Policy may be approved by the General Counsel of the
General Partner, as the compliance officer of our Insider Trading Policy. Compliance with these policies is monitored by the Board. A copy of our Insider
Trading Policy is available in its entirety on the CrossAmerica Partners’ website at www.crossamericapartners.com under the “Corporate Governance” tab in
the “Investors” section.
Clawback Policy
We have adopted a “clawback” policy that applies to any bonuses and other incentive and equity compensation awarded to our executive officers. This
policy provides that, in the event of a material restatement of the Partnership’s financial results due to material noncompliance with certain financial
reporting requirements, the Board, or the appropriate committee of the Board, will review all such incentive compensation and, if such incentive
compensation would have been lower had it been calculated based on the restated results, the Board, or the appropriate committee of the Board, will (to the
extent permitted by law and as appropriate under the circumstances) use reasonable efforts to seek to recover for the benefit of the Partnership all or a portion
of such incentive compensation, subject to a three-year look-back period. In July 2015, the SEC proposed new Rule 10D-1 under the Exchange Act to
implement the provisions of Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2012, or the Dodd-Frank Act, which requires
the SEC to adopt rules relating to the disclosure of a company’s compensation recovery, or “clawback,” policies in connection with an accounting
restatement. Once the SEC issues final rules regarding clawback policies, we intend to review and, if necessary, amend our policy to comply with such rules.
Impact of Regulatory Requirements
We are a limited partnership and not a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Therefore, we believe that the compensation paid to the NEOs is not
subject to the deduction limitations under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and therefore is generally fully deductible for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation. Certain payments under the Partnership’s Executive Income Continuity Plan (the “EICP”) may be subject to the tax
rules applicable to non-qualified deferred compensation arrangements of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. We believe we are in compliance with such
statutory provisions.
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC Topic 718 for all
of our stock-based compensation plans. See Note 18 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2016, for a discussion of all assumptions made in the calculation of this amount.
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Risk Assessment
The CST Compensation Committee oversees the risk assessment of the compensation programs, policies and practices for all employees. A discussion of this
risk assessment is included in CST’s Compensation Discussion and Analysis in Part III of CST’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, which is
available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
Compensation Committee Report*
The members of the Board have reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K with
management and, based on such review and discussions and such other matters the Board deemed relevant and appropriate, the Board has approved the
inclusion of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Members of the Board:
Kimberly S. Lubel
Jeremy L. Bergeron
Gene Edwards
Justin A. Gannon
Clayton E. Killinger
John B. Reilly, III
Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
*As a publicly traded limited partnership, we are not required to and do not have a compensation committee. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee
Report required by Item 407(e)(5) of Regulation S-K is given by the Board as specified by Item 407(e)(5)(i) of Regulation S-K.
The foregoing compensation committee report is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed filed with the SEC, and is not to be incorporated by reference into
any of the Partnership’s filings under the Securities Act, or the Exchange Act, respectively, whether made before or after the date of this annual report on Form
10-K and irrespective of any general incorporation language therein.
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Compensation Decisions for 2017
2017 Short-Term Incentive Plan for our NEOs
The CST Compensation Committee recently approved two sets of performance metrics for the 2017 short-term incentive plan, one set to be used if the closing
of the Merger occurs in 2017, and one set to be used if the closing of the Merger does not occur in 2017. If the Merger closes in 2017, the first set of
performance metrics for the four months ending April 30, 2017 include (i) 50% weighting of CST’s actual non-fuel gross margin dollars compared to budget
for the period ending April 30, 2017; and (ii) 50% weighting of CST and the Partnership’s actual consolidated EBITDA compared to CST’s budget for the
period ending April 30, 2017 (the “2017 STIP Merger Scenario”).
If the Merger does not close in 2017, the second set of performance metrics for the year ending December 31, 2017 are (i) 50% weighting of CST’s actual nonfuel gross margin dollars compared to CST’s budget for the 2017 fiscal year; (ii) 25% weighting of CST and the Partnership’s actual consolidated EBITDA
compared to budget for the 2017 fiscal year; and (iii) 25% weighting of the increase in CrossAmerica’s distribution per unit for the 2017 fiscal year (“2017
STIP No Merger Scenario”). Participation in the CST Time Program by our NEOs is a requirement that must be met to be eligible to participate in the 2017
STIP No Merger Scenario.
Short-Term Incentive Plan for our NEOs

Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Steven M. Stellato

2016
Base Salary

2016 STI Plan
Target as a %
of Base Salary

2017
Base Salary

2017 STI Plan
Target as a %
of Base Salary

$385,000
$656,500
$371,300
$318,000
$279,400

65%
75%
60%
50%
50%

$396,500
$656,500
$380,600
$327,500
$285,000

65%
75%
60%
50%
50%

2017 STIP Merger Scenario
The following table describes each performance metric, the percentage of the aggregate short-term incentive attributable to each performance metric and the
reason for its inclusion in the 2017 STIP Merger Scenario in case that the Merger closes in 2017:

2017 Performance Metrics

% Weight

Why Performance Metric Is Used

Payout Range

CST Brands Total Non-Fuel Gross
Margin versus budget for the period
ending April 30, 2017

50%

Total Non-Fuel Gross Margin represents the total non-fuel gross profit
dollars for the CST retail stores. A major strategic goal for CST is to
increase the contribution of non-fuel margins to 70% of overall gross
profit, including food and merchandise, by enhancing offerings of made to
order food, proprietary food and private label programs and an expanded
selection of store merchandise, including food, beverage and snack
categories. We believe this performance metric aligns the short-term
incentive objectives with the long-term strategies of CST by (i) improving
inside store profitability levels and increasing the number of customers
that visit the CST network, and (ii) promoting merchandise gross profit
growth through the pursuit of quality convenience store acquisitions that
contribute to the core asset base, and organic new store growth.

0 - 200%

Consolidated Earnings Before
Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) versus budget
for the period ending April 30, 2017

50%

This metric measures the EBITDA for both the Partnership and CST on a
consolidated basis, which is a reflection of how well the Partnership and
CST are performing overall against the established goals, representing a
holistic view of the Partnership’s and CST’s strategies. This performance
metric is a key driver of unitholder return over time.

0 - 200%
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2017 STIP No Merger Scenario
The following table describes each performance metric, the percentage of the aggregate short-term incentive attributable to each performance metric and the
reason for its inclusion in the 2017 STIP No Merger Scenario in case that the Merger does not close in 2017:

2017 Performance Metrics

% Weight

Why Performance Metric Is Used

Payout Range

CST Brands Total Non-Fuel Gross
Margin versus budget for the year
ending December 31, 2017

50%

Total Non-Fuel Gross Margin represents the total non-fuel gross profit
dollars for the CST Brands retail stores. A major strategic goal of CST is to
increase its non-fuel margins to 70% of overall gross profit, including food
and merchandise, by enhancing our offerings of made to order food,
proprietary food and private label programs and an expanded selection of
store merchandise, including food, beverage and snack categories. We
believe this performance metric aligns the short-term incentive objectives
with the long-term strategies of CST by (i) improving our inside store
profitability levels and increasing the number of customers that visit our
stores, and (ii) promoting merchandise gross profit growth through the
pursuit of quality convenience store acquisitions that contribute to the
core asset base, and organic new store growth.

0 - 200%

Consolidated Earnings Before
Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) versus budget
for the year ending December 31,
2017

25%

This metric measures the EBITDA for both CST and CrossAmerica Partners
LP on a consolidated basis, which is a reflection of how well CST is
performing overall against its established goals, representing a holistic
view of the CST’s strategies. This performance metric is a key driver of
unitholder return over time.

0 - 200%

CrossAmerica Partners LP
Distributions per Unit (with a
minimum pro-forma coverage ratio of
1.0) for the year ending December 31,
2017

25%

The Partnership’s distributions per common unit represent the amount of
cash distributed to our common unitholders, including CST. We believe
this performance metric aligns the growth of cash distribution year over
year with the long-term strategy of both the Partnership and CST. CST
owns 100% of the IDRs and receives distributions from us under these
IDRs as well as distributions as a result of CST’s ownership of common
units in the Partnership.

0 - 200%

Merger Related Decisions
The Merger Agreement provides that, during the period from August 21, 2016 until the earlier of the termination of the Merger Agreement or the
consummation of the Merger, CST will conduct its business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, and CST will use all reasonable
efforts to keep available the services of key employees of CST, including our NEOs. Among the reasonable efforts consistent with past practice included in
the Merger Agreement are merit raises and increases in compensation our NEOs, payment of the 2016 short-term incentive plan, establishment of the 2017
short-term incentive plan, granting of time-based RSUs under the 2017 long-term incentive plan (only if the Merger does not close by February 15, 2017),
and engagement of third-party experts to perform analysis and provide recommendations regarding Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Code to mitigate
any issues resulting from application of Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Code in order to avoid the loss of the Company's income tax deduction with
respect to any excess parachute payments, as well as to maximize the net after-tax proceeds received by any individual subject to these sections.
2017 NEO Long-Term Incentive Plan
For 2017, the CST Compensation Committee approved the grant of equity awards in the form of CST RSUs for our NEOs, which will vest in equal annual
installments over a period of three years from the date of grant. At the completion of the Merger, each 2017 award of CST RSUs will be converted into the
right to receive a cash payment equal to the product of (x) the number of shares of CST common stock subject to such award as of the completion of the
Merger and (y) the merger consideration, but such award will remain subject to the same vesting terms and payment schedule as those set forth in the original
RSU award agreement; provided that, upon completion of the Merger, such award will vest in full upon an involuntary termination of employment without
cause, or termination for “Good Reason”, or termination due to death, “Disability” or “Retirement.”
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Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to compensation of our NEOs. Except for the management fee we paid to CST under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement, we did not pay or reimburse any cash compensation amounts to or for our NEOs in 2016.

Name and Principal Position
Year

Stock Awards ($)(1) Options Awards ($)(1) Non-Equity Incentive
(2)
(3)
Plan Compensation
($)(4)

Change in Pension
Value and Nonqualified Deferred
Compensation
Earnings ($)(5)(6)

All Other
Compensation ($)(7)

Salary ($)

Bonus ($)

2016
2015

385,000
359,296

21,600
21,600

449,235
248,082

224,595
175,219

225,225
224,250

5,279
3,986

14,517
74,841

1,325,451
1,107,274

Clayton E. Killinger
2016
Executive Vice
2015
President and Chief
Financial Officer of CST
and CrossAmerica

656,500
654,981

—
—

962,955
488,041

481,442
732,015

443,138
438,750

17,368
16,489

13,760
17,617

2,575,163
2,347,893

David F. Hrinak
Executive Vice
President, Chief
Operations Officer

2016
2015
2014

371,300
361,118
309,808

50,000
50,000
—

259,968
491,003
258,444

129,966
211,408
—

200,502
196,500
—

4,252
—
—

13,648
2,421
26,231

1,029,636
1,312,450
594,483

Hamlet T. Newsom,
Jr.(8)
Vice President, General
Counsel, Corporate
Secretary and Chief
Compliance Officer

2016
2015

318,000
236,301

—
—

137,854
88,554

68,915
132,714

143,100
117,750

2,120
—

11,307
9,925

681,296
585,244

Steven M. Stellato (8)
Vice President, Chief
Accounting Officer

2016
2015

279,400
156,737

—
—

121,116
28,025

60,554
42,002

125,730
73,500

576
—

10,994
6,269

598,370
306,533

Jeremy L. Bergeron
President

Total ($)

(1) The amounts shown represent the grant date fair value of awards for each of the fiscal years shown computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation. See Note 18 of the notes of the consolidated financial statements included in CST's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the SEC for a discussion of all assumptions made in the calculation of this amount.
(2) See the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for more information regarding CST RSUs and CST MSUs awarded in 2016.
(3) For information about valuation assumptions for CST Stock Option awarded in 2016, refer to the footnotes in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table.
(4) The amounts in this column represent cash payment earned under the 2014, 2015 and 2016 short-term incentive programs.
(5) The amounts in this column represent the change in value in the Excess Savings Plan for fiscal years 2014, 2015 and 2016. See the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
table for additional information for 2016.
(6) The Company does not sponsor any pension benefit plans and none of our NEOs contribute to such a plan.
(7) The amounts listed as “All Other Compensation” for 2016 are composed of these items:
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All Other Compensation
CST Savings Plan Company Matching Contribution
Premiums for personal liability insurance
Total All Other Compensation

Bergeron

Killinger

10,600

10,600

Hrinak
10,600

Newsom
10,600

Stellato

3,917

3,160

3,048

707

394

14,517

13,760

13,648

11,307

10,994

10,600

(8) Mr. Newsom was appointed to his position with our General Partner in March 2015. Mr. Stellato was appointed to his position with our General Partner in June 2015.

Bergeron Executive Retention Agreement
In September 2015, CST entered into an executive retention agreement with Mr. Bergeron (as amended in 2016 to include a change in control provision) in
connection with his appointment as our President, including relocation assistance and an annual retention bonus of $21,600, as long as Mr. Bergeron resides
in Allentown, PA as a CST employee.
Hrinak Executive Retention Agreement
In April 2015, CST entered into an executive retention agreement with Mr. Hrinak that included (i) an award of CST RSUs in the amount of $350,000 of
which two installments vested on October 1, 2015 and October 1, 2016 with one remaining installment to vest on October 1, 2017; and (ii) $150,000 in cash
payable in three equal annual installments of which two installments were paid on October 1, 2015 and October 1, 2016 with one installment to be paid on
October 1, 2017. Mr. Hrinak must remain an employee of CST on each of the dates for the remaining installments of CST RSUs to vest and to receive the cash
payment.
Grants of Plan-Based Awards
The following table provides information regarding grants of plan-based awards to our NEOs during fiscal year 2016. All awards during fiscal year 2016 were
in the form of CST RSUs, CST Stock Options and CST MSUs.

Name
Jeremy L.
Bergeron

Grant Date
—

Estimated Future Payouts Under NonEquity Incentive Plan Awards (1)

Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity
Incentive Plan Awards (2)

Threshold
($)

Target ($)

Maximum($)

Threshold
(#)

Target (#)

2,503

250,250

500,500
2,738

5,476

3/8/2016

All Other Stock
Awards: Number
of Shares of
Stock or Units
Maximum(#)
(#) (3)

10,952

3/8/2016

—

492,375

5,870

11,739

23,478

3/8/2016

$ 481,440
12,423

3/8/2016
—

222,780

1,585

3,169

6,338

3/8/2016

$ 129,967
3,354

3/8/2016
—

159,000

840

1,680

3,360

3/8/2016

$ 68,900
1,779

3/8/2016
—
3/8/2016

$ 68,954
6,231

1,397

139,700

38.76 $ 129,966

318,000

3/8/2016

Steven M.
Stellato

$ 130,001
11,751

1,590

38.76 $ 481,442

445,560

3/8/2016

Hamlet T.
Newsom, Jr.

$ 481,515
43,530

2,228

38.76 $ 224,595

984,750

3/8/2016

David F. Hrinak

$ 224,653
20,307

4,924

Grant Date
Exercise or Fair Value
Base Price of of Stock
Option
and Option
Awards
Awards
(5)
($/Sh)
($) (6)

$ 224,582
5,796

3/8/2016
Clayton E.
Killinger

All Other Option
Awards: Number
of Securities
Underlying
Options (#) (4)

38.76 $ 68,915

279,400
738

1,476

3/8/2016

2,952

$ 60,534
1,563

3/8/2016

$ 60,582
5,475
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38.76 $ 60,554

(1) The amounts in these columns represent the potential payouts under the CST 2016 short-term incentive program, which were earned based on performance for the 2016
fiscal year. The threshold payout is the minimum amount payable, the target payout represents the amount payable for achieving the target level of performance, and the
maximum payout represents the maximum amount payable, under the CST 2016 short-term incentive program.
(2) Represents an award of CST MSUs under the CST long-term incentive program. These CST MSUs vest in full three (3) years from the date of grant. A threshold 50% of
target awards is earned if the Ending Stock Price (as defined in the CST MSU award agreement) is 67% of the Beginning Stock Price (as defined in the CST MSU award
agreement), with awards forfeited entirely if stock price performance is below this level. The maximum number of CST MSUs earned cannot exceed 200% of the target
award. CST dividend payments for CST MSUs would be paid once CST MSUs vest and the number of CST MSUs earned is calculated based on performance metrics under
the CST MSU award agreement.
(3) Represents an award of CST RSUs under the CST long-term incentive program. These CST RSUs vest in one-third (1/3) increments each year for three (3) years on the
anniversary of the grant date. CST dividend equivalent payments on CST RSUs are paid as and when dividends are declared and paid on CST's outstanding common stock.
(4) Represents an award of CST Stock Options under the CST long-term incentive program. These CST Stock Options vest in one-third (1/3) increments each year for three
years on the anniversary of the grant date.
(5) The exercise price is the mean of the high and low reported sales price per share on the NYSE of CST's common stock on the date of grant. Under the CST Brands, Inc.
Amended and Restated 2013 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan, the exercise price for CST Stock Options granted cannot be less than the mean of the high and low reported
sales price per share on the NYSE of CST’s common stock on the date of grant.
(6) The amounts shown represent the grant date fair value of awards for each of the fiscal years shown computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation. See Note 18 of the notes of the consolidated financial statements included in CST's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 filed with the SEC for a discussion of all assumptions made in the calculation of this amount.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
The following table provides information regarding the number of outstanding equity awards held by our NEOs at December 31, 2016.

Option Awards (1)

Name

Number of
Number of
Securities
Securities
Underlying
Underlying
Unexercised
Unexercised
Options
Options
Exercisable (#) Unexerciseable (#)

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

Stock Awards

Number of
Shares or Units
of Stock That
Option
Have Not
Expiration Date Vested (#) (2)

Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger

David F. Hrinak

25,000
33,362
22,614

6,531
11,751

—
16,681
45,228
43,530

29.530
31.245
41.405
38.760

5/6/2023
3/10/2024
3/12/2025
3/8/2026

13,062

41.405

3/12/2025

—

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards
Number of
Market Value
Unearned
of Shares or
Shares, Units,
Units of Stock or Other Rights
That Have Not That Have Not
Vested ($) (3)
Vested (4)

38.760

3/8/2026

2,732

(5)

68,819

6,294
7,858
12,423

(6)

303,056
378,363
598,167

2,270
2,634
3,354

(9)

(7)
(8)

(10)
(11)

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Market or
Payout Value of
Unearned
Shares, Units or
Other Rights
That Have Not
Vested

11,739

481,440

109,301
126,827
161,495
3,169

129,967

Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.

780

31,989

Steven M. Stellato

904

37,075
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(1) The amounts in the Option Awards section represent awards of CST Stock Options.
(2) CST Stock Options vest in one-third (1/3) increments each year for three years on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of grant.
(3) The amounts in the Stock Awards section include Phantom Units, CST RSUs and CST MSUs.
(4) The unvested portion of these CST MSU awards will vest in full three (3) years from the date of grant, or at completion of the Merger, whichever comes first.
(5) For CST RSUs, the amount in this column is based upon a fair market value of $48.15 per share, which was the fair market value of CST’s common stock on December 30,
2016. For the Partnership's phantom units, the amount in this column is based upon a fair market value of $25.16 per unit, which was the price of the Partnership’s common
unit on December 30, 2016.
(6) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest on March 10, 2017.
(7) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest in two equal installments on March 12, 2017 and March 12, 2018, or at completion of the
Merger, whichever comes first.
(8) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest in three equal annual installments on March 8, 2017, March 8, 2018 and March 8, 2019, or at
completion of the Merger, whichever comes first.
(9) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest in two equal installments on March 12, 2017 and March 12, 2018, or at completion of the
Merger, whichever comes first.
(10) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest on October 1, 2017.
(11) Represent awards of CST RSUs. The unvested portion of this award will vest in three equal installments on March 8, 2017, March 8, 2018 and March 8, 2019, or at
completion of the Merger, whichever comes first.

Option Exercises and Equity Vested
The following table sets forth information regarding vesting of phantom unit and profits interests awards of the Partnership as well as CST RSUs and CST
Stock Options for our NEOs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

Option Awards

Name
Jeremy L. Bergeron

Number of Shares or
Units Acquired on
Exercise(#)
47,133

Stock Awards

Number of Shares or
Value Realized on
Units of Stock
Exercise ($)
Acquired on Vesting(#)
486,798

(1)

Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Steven M. Steallato

Value Realized on
Vesting ($)

20,956

(2)

1,113,439

29,556

(3)

1,103,093

6,948

(4)

247,556

18,198

(5)

118,739

5,109

(6)

241,379

9,558

(7)

86,171

3,081

(8)

148,427

(1) As approved by the Compensation Committee, 47,133 outstanding CST Stock Options were vested and exercised on December 27, 2016.
(2) Represents an amount that includes one third (1/3) of a CST RSU award vested on March 10, 2016, representing 860 shares of CST common stock, one third (1/3) of a CST
RSU award vested on March 12, 2016, representing 940 shares of CST common stock, a CST restricted stock award vested in full on May 6, 2016, representing 1,500 shares
of CST common stock, and, as approved by the Compensation Committee, a CST RSU award granted on March 10, 2014 vested in full on December 23, 2016, representing
860 shares of CST common stock, two thirds (2/3) of a CST RSU award granted on March 12, 2015 vested in full on December 23, 2016, representing 1,880 shares of CST
common stock, a CST RSU award granted on March 8, 2016 vested in full on December 23, 2016, representing 5,796 shares of CST common stock, and a CST MSU award
granted on March 8, 2016 vested in full on December 23, 2016, representing 7,775 shares of CST common stock. In addition, one third (1/3) of an award of phantom units
in the Partnership vested on April 14, 2016, representing 1,345 common units of the Partnership.
(3) Represents an amount that includes one third (1/3) of a CST RSU award vested on March 10, 2016, representing 6,294 shares of CST common stock; one third (1/3) of a
CST RSU award vested on March 12, 2016, representing 3,929 shares of CST common stock; a restricted stock award vested in full on May 6, 2016, representing 10,000
shares of CST common stock, and one third (1/3) of a CST restricted stock award vested on May 6, 2016, representing 9,333 shares of CST common stock.
(4) Represents an amount that includes one third (1/3) of a CST RSU award vested on March 12, 2016, representing 1,135 shares of common CST stock; and one third (1/3) of
a CST RSU award vested on October 1, 2016, representing 2,634 shares of common CST stock.
(5) As approved by the Compensation Committee, 18,198 outstanding CST Stock Options were vested and exercised on December 27, 2016.
(6) Represents an amount that includes one third (1/3) of a CST RSU award vested on March 23, 2016, representing 467 shares of CST common stock; and as approved by the
Compensation Committee, two CST RSU awards granted on March 23, 2015 vested on December 23, 2016, representing 1,585
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shares of CST common stock, a CST RSU award granted on March 8, 2016 vested on December 23, 2016, representing 1,779 shares of CST common stock, and a CST
MSU award granted on March 8, 2016 vested in full on December 23, 2016 representing 1,278 shares of CST common stock.
(7) As approved by the Compensation Committee, 9,558 outstanding CST Stock Options were vested and exercised on December 27, 2016.
(8) As approved by the Compensation Committee, a CST RSU award granted on June 1, 2015 vested on December 23, 2016, representing 706 shares of CST common stock, a
CST RSU award granted on March 8, 2016 vested on December 23, 2016, representing 1,563 shares of CST common stock, and a CST MSU award granted on March 8,
2016 vested in full on December 23, 2016 representing 812 shares of CST common stock.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Excess Savings Plan
CST established the Excess Savings Plan, which is a non-qualified deferred compensation program to provide benefits to CST employees whose annual
contributions to the CST Brands Savings Plan (a qualified 401(k) plan) are subject to the regulatory limitations. Under the Excess Savings Plan, CST makes
annual contributions in the first quarter of each year for the previous fiscal year. Some of our NEOs participated in the Excess Savings Plan during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2016. The following table provides information concerning the contributions, earnings, withdrawals and distributions in the Excess
Savings Plan during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016

Name

Executive contributions
in last FY($)

Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Steven M. Stellato

—
—
—
—
—

Registrant contributions
in last FY($)(1)

5,096
15,660
4,252
2,120
576

Aggregate Earning in
last FY ($)(1)

183
1,708
—
—
—

Aggregate
withdrawals/distributions
($)

—
—
—
—
—

Aggregate balance at
last FYE ($)

9,264
54,697
4,252
2,120
576

(1) The sum of the amounts included in these columns is included in the "Change in Pension Value and Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Earning" for 2016 in the
Summary Compensation Table for each NEO.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan
Pursuant to the NQDC, our NEOs were offered to defer up to 75% of their base salary, up to 100% of their annual bonus and up to 100% of their annual grant
of CST RSUs for the calendar year. All deferrals of base salary are 100% vested and vesting of deferrals of other bonus or equity awards is determined in
accordance with the terms of the applicable awards.

Name

Executive contributions
in last FY($)(1)

Jeremy L. Bergeron
Clayton E. Killinger
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.
Steven M. Stellato

Registrant contributions
in last FY($)

—
—
—
207,144
—

—
—
—
—
—

Aggregate Earning in
last FY ($)

—
—
—
—
—

Aggregate
withdrawals/distributions
($)

—
—
—
—
—

Aggregate balance at
last FYE ($)

—
—
—
207,144
—

(1) All amounts in this column are included in the values reflected in the Summary Compensation Table for 2016 in the income category from which they were deferred.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control
Our NEOs may be entitled to certain payments upon termination of their employment under certain circumstances, in each case, as more fully described
below. Any such payments that are to be made in cash will be subject to reimbursement under the Amended Omnibus Agreement.
Executive Income Continuity Plan (the “EICP”)
The Partnership adopted the EICP on May 28, 2014 (as further amended) for all persons who are designated as executive officers of the General Partner by
resolution of the Board (the “Officers”) and any persons who provide management services to the
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Partnership and are designated as plan participants by the Board are eligible to participate in the EICP (each a “Participant”). Messrs. Bergeron, Killinger,
Hrinak, Newsom and Stellato are each designated as “Officers” under the EICP.
The EICP provides that if an Officer is terminated from providing management services to the Partnership or the General Partner other than due to death,
disability, retirement, cause or voluntary resignation (other than for good reason (as defined in the EICP)) (a “Termination”), then such Officer is entitled to
receive a severance payment, paid in 12 equal monthly installments, equal to the sum of (i) the Officer’s annual salary as of the date of termination, plus
(ii) the amount of the Officer’s annual target bonus under the applicable annual incentive compensation plan in place at the time the termination occurs (the
sum of (i) and (ii), the “Compensation Amount”). In addition, the Officer (and his dependents, as applicable) will receive the continuation of their medical,
dental and other benefits for a period of one year from the date of termination, all unvested awards under the Partnership’s Plan held by such Officer shall vest
immediately upon Termination and the Officer is also entitled to be reimbursed for outplacement services for one year subsequent to the Termination, and, in
certain circumstances, reimbursement of relocation expenses and legal fees and expenses (all such benefits, the “Continued Benefits”). If the Termination of
an Officer occurs in connection with, or within 24 months after, a change in control of the Partnership (which includes the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement), then the Officer will receive a severance payment, paid in a single lump sum in cash, equal to 2.99 times the
Compensation Amount.
In addition, Messrs. Bergeron, Killinger, Newsom and Stellato are also each parties to a Separation Agreement with CST (“CST Separation Agreement”),
which provides severance benefits upon a qualifying termination of employment from CST. If the employment of an executive of CST were terminated by
CST without cause or by the executive for good reason within two years following a change in control of CST (such as the Merger), the executive would be
entitled to the following:
ŸSeverance Payment. A cash severance payment equal to the product of (a) 2.0 (for Messrs. Killinger and Bergeron) and 1.5 (for Messrs. Newsom
and Stellato), multiplied by (b) the sum of the executive’s annual base salary plus target annual short term incentive opportunity, which severance
payment is payable in a lump sum;
Ÿ Prorated Target Annual Short-Term Incentive. A cash payment equal to the executive’s target annual short term incentive opportunity for the year
of termination, prorated for the portion of the year elapsed as of the last day of the month of termination, which payment is payable in a lump sum;
and,
Ÿ Ancillary Benefits. Continued medical, dental and other insurance benefits for a period of three years from the date of termination on the same
basis as immediately prior to the date of termination, or if such continued coverage is not permitted by applicable plans or law, a lump sum payment
equal to the value of CST’s contribution for such coverage, and reimbursement of costs incurred in connection with a move back to the executive’s
original work location prior to the change in control and of reasonable outplacement expenses in seeking comparable employment during the first
year following the date of termination.
As a condition of receiving the severance benefits under the CST Separation Agreements, each of the executives must execute a release of claims and comply,
for one year following the date of termination, with restrictive covenants concerning non-competition and non-solicitation of employees, as well as perpetual
confidentiality and non-disparagement covenants.
In the event that a termination in connection with a change in control that triggers payment under both the CST Separation Agreement and the EICP, the
EICP provides that payments and benefits would be the greater of those provided in either of the CST Separation Agreement or EICP, with the exception of
Mr. Killinger. The EICP limits Mr. Killinger’s aggregate cash severance payments under the EICP and his CST Separation Agreement to no more than 2.0
times the cash severance payable under his CST Separation Agreement and the greater of other payments and benefits provided in either the CST Separation
Agreement or the EICP.
All payments due under the EICP will be conditioned on the execution by the Participant of a release and non-disparagement agreement. All payments and
benefits paid under the EICP are the financial responsibility of the Partnership.
If amounts payable to an Officer under the EICP (together with any other amounts that are payable by the Partnership as a result of a change in control
(collectively, the “Payments”) exceed the amount allowed under Section 280G of the Code for such Officer, thereby subjecting the Officer to an excise tax
under section 4999 of the Code, then the Payments shall either be: (i) reduced to the level at which no excise tax applies, such that the full amount of the
Payments would be equal to three times the Officer’s “base amount” (as defined in the Code), or (ii) paid in full, which would subject the Officer to the excise
tax. The Partnership will determine, in good faith, which outcome produces the best net after tax position for an Officer, but the Partnership will not provide
any gross-up payments for excise taxes.
Under the Merger Agreement, CST could engage an expert (a) to perform calculations regarding Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code and (b) to recommend
and implement strategies to mitigate any issues resulting from application of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code and to maximize the net after-tax proceeds
received by any individual subject to Section 4999 of the Code. As
127

contemplated in the Merger Agreement, CST reasonably determined that the consummation of the Merger would not occur in 2016 and in order to mitigate
the impact of Section 4999 of the Code. Based on the recommendations of its consultants, CST accelerated the vesting of CST equity awards, and the
payment of annual incentive awards in respect of 2016, into 2016, for Messrs. Bergeron, Newsom and Stellato.
The table below estimates the amount of compensation and benefits to be provided to each of our NEOs in the event of termination of such NEO’s
employment under certain circumstances, pursuant to the terms of the EICP. These amounts are estimates of the amounts that would be paid or provided to
our NEOs upon termination of employment or a change in control had the termination occurred on December 31, 2016. The actual amounts can only be
determined at the time of such NEO’s separation from CST. Accordingly, if termination had taken place prior to December 31, 2016, the amounts payable
with respect to the short-term incentive program would have been reduced to reflect the pro rata portion of the NEO’s annual target short-term incentive
award.

Termination by the Company
Without Cause (other than for
Good Reason) ($) (1)

Name

Severance Benefit

Jeremy L. Bergeron

Separation Payment
Short-Term Incentive Program
Long-Term Incentive Program
Health Benefits

1,270,500
250,250

Clayton E. Killinger

Separation Payment
Short-Term Incentive Program
Long-Term Incentive Program
Health Benefits

2,297,750
492,375

David F. Hrinak

Separation Payment
Short-Term Incentive Program
Long-Term Incentive Program
Health Benefits

594,080
222,780

Hamlet T. Newsom, Jr.

Separation Payment
Short-Term Incentive Program
Long-Term Incentive Program
Health Benefits

954,000
159,000

Steven M. Stellato

Separation Payment
Short-Term Incentive Program
Long-Term Incentive Program
Health Benefits

828,200
139,700

47,204

48,321

44,319

43,279

27,870

Termination by the Company for
Good Reason or Without Cause
in Connection with a Change of
Control ($) (2)

1,899,398
250,250
131,546
91,611
4,595,500
492,375
802,631
94,963
1,776,299
222,780
216,674
82,957
1,426,230
159,000
56,661
79,837
1,253,109
139,700
61,809
33,610

(1) Represents the sum of (i) a severance payment to each NEO (except for Mr. Hrinak) under the officer's CST Separation Agreement equal to the product of (a) 1.0

multiplied by (b) the sum of the NEO's annual base salary plus target annual short-term incentive opportunity; plus (ii) a severance payment to each NEO (including Mr.
Hrinak) under the EICP of (a) 1.0 multiplied by (b) the sum of the NEO’s annual base salary plus target annual short-term incentive opportunity.
(2) Represents the sum of (i) a severance payment to each NEO (except for Mr. Hrinak) under the officer's CST Separation Agreement equal to the product of (a) 2.0 (for

Messrs. Bergeron and Killinger) or 1.5 (for Messrs. Newsom and Stellato), multiplied by (b) the sum of the NEO’s annual base salary plus target annual short-term
incentive opportunity; plus (ii) a severance payment to each NEO (including Mr. Hrinak) according to the terms of the EICP in which due to the cap on payments
applicable to (a) Mr. Killinger, his severance payment under the EICP is equal to the severance payment under his CST Separation Agreement; (b) Mr. Hrinak, his
severance payment under the EICP is 2.99 multiplied by the sum of his annual salary plus target annual short-term incentive opportunity; and (c) Messrs. Bergeron,
Newsom and Stellato, the sum of each of their respective severance payments under the EICP and the CST Separation Agreements cannot exceed 2.99 multiplied by the
sum of each of their annual salary plus target annual short-term incentive opportunity for each.
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Director Compensation
Overview
In connection with the GP Purchase, CST agreed to cause the appointment of Mr. Topper as a director of the General Partner for a period of at least five years,
commencing on October 1, 2014 or until a change in control of CST, including circumstances in which CST no longer controls the General Partner. Further,
Mr. Topper may be removed from the Board in certain circumstances where cause exists.
On December 31, 2016, the following were members to the Board: Kimberly S. Lubel, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the CST Board;
Jeremy L. Bergeron, President of our General Partner; Clayton E. Killinger, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CST and our General
Partner; John B. Reilly, III; Joseph V. Topper, Jr.; Gene Edwards and Justin A. Gannon, as non-employee directors of the board of directors of our General
Partner.
Director Compensation for Fiscal Year 2015
Each non-employee director received cash compensation of $60,000 per year (paid on a quarterly basis). The chairman of each of the audit committee and
conflicts committee received additional cash compensation of $10,000 per the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 (paid on a quarterly basis).
In November 2016, each non-employee director received an award of 1,341 phantom units in an amount equal to $35,000 based on the closing price of the
Partnership’s common units on the date of grant as compensation for six months of service beginning October 1, 2016. Such phantom units will be fully
vested on the one-year anniversary of the grant date and include the payment made by the Partnership of distribution equivalent rights equal to the amount of
distributions authorized to be paid to holders of common units of the Partnership.
Our directors are reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with attending meetings of the Board or its committees. To the extent permitted
under Delaware law, each director is fully indemnified by us for actions associated with being a director.
The following table provides the compensation amounts for each of our non-employee directors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

Stock or Unit Awards
Fees Earned or Paid and Option Awards
in Cash ($)
($)(1)

Name
Kimberly S.

Lubel (2)

All Other
Compensation ($)

Total ($)

—

—

—

—

Joseph V. Topper, Jr. (3)

60,000

35,000

—

95,000

John B. Reilly III (3)

60,000

35,000

—

95,000

—

—

—

—

Clayton E.
Gene

Killinger(2)

Edwards(3) (4)

70,000

35,000

—

105,000

Justin A. Gannon (3) (4)

70,000

35,000

—

105,000

Bergeron (2)

—

—

—

—

Jeremy L.

(1) Under the incentive award program, the directors will have the ability to elect to receive either phantom units or profits interests. Phantom units and profits interests can be

converted to common units or cash, at the discretion of the Board.
(2) Ms. Lubel and Messrs. Killinger and Bergeron are employees of CST and did not receive any compensation for their services as directors of the Board for the year ended

December 31, 2016.
(3) As part of the compensation to non-employee directors for the period October 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017, each of Messrs. Edwards, Gannon, Reilly and Topper received an

equity grant of 1,341 phantom units of the Partnership based upon a fair market value of $26.10 per unit, which was the NYSE closing price of our common units on
November 10, 2016. Each of these phantom units will vest in one installment on the anniversary of the date of grant. These phantom unit awards were accompanied by tandem
distribution equivalent rights that entitle the holder to cash payments equal to the amount of unit distributions authorized to be paid to the holders of Partnership common units.
(4) Messrs. Edwards and Gannon received additional cash compensation of $10,000 per year for their service as chairmen of the conflicts committee and audit committee,

respectively.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
None of the directors or executive officers of our General Partner served as members of the compensation committee of another entity that has or had an
executive officer who served as a member of our Board during the year ended December 31, 2016. As previously noted, we do not have a separate
compensation committee. Decisions regarding the compensation of our NEOs are made, as applicable, by CST’s Compensation Committee.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS
As of February 24, 2017, the following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our common and subordinated units of:
•

Each person known by us to be a beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common units;

•

Our General Partner;

•

Each NEO and director of the Board; and

•

All of the executive officers and directors of the Board, as a group.

Beneficial Ownership of Common Units
Name of Beneficial Owner

Number of Units

Percent of Class

Greater than 5% Stockholders

Harvest Fund Advisors LLC
Oppenheimer Funds, Inc.
CrossAmerica GP LLC
Dunne Manning Inc. (fka Lehigh Gas Corporation)
Energy Realty Partners, LLC
CST Brands, Inc.
Directors
Jeremy L. Bergeron
Gene Edwards
Clayton E. Killinger
Justin A. Gannon
Kimberly S. Lubel
John B. Reilly, III
Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
Named Executive Officers
David F. Hrinak
Hamlet T. Newsom
Steven M. Stellato
Directors and executive officers as a group (10 persons)

*

3,220,349
2,728,357
—
3,782,216
1,854,943
14,394,385

(1)

10,123
19,916
—
6,916
5,600
878,029
7,750,888

(7)

(2)
(3)
(4)(5)
(4)(5)
(6)

(8)
(4)(5)(9)(10)

37,466
—
—
8,708,938

The percentage of units beneficially owned does not exceed one percent of the common units outstanding
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9.606
8.138
—
11.282
5.533
42.936

%
%
%
%
%

*
*
*
*
*
*
23.120 %
*
*
*
25.978 %

(1)

Harvest Fund Advisors LLC has (i) sole power to vote 3,220,349 common units and (ii) sole power to dispose of 3,186,676 common units, based on its Schedule 13FHR filed on February 10, 2017. The address for Harvest Fund Advisors LLC is 100 W. Lancaster Avenue, Suite 200, Wayne, PA 19087.

(2)

Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. has (i) sole power to vote 2,728,357 common units and (ii) sole power to dispose of 2,728,357 common units, based on its Schedule 13F-HR
filed on February 14, 2017. The address for Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. is Two World Financial Center, 225 Liberty Street, New York, NY 10281.

(3)

CrossAmerica GP LLC is the general partner of the Partnership and is wholly owned by CST.

(4)

In connection with the GP Purchase, Mr. Topper entered into a Voting Agreement dated as of October 1, 2014 by and among Mr. Topper, the Topper Trust, Dunne
Manning Inc., an entity wholly owned by the 2004 Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of Joseph V. Topper, Sr. for which Mr. Topper is the trustee (the “Topper Trust”
and collectively, the “Topper Entities”), and CST (the “Voting Agreement”), pursuant to which each of the Topper Entities agrees that at any meeting of the holders of
shares of CST common stock or common units or subordinated units of the Partnership, it will vote or cause to be voted such Topper Entities’ shares or units, as
applicable, in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors of CST or the Board, respectively. The Voting Agreement will remain in effect with
respect to any Topper Entities for so long as any such Topper Entities is (a) a director or officer of CST or affiliate thereof, including the Partnership, (b) the beneficial
owner of more than 3% of the outstanding common stock of CST or (c) the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding common units or subordinated units of
the Partnership.

(5)

The common units shown as beneficially owned by Joseph V. Topper, Jr. include units beneficially owned by entities that are controlled by Mr. Topper, including
Dunne Manning Inc. and Energy Realty Partners, LLC. The units that are beneficially owned by Mr. Topper by way of his control of Dunne Manning Inc. and Energy
Realty Partners, LLC are also shown as beneficially owned by those entities in the table above. The units shown as beneficially owned by Mr. Topper include 28,947
common units to be issued upon the conversion of vested profits interests in March 2017. See “Item Executive Compensation-Compensation Discussion and AnalysisElements of Executive Compensation-Profits Interests” for a description of the profits interests.

(6)

By virtue of the Voting Agreement described above, these amounts include 7,748,960 common units that are owned by Mr. Topper and beneficially owned by entities that
are controlled by Mr. Topper, including Dunne Manning Inc. and Energy Realty Partners, LLC. The common units that are beneficially owned by Mr. Topper by way of
his control of Dunne Manning Inc. and Energy Realty Partners, LLC are also shown as beneficially owned by those entities in the table above.

(7)

Consists of 8,778 common units and 1,345 phantom units that will vest on April 14, 2017. Each phantom unit represents a contingent right to acquire common units.

(8)

Mr. Reilly may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of 738,501 common units beneficially owned by the 2008 Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of John B. Reilly,
Jr. (the “Reilly Trust”) in his capacity as one of two trustees of the Reilly Trust.

(9)

Mr. Topper, as director of the Board, former President and Chief Executive Officer of our General Partner and sole director of Dunne Manning Inc. and as a trustee of
a trust that is the sole shareholder of Dunne Manning Inc., may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the units beneficially owned by Dunne Manning Inc. The
units beneficially owned by Dunne Manning Inc. are included in the number of common units shown as beneficially owned by Mr. Topper in the table above.

(10)

Mr. Topper, as the sole manager and indirect owner of Energy Realty Partners, LLC, may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the units beneficially owned by
Energy Realty Partners, LLC. The units beneficially owned by Energy Realty Partners, LLC are included in the number of units shown as beneficially owned by Mr.
Topper in the table above.

Securities Authorized For Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2016:

Plan Category

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights (1)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders:
Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award
Plan

90,169

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

n/a

Number of securities
remaining
available for future
issuance
under equity
compensation plans

778,090

See Note 18 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for a discussion of the material terms of the Plan.
Merger of the Owner of Our General Partner
On August 21, 2016, CST, the owner of the sole member of our General Partner, entered into the Merger Agreement. As a result, Circle K Stores Inc., a
subsidiary of Couche-Tard, will, through its acquisition of CST, control CST’s interest in the General Partner and CST’s 19.8% limited partner interest in
CrossAmerica as well as all of the IDRs. The Merger is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2017.
Under the EICP, the Merger is considered a change in control event. Any participants in the EICP who experience a qualifying termination event upon or
following consummation of the Merger will be entitled to payments described under “Item 12-Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control”
and certain benefits from us, which could be material and adversely affect the amount of cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
As of February 24, 2017, CST owned 19.8% of the Partnership’s outstanding units and, pursuant to a voting agreement with Joseph V. Topper, Jr. and certain
affiliates, has voting control over an additional 23.1% of the Partnership’s outstanding units. CST also owns the IDRs.
As of February 24, 2017, Mr. Topper owned or controlled 23.1% of the Partnership’s outstanding units, the voting for which is controlled by CST.
As of February 24, 2017, John B. Reilly, III owned or controlled 2.6% of the Partnership’s outstanding units.
The following is a description of transactions, since January 1, 2016, to which the Partnership was or is a party, in which the amount involved exceeds
$120,000 and in which a director, executive officer, holder of more than 5% of our common units or any member of their immediate family had or will have a
direct or indirect material interest, other than the arrangements that are described under “Item 12-Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in
Control.” The terms of the transactions and agreements disclosed in this section were determined by and among related parties and, consequently, are not the
result of arm’s length negotiations. Such terms are not necessarily at least as favorable to the parties to these transactions and agreements as the terms which
could have been obtained from unrelated third parties.
Distributions and Payments to our General Partner and Certain Related Parties
The following table summarizes the distributions and payments to be made by us to our General Partner and certain related parties in connection with the
ongoing operation of our business and distributions and payments that would be made by us if we were to liquidate in accordance with the terms of our
partnership agreement.
Operational Stage

Distributions

We will generally make cash distributions to the unitholders, including CST, its affiliates, Messrs. Topper and
Reilly and their respective affiliates.
Assuming we have sufficient cash available for distribution to pay the full minimum quarterly distribution on
all of our outstanding units for four quarters, CST and its affiliates, Messrs. Topper and Reilly and their
respective affiliates would receive an annual distribution of $26.7 million, collectively, on their common
units.
If distributions exceed the minimum quarterly distribution and other higher target levels, CST, as the holder of
the IDRs, is entitled to increasing percentages of the distributions, up to 50.0% of the distributions above the
highest target level.
Cash distributions to our General Partner, DMI and its affiliates, Messrs. Topper and Reilly and their respective
affiliates amounted to $36.0 million in 2016.

Payments to our General Partner
and its affiliates

We pay CST a management fee, which in 2016 was $856,000 per month plus a variable fee of between zero
and $0.003 per gallon for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites
we operate. In addition, the Partnership is required to reimburse CST for certain outsourced services to be
provided by CST to or on behalf of the Partnership. The Partnership incurred $15.9 million in management
fees under the Amended Omnibus Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2016. CST and CrossAmerica
have the right to negotiate the amount of the management fee on an annual basis, or more often as
circumstances require.

Liquidation Stage
Liquidation

Upon our liquidation, the partners, including our General Partner, is entitled to receive liquidating
distributions according to their particular capital account balances.

Ownership of Our General Partner
Since October 1, 2014, CST has indirectly owned all of the membership interests of our General Partner.
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Agreements with CST and its Affiliates
On October 1, 2014, in connection with the GP Purchase, we entered into certain agreements with CST and its affiliates, as described in more detail below.
Amended Omnibus Agreement
CrossAmerica entered into the Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement on October 1, 2014, by and among CrossAmerica, the General Partner, DMI, DMS,
CST Services LLC (“CST Services") and Joseph V. Topper, Jr. (the “Amended Omnibus Agreement”).. The terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement were
approved by the conflicts committee of our Board. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, CST Services agrees, among other things, to provide, or
cause to be provided, to the Partnership certain management services.
We incurred $15.9 million and $15.3 million in charges for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, including incentive compensation
costs and non-cash stock-based compensation expense under the Amended Omnibus Agreement.
Amounts payable to CST related to these transactions were $10.0 million at December 31, 2016. At the end of each calendar year, we and CST have the right
to negotiate a reduction or increase to the amounts due under the Amended Omnibus Agreement for such year. CST and we also have the right to negotiate
the amount of the annual management fee as circumstances require. CrossAmerica and CST mutually agreed to settle certain amounts due under the terms of
the Amended Omnibus Agreement in newly issued common units representing limited partner interests in CrossAmerica. As a result in 2016 and 2015, we
issued 440,266 and 259,312 limited partner units of CrossAmerica to CST Services valued at $11.2 million and $7.2 million, respectively. CST and
CrossAmerica agreed to settle $4.5 million of the fourth quarter 2016 management fee in limited partner units. See Note 15 of the notes to our consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for additional information.
Management Services and Term. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, CST provides us and our General Partner with management, administrative
and operating services. These services include accounting, tax, legal, internal audit, risk management and compliance, environmental compliance and
remediation management oversight, treasury, information technology and other administrative functions. CST provides the Partnership and our General
Partner with personnel necessary to carry out these services and any other services necessary to operate the Partnership’s business as requested by the
Partnership. We do not have any obligation to directly compensate the officers of our General Partner or employees of CST; however, the Partnership
reimburses CST under the Amended Omnibus Agreement for its services to the General Partner and Partnership, as described in this section.
The initial term of the Amended Omnibus Agreement is five years and will automatically renew for additional one year terms unless any party provides
written notice to the other parties 180 days prior to the end of the then annual term. The Partnership has the right to terminate the agreement at any time upon
180 days’ prior written notice.
Fees and Reimbursements. We pay CST a management fee for providing services, which in 2016 was $856,000 per month plus a variable fee of between zero
and $0.003 for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites we operate. Services provided by, or on behalf of, CST, not
outsourced to an independent third party, include accounting; administrative; billing and invoicing; books and record keeping; budgeting, forecasting, and
financial planning and analysis; management (including the management and oversight of the MLP’s wholesale motor fuel distribution and real estate
business consistent with past practice); operations; payroll; contract administration; maintenance of internal controls; financial reporting, including SEC
reporting and compliance; office space; purchasing and materials management; risk management and administration of insurance programs; information
technology (includes hardware and software existing or acquired in the future for which title is retained by CST); in-house legal; compensation, benefits and
human resources administration; cash management; corporate finance, treasury credit and debt administration; employee training; and miscellaneous
administration and overhead expenses. In addition, the Partnership is required to reimburse CST for certain outsourced services to be provided by CST to or
on behalf of the Partnership, as set forth in the Amended Omnibus Agreement.
Rights of First Refusal. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and DMS agree, and are required to cause their controlled affiliates
to agree, that for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, if (a) Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or any of their controlled affiliates
have the opportunity to acquire assets used, or a controlling interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel distribution or retail gas
station operation businesses, and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be acquired have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the aggregate, then Mr. Topper,
DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates will offer such acquisition opportunity to the Partnership and give the Partnership a reasonable opportunity to
acquire, at the same price plus any related transaction costs and expenses, such assets or business, either before or promptly after the consummation of such
acquisition by Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates. The decision to acquire or not acquire any such assets or businesses requires the approval
of the conflicts committee of the Board. Any assets or businesses that the Partnership does not acquire pursuant to the right of first refusal may be acquired
and operated by Mr. Topper,
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DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates.
Rights of First Offer. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and DMS agree, and are required to cause their controlled affiliates
to agree, for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, to notify the Partnership of their desire to sell any of their assets or
businesses if (a) Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or any of their controlled affiliates, decides to attempt to sell (other than to another controlled affiliate of
Mr. Topper, DMI or DMS) any assets used, or any interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel distribution or retail gas station
operation businesses, to a third party and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be sold have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the aggregate. Prior to
selling such assets or businesses to a third party, Mr. Topper, DMI and DMS are required to negotiate with the Partnership exclusively and in good faith for a
reasonable period of time in order to give the Partnership an opportunity to enter into definitive documentation for the purchase and sale of such assets or
businesses on terms that are mutually acceptable to Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates, and the Partnership. If the Partnership and
Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates have not entered into a letter of intent or a definitive purchase and sale agreement with respect to such
assets or businesses within such period, Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, and their controlled affiliates, have the right to sell such assets or businesses to a third party
following the expiration of such period on any terms that are acceptable to Mr. Topper, DMI, DMS, or their controlled affiliates, and such third party. The
decision to acquire or not to acquire assets or businesses pursuant to this right requires the approval of the conflicts committee of the Board.
Review of Management Fee. At the end of each calendar year, we have the right to submit to CST a proposal to reduce the amount of the management fee for
such year if we believe that the services performed by CST do not justify payment of the amount of management fees paid by us for such year. In addition,
CST has the right, at the end of each calendar year, to submit to us a proposal to increase the amount of the management fee for such year if CST believes that
the services performed by CST justify an increase in the management fee. If any such proposal is submitted, we will negotiate with CST to determine if the
management fee for such year should be reduced or increased, and, if so, the amount of such reduction or increase. In addition, upon a material change in our
structure or our business, the conflicts committee of our General Partner will review the management fee. If the conflicts committee determines that, based on
a change in our structure or our business, the management fee should be modified or otherwise altered, we will negotiate with CST to determine the
appropriate modification or alteration of the management fee. Effective January 1, 2016, the fixed component of the management fee was increased to
$856,000 per month, which was approved by the executive committee of the CST Board and the conflicts committee of the Board.
General Indemnification; Limitation of Liability. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, we are required to indemnify CST for any liabilities incurred
by CST attributable to the management, administrative and operating services provided to us under the agreement, other than liabilities resulting from CST’s
bad faith, fraud, or willful misconduct. In addition, CST is required to indemnify us for any liabilities we incur as a result of CST’s bad faith, fraud, or willful
misconduct in providing management, administrative and operating services under the Amended Omnibus Agreement. Other than indemnification claims
based on CST’s bad faith, fraud, or willful misconduct, CST’s liability to us for services provided under the Amended Omnibus Agreement cannot exceed
$5,000,000 in the aggregate.
Fuel Sales and Rental Income
We sell wholesale motor fuel under a master fuel distribution agreement to 43 CST retail sites and lease real property on 74 retail sites to CST under a master
lease agreement, each having initial 10-year terms. The fuel distribution agreement provides us with a fixed wholesale mark-up per gallon. The master lease
agreement is a triple net lease.
Revenues from motor fuel sales and real property rental income from CST were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016
Revenues from fuel sales to CST
Rental Income from CST

$
$

2015
118,745
17,188

$
$

135,813
11,422

Receivables from CST were $4.4 million and $2.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to these transactions.
Purchase (“Drop Down”) of CST Wholesale Fuel Supply Equity Interests
In January 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply in exchange for approximately 1.5 million common
units with an aggregate consideration of $60.0 million on the date of closing. In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of an additional 12.5% limited partner
equity interest in CST Fuel Supply in exchange for approximately 3.3 million common units and cash in the amount of $17.5 million, with an aggregate
consideration of approximately $110.9 million on the
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date of closing. These transactions were approved by the conflicts committee of our Board and the executive committee of and full CST Board.
CST Fuel Supply distributes motor fuel primarily to CST’s retail sites at its cost plus a fixed margin of $0.05 per gallon and has no material net assets. CST
Fuel Supply distributed approximately 1.8 billion and 1.9 billion gallons of motor fuel during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded income of $16.0 million from CST Fuel Supply.
Refund payment related to CST sale of California and Wyoming Assets
In July 2016, CST provided a refund payment to us related to our 17.5% interest in CST Fuel Supply resulting from the sale by CST of 79 retail sites in
California and Wyoming to 7-Eleven, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SEI Fuel Services, Inc., to which CST Fuel Supply no longer supplies motor fuel.
The purpose of the refund payment was to make us whole for the decrease in the value of our interest in CST Fuel Supply arising from sales volume decreases.
The total refund payment received by the Partnership, as approved by the conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the CST
Board, was approximately $18.2 million ($17.5 million in cash with the remainder in CrossAmerica common units owned by CST) and was accounted for as a
contribution to equity.
Purchase of New to Industry retail sites (“NTIs”) from CST
In July 2015, we completed the purchase of real property at 29 NTIs from CST in exchange for approximately 0.3 million common units and cash in the
amount of $124.4 million, for an aggregate consideration of $134.0 million on the date of closing. We leased the real property associated with these NTIs
back to CST and CST continued to operate the sites pursuant to a triple net lease at a lease rate of 7.5%, per annum, of the fair value of the property. This
transaction was approved by the conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of the CST Board and the full CST Board. We accounted for
the transactions as entities under common control.
Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST
In February 2016, we purchased 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million with historic annual volumes of
approximately 20 million gallons. This transaction was approved on our behalf by the conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of
the CST Board. Since this was a transaction between entities under common control, the $2.9 million purchase price was accounted for as a distribution
recorded in partners’ capital.
We purchase the fuel supplied to these 32 sites from CST Fuel Supply, in which we own a 17.5% interest, and resell the wholesale motor fuel to the
independent dealers and subwholesalers. We purchased $20.4 million of motor fuel from CST Fuel Supply for the year ended December 31, 2016 in
connection with these 32 sites.
Agreements with DMI and Affiliates
DMI is affiliated with our former President and Chief Executive Officer and current director of the Board, Mr. Topper.
Lease Agreements for our Principal Executive Offices
Our principal executive offices are in Allentown, Pennsylvania. Through February 2016, we subleased office space from CST that CST leased from DMI.
Since February 2016, we have subleased office space from CST that CST leased from an affiliate of John B. Reilly, III, a director of our Board. The
management fee charged by CST to the Partnership, under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, incorporates this rental expense, and amounted to $0.1 million
and $0.2 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively. In addition, we paid amounts directly to DMI and the affiliate of J.B. Reilly, III amounting to $0.5 million
and $0.2 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Agreements with DMS
DMS is affiliated with our former President and Chief Executive Officer and current director of the Board, Mr. Topper.
DMS is an operator of convenience stores that purchases substantially all of its motor fuel requirements from us on a wholesale basis. DMS also leases certain
retail site real estate from us in accordance with a master lease agreement between DMS and CrossAmerica.
Revenues from fuel sales and rental income from DMS and its affiliates were as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31,
2016
Revenues from fuel sales to DMS and its affiliates
Rental income from DMS and its affiliates

$
$

254,292
21,208

2015
$
$

322,918
23,474

Motor fuel is sold to DMS at our cost plus a fixed mark-up per gallon. Receivables from DMS totaled $8.6 million and $7.3 million at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively.
Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement with DMS
In connection with the IPO, the Partnership and DMS entered into a PMPA Franchise Agreement pursuant to which the Partnership is the exclusive distributor
of motor fuel to all sites operated by DMS for a period of 15 years. We have the right to impose the brand of fuel that is distributed to DMS. There are no
minimum volume requirements that DMS is required to satisfy. We charged DMS the DTW prices for each grade of product in effect at the time title to the
product passes to DMS. The conflicts committee of the Board shall, no less than annually, review the DTW prices charged to DMS to ensure that the prices
are not below reasonable market rates charged to similarly situated or otherwise comparable third-party sites over a representative period of time. We have a
right of first refusal in connection with any proposed transfer by DMS of its interest in the wholesale supply agreement. The wholesale supply agreement
contains cross-default provisions with each lease agreement with DMS.
We entered into an Amendment to the PMPA Franchise Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2014, by and between LGW, a subsidiary of the Partnership, and
DMS (the “Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment”) pursuant to which the pricing terms were amended. Prior to the Wholesale Fuel Supply
Agreement Amendment, the agreement provided that we charge DMS DTW pricing, which provided for a variable cent-per-gallon margin for each grade of
product in effect at the time title to the product passed to DMS. The Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment amends the pricing terms of the
agreement to provide for rack plus pricing.
Lease Agreement with DMS
On May 28, 2014, we entered into a master lease agreement with DMS, with an effective date of June 1, 2014, which consolidated multiple individual leases
then in effect between DMS and the Partnership into a single master lease agreement. We entered into two amendments to the master lease agreement on
October 1, 2015 and October 22, 2015. Effective February 1, 2016, we entered into an amendment to the master lease agreement. The master lease agreement,
and amendments thereto, have been approved by the conflicts committee of the Board.
Maintenance and Environmental Costs
Certain maintenance and environmental monitoring and remediation activities are undertaken by Synergy Environmental, Inc., an entity affiliated with Mr.
Topper as approved by the conflicts committee of the Board. We paid $1.6 million and $1.3 million to this related party for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.
Other Related Party Transactions
Lease and Supply Agreements with other Related Parties
The Partnership leases certain motor fuel stations to TopStar, a related party of Mr. Topper, under cancelable operating leases. Rent income under these
agreements was $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The Partnership leases certain motor fuel stations from related parties of Mr. Topper, under cancelable operating leases. Rent expense under these agreements
was $0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Aircraft Usage
From time to time, we use aircrafts owned by a group of individuals that includes Mr. Topper under lease agreements between a CST affiliate and such group
of individuals. These arrangements were approved in March 2015 and June 2015 by the nominating and governance committee of the CST Board because
Mr. Topper served as a director of the CST Board at the time. We paid $0.2 million to this related party for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Zimri DM, LLC
In connection with our purchase of PMI in May 2014, we divested the PMI lubricants business, which was subsequently purchased by a company affiliated
with Mr. Topper. (“Zimri”). PMI provided certain services to Zimri pursuant to a transition services agreement. All services have been terminated and no
receivable amounts are outstanding.
Review, Approval and Ratification of Related Person Transactions
The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that provides that the Board or its authorized committee will periodically review all related
person transactions that are required to be disclosed under SEC rules and, when appropriate, initially authorize or ratify all such transactions. In the event that
the Board or its authorized committee considers ratification of a related person transaction and determines not to so ratify, the Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct provides that our management will make all reasonable efforts to cancel or annul the transaction.
The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct provides that, in determining whether or not to recommend the initial approval or ratification of a related person
transaction, the Board or its authorized committee should consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances available, including (if applicable) but not
limited to: (i) whether there is an appropriate business justification for the transaction; (ii) the benefits that accrue to us as a result of the transaction; (iii) the
terms available to unrelated third parties entering into similar transactions; (iv) the impact of the transaction on a director’s independence (in the event the
related person is a director, an immediate family member of a director or an entity in which a director or an immediately family member of a director is a
partner, shareholder, member or executive officer); (v) the availability of other sources for comparable products or services; (vi) whether it is a single
transaction or a series of ongoing, related transactions; and (vii) whether entering into the transaction would be consistent with the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct.
Director Independence
For a discussion of the independence of the Board, please see “Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance Management.”
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The audit committee of the board of directors of our General Partner selected Grant Thornton LLP, or Grant Thornton, an independent registered public
accounting firm, to audit our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. The audit committee’s charter requires the audit
committee to approve in advance all audit and non-audit services to be provided by our independent registered public accounting firm. All services reported
in the audit, audit-related, tax and all other fees categories below with respect to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016
were approved by the audit committee.
The following table summarizes the aggregate Grant Thornton fees that were allocated to us for independent auditing, tax and related services for each of the
last two fiscal years (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Audit fees (1)
Audit-related fees (2)
Tax fees (3)
All other fees (4)

$

1,334
—
—
—

$

1,420
—
—
—

Total

$

1,334

$

1,420
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(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Audit fees represent amounts billed for each of the years presented for professional services rendered in connection with those services normally
provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements including comfort letters, consents and other services related to SEC
matters. In 2015, Grant Thornton provided services related to our equity offerings.
Audit-related fees represent amounts billed in each of the years presented for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the annual audit or quarterly reviews.
Tax fees represent amounts billed in each of the years presented for professional services rendered in connection with tax compliance, tax advice and
tax planning.
All other fees represent amounts billed in each of the years presented for services not classifiable under the other categories listed in the table above.
No such services were rendered by Grant Thornton during 2016 or 2015.

Audit Committee Approval of Audit and Non-audit Services
The audit committee of the board of directors of our General Partner has adopted a pre-approval policy with respect to services which may be performed by
Grant Thornton. This policy lists specific audit-related services as well as any other services that Grant Thornton is authorized to perform and sets out specific
dollar limits for each specific service, which may not be exceeded without additional audit committee authorization. The audit committee reviews the policy
at least annually in order to approve services and limits for the current year. Any service that is not clearly enumerated in the policy must receive specific preapproval by the audit committee prior to engagement.

Part IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)

1. Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of CrossAmerica Partners, LP are included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K:
PAGE
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Partners’ Capital and Comprehensive Income for the
Three Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

67
69
70
71
72
73

2. Financial Statement Schedules and Other Financial Information. No financial statement schedules are submitted because either they are
inapplicable or because the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
3. EXHIBITS. Filed as part of this Form 10-K are the following exhibits:

Exhibit No.

Description

2.1

Fuel Supply Contribution Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2015, by and among CST Brands, Inc., CST Services LLC and CrossAmerica
Partners LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 15, 2015)

2.2

Real Estate Contribution Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2015, by and among CST Brands, Inc., CST Diamond Holdings LLC, Big
Diamond, LLC, Skipper Beverage Company, LLC, CST Shamrock Stations, Inc., CST Arizona Stations, Inc., CrossAmerica Partners LP
and Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica
Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 15, 2015)
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2.3

Master Lease Agreement, dated October 1, 2014, by and among Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc., as Landlord, and CAPL Operations
I, LLC and CST Services LLC, as Tenants, as subsequently amended by Amendment to Master Lease Agreement, dated April 13, 2015,
and Second Amendment to Master Lease Agreement, dated June 15, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the Current Report
on Form 10-Q for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2015)

2.4

Form of Addendum to Master Lease Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2015)

2.5

Fuel Distribution Agreement, dated January 1, 2015, by and among CST Marketing and Supply LLC, and certain subsidiaries of CST
Services LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2015)

3.1

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Lehigh Gas Partners LP (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 11, 2012)

3.2

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Limited Partnership of Lehigh Gas Partners LP (incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 3, 2014)

3.3

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Lehigh Gas Partners LP, dated October 30, 2012, by and among Lehigh
Gas Partners LP, Lehigh Gas GP LLC and Lehigh Gas Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report
on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 30, 2012)

3.4

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Lehigh Gas Partners LP, dated as of October 1,
2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 3, 2014)

3.5

Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of CrossAmerica Partners LP, dated as of
December 3, 2014 (incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 9, 2014)

10.1

Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2012, by and among Lehigh Gas Partners LP, Lehigh Gas GP LLC, Lehigh Gas Corporation,
Lehigh Gas-Ohio, LLC and Joseph V. Topper, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for
CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 30, 2012)

10.2

Amendment to Omnibus Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014, by and among Lehigh Gas Partners LP, Lehigh Gas GP LLC and Lehigh
Gas Corporation (incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2014)

10.3

Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among Lehigh Gas Partners LP, Lehigh Gas GP LLC,
Lehigh Gas Corporation, CST Services, LLC and Lehigh Gas-Ohio LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report
on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 3, 2014)

10.4*

Amendment effective January 1, 2016 of the Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among
Lehigh Gas Partners LP, Lehigh Gas GP LLC, Lehigh Gas Corporation, CST Services, LLC and Lehigh Gas-Ohio LLC.

10.5

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 4, 2014, by and among the Lehigh Gas Partners LP, as borrower,
certain domestic subsidiaries of Lehigh Gas Partners LP from time to time party thereto, the lenders party thereto, and RBS Citizens, N.A.,
KeyBank National Association and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as joint lead arranger and joint bookrunners, Wells Fargo Bank National
Association, as co-syndication agent, and KeyBank National Association, as co-syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A., as
documentation agent, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as documentation agent, Manufacturers And Traders Trust Company, as
co-documentation agent, Royal Bank of Canada, as co-documentation agent, Santander Bank, N.A., as co-documentation agent, and
Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as administrative agent for the lenders thereunder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 6, 2014)
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10.6

First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 2, 2014, by and among Lehigh Gas Partners LP,
certain domestic subsidiaries of Lehigh Gas Partners LP, the lenders from party thereto, and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as
administration agent for the lenders thereunder (incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for
CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 3, 2014)

10.7

Waiver, Second Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Joinder, dated as of September 30, 2014, by and
among Lehigh Gas Partners LP and Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc., certain domestic subsidiaries of Lehigh Gas Partners LP, the
lenders party thereto, and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as administrative agent for the lenders thereunder (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 3, 2014)

10.8

Third Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 26, 2016 (incorporated by referenced to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December
19, 2016)

10.9

Fourth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 13, 2016 (incorporated by referenced to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 19, 2016)

10.10

Amendment to PMPA Franchise Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and between Lehigh Gas Wholesale LLC and Lehigh GasOhio, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 3, 2014)

10.11

Voting Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among CST Brands, Inc., Joseph V. Topper, Jr., The 2004 Irrevocable Agreement
of Trust of Joseph V. Topper, Sr. and Lehigh Gas Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8K For CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 3, 2014)

10.12

Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan, dated as of July 27, 2012

10.13

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Phantom Units granted to executive officers from
March 15, 2013 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6(a) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2013)

10.14

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Profits Interests with immediate vesting, granted to
directors from March 14, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(b) to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners
LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 10, 2014)

10.15

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Profits Interests, with one year vesting, granted to
directors from March 14, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(c) to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners
LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 10, 2014)

10.16

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Profits Interests granted to executive officers from
March 14, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(d) to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 10, 2014)

10.17

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Phantom Units for Executive Officers with distribution
equivalent rights (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2015)

10.18

Form of Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan Award Agreement for Phantom Units for Non-Employee Directors with
distribution equivalent rights from December 10, 2015

10.19

Lehigh Gas Partners LP Executive Income Continuity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 30, 2014)

10.20

Lehigh Gas Partners LP Executive Income Continuity Plan (as amended) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2014)
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10.21*

First Amendment to Amended and Revised CrossAmerica Partners LP Executive Income Continuity Plan, dated September 14, 2016

10.22

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and between CST Services LLC and Joseph V. Topper, Jr. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 3, 2014)

10.23

Master Lease Agreement, dated May 28, 2014, by and among LGP Realty Holdings LP, Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. and Lehigh
Gas-Ohio, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 30, 2014)

10.24

GP Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2014, by and among Lehigh Gas Corporation, CST GP, LLC and CST Brands, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2015)

10.25

IDR Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2014, by and among The 2004 Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of Joseph V. Topper, Sr.,
The 2008 Irrevocable Agreement of Trust of John B. Reilly, Jr., CST Brands Holdings, LLC and CST Brands, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 27, 2015)

10.26

Contribution Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2014, by and among CST Brands, Inc., CST Services LLC and CrossAmerica Partners
LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for CrossAmerica Partners LP, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2015)

21.1 *

List of Subsidiaries of CrossAmerica Partners LP

23.1 *

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

31.1 *

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934

31.2 *

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934

32.1*†

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

32.2*†

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

101.INS *

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

*

Filed herewith

†

Not considered to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
By: CROSSAMERICA GP LLC, its General Partner
By: /s/ Jeremy L. Bergeron
Jeremy L. Bergeron
President
(On behalf of the registrant, and in the capacity of
principal executive officer)
Date: February 27, 2017
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities indicated on February 27, 2017.
Signature

Title

/s/ Kimberly S. Lubel

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Kimberly S. Lubel
/s/ Jeremy L. Bergeron

President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Jeremy L. Bergeron
/s/ Clayton E. Killinger

Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)

Clayton E. Killinger
/s/ Steven M. Stellato

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Steven M. Stellato
/s/ Gene Edwards

Director

Gene Edwards
/s/ Justin A. Gannon

Director

Justin A. Gannon
/s/ Joseph V. Topper, JR.

Director

Joseph V. Topper, JR.
/s/ John B. Reilly, III

Director

John B. Reilly, III
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Exhibit 10.4

AMENDMENT
TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED OMNIBUS AGREEMENT
This Amendment to Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement (the “ Amendment”) is entered into on, and effective as of,
January 1, 2016 (the “Effective Date”), and is by and among CrossAmerica Partners LP (formerly known as Lehigh Gas Partners LP),
a Delaware limited partnership (the “MLP” or the “Partnership”), CrossAmerica GP LLC (formerly known as Lehigh Gas GP LLC),
a Delaware limited liability company and the general partner of the MLP (the “General Partner”), Dunne Manning Inc. (formerly
known as Lehigh Gas Corporation), a Delaware corporation (“LGC”), CST Services LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“CST”), and, for purposes of Article X of the Agreement only, Dunne Manning Stores, LLC (formerly known as Lehigh Gas-Ohio,
LLC), a Delaware limited liability company (“LGO”), and, for purposes of Section 2.5, Article X and Article XI of the Agreement
only, Joseph V. Topper, Jr. (“ Topper”). The above-named entities are sometimes referred to in this Agreement each as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties.” Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the respective meanings
ascribed to such terms in Section 1.1 of the Agreement.
RECITALS:
WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to that certain Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement with an effective date of
October 1, 2014 (the “Agreement”); and
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend certain provisions of the Agreement as set forth below pursuant to Section 12.6 of the
Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants, conditions, and agreements contained herein, and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as
follows:
1.

Section 5.1(a) is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety as follows:

5.1 Management Fee.
(a) The Partnership shall pay CST a management fee for providing the Services in an amount equal to (i) $856,000
per month (the “Base Management Fee”) plus (ii) the Variable Wholesale Rate (as defined below) times each gallon of wholesale
motor fuel distributed by the Partnership and its subsidiaries per month (the “Variable Wholesale Management Fee ”) plus (iii) $0.015
for each gallon of retail motor fuel sold by the Partnership and its subsidiaries through their commission agents per month (the
“Variable Retail Management Fee ,” together with the Variable Wholesale Management Fee, the “ Variable Management Fee ”). The
“Variable Wholesale Rate ” shall be zero ($0.00) for the first 500 million gallons in the applicable calendar year, $0.0030 for the next
500 million gallon in such year, and $0.0020 for all gallons above 1,000 million gallons in such year. The Base Management Fee and
the Variable Management Fee are collectively referred to as the “ Management Fee.” The Base Management Fee shall be due and
payable, in advance, on the first Business Day of each month. The Variable Management Fee shall be paid by the Partnership to CST
as soon as practicable upon receipt by the General Partner of an invoice from CST setting forth the Variable Management Fee owed by
the Partnership to CST. If requested by the General Partner,
1

CST’s invoice for the Variable Management Fee shall provide reasonably detailed documentation supporting the gallons of motor fuel
distributed reflected on such invoice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the General Partner and CST, at their discretion, may waive all or
any portion of the Management Fee to the extent that all or a portion of the management services provided hereunder are either
purchased from another party or not required by the Partnership.
2.
Miscellaneous. The provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect except as expressly amended and
modified as set forth in this Amendment. This Amendment and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be governed by
and interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to any choice of law
principles. This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall
constitute but one and the same document.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment on, and effective as of, the Effective Date.
CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
By: CrossAmerica GP LLC, its General Partner
By: /s/ Jeremy L. Bergeron
Jeremy L. Bergeron
President
CROSSAMERICA GP LLC
By: /s/ Jeremy L. Bergeron
Jeremy L. Bergeron
President
DUNNE MANNING INC.
By: /s/ Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
CST SERVICES LLC
By: /s/ Kimberly S. Lubel
Kimberly S. Lubel
President and Chief Executive Officer
FOR PURPOSES OF ARTICLE X OF THE AGREEMENT
DUNNE MANNING STORES, LLC
By: /s/ Crislyn Sheeler
Crislyn Sheeler
General Manager

FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 2.5, ARTICLE X, AND ARTICLE XI OF THE
AGREEMENT
/s/ Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
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Exhibit 10.21

First Amendment to Amended and Revised CrossAmerica Partners LP
Executive Income Continuity Plan

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Executive Income Continuity Plan (this “Plan”) is to retain the services of executives and other
key employees who provide management services to CrossAmerica Partners LP and its subsidiaries (the “Partnership”) and its general
partner, CrossAmerica GP LLC (the “GP”, collectively with the Partnership, the “Company”) and to reinforce and encourage the
continuing attention, dedication and loyalty of these executives without the distraction of concern over the possibility of involuntary or
constructive termination of employment resulting from unforeseen developments, by providing income continuity for a limited period.
This Plan is intended to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the
regulations thereunder and related guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”).
2. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings respectively indicated:
(a) “2012 Plan” shall mean the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan, or any successor incentive award plans, as
from time to time in effect.
(b) “Annual Bonus” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e) of this Plan.
(c) “Award” shall mean any and all awards granted under the 2012 Plan including, without limitation, options, unit appreciation
rights, restricted units, phantom units, profits interest, substitute awards, performance awards, unit awards, other unit based awards and
any tandem distribution equivalent rights granted with respect to an award.
(d) “Board” shall mean the board of directors of the GP.
(e) “Cause” shall mean (i) the willful and continued failure by a Participant substantially to perform such Participant’s duties with
the Company (other than any such failure resulting from such Participant’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a demand
for substantial performance is delivered to the Participant by the Company which specifically identifies the manner in which the
Company believes that the Participant has not substantially performed such Participant’s duties, or (ii) the willful engaging by the
Participant in conduct demonstrably injurious to the Company. For purposes of this definition, no act, or failure to act, on the part of a
Participant shall be considered “willful” unless done, or omitted to be done, by such Participant without reasonable belief that such
Participant’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company and was lawful.
(f) A “Change in Control” shall be deemed to have occurred upon the occurrence of one of the following events:
(i)

Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires ownership of either (A) the common and subordinated units of
CrossAmerica Partners LP (“Units”), or (B) the membership interests of the GP (“Membership Interests”) that, together with Units or
Membership Interests, as applicable, held by such person or group, constitutes more than 50% of either the total fair market value or
total voting power of either the Units or the Membership Interests, as applicable.
1

(ii)

Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of Units or Membership Interests possessing thirty-five percent
(35%) or more of the total voting power of the Company; or

(iii)

A majority of members of the Board is replaced during any 12-month period by directors whose appointment or election is not
recommended by CST Brands, Inc.; or

(iv)

Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the Partnership that have a total gross fair market value equal to or
more than sixty percent (60%) of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Partnership immediately prior to such
acquisition; or

(v)

The consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among Circle K Stores Inc., Ultra
Acquisition Corp. and CST Brands, Inc., dated as of August 21, 2016.

(g) “Company” shall mean the Partnership and CrossAmerica GP LLC, collectively.
(h) “Date of Termination” shall mean (i) if the Services of a Participant are terminated by death, the date of such Participant’s
death, (ii) if the Participant retires, the date of such Participant’s retirement, (iii) if such Services are terminated other than for Cause or
other than as a result of Disability, the date specified in the Notice of Termination, (iv) if such Services are terminated for Disability,
the date of such Participant’s Disability, (v) if such Services are terminated by the Participant for Good Reason, the date specified in
the Notice of Termination, (vi) if the Participant’s Services are terminated following a Change in Control, the date in the Notice of
Termination, and (vii) otherwise shall be the last day such Participant provides Services to the Company.
(i) “Disability” shall mean that a Participant is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically
determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of
not less than twelve (12) months.
(j) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following: (A) a material diminution in the Participant’s base
compensation and/or target Annual Bonus; (B) a material diminution in the Participant’s authority, duties, or responsibilities; (C) a
material diminution in the authority, duties, or responsibilities of the supervisor to whom the Participant is required to report, including
a requirement that the Participant report to a corporate officer or employee instead of reporting directly to the board of directors of the
GP; (D) a material diminution in the budget over which the Participant retains authority; (E) a material change in the geographic
location at which the Participant must perform the Services; and (F) any other action or inaction that constitutes a material breach by
Company of the agreement under which the Participant provides services. Notice of Termination by a Participant for “Good Reason”
shall not be effective unless all of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the occurrence of the condition which would otherwise
constitute Good Reason under this Section 2(j) of this Plan must have arisen without the Participant’s consent; (ii) such condition must
remain uncorrected for 30 days after receipt by the Company of a notice of the existence of such condition from the Participant in
accordance with Section 10 of this Plan; and (iii) the date of Participant’s termination of Service must occur within 90 days after the
initial existence of the condition specified in such notice.
(k) “I.C. Plan” means the existing system of annual bonuses (cash, equity or a combination thereof) payable to Participants,
pursuant to which annual target bonuses are established based upon job levels and
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payments of bonuses as a percentage of such targets are made based upon CST Brands, Inc., Partnership and/or individual
performance.
(l) “Multiplier” shall mean (i) in the case of each Officer, the number 2.99; and (ii) in the case of each other Participant, such
number set forth adjacent to such Participant’s name in Schedule A which in no event shall exceed 2.99 (in the cases of each of (i) and
(ii), subject to the asterisked footnote to Schedule A).
(m) “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice which indicates the specific basis for termination of the Services of a Participant
relied upon and shall set forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide such basis. The Notice of
Termination shall also include the date of termination.
(n) “Officer(s)” shall mean who is designated as an executive officer of the Company or Partnership by resolution of the Board.
(o) “Participant” shall mean the Officers and any other person, who is an employee of CST Services, LLC, who is included in the
membership of this Plan as provided in Section 3 of this Plan.
(p) “Prospective Change in Control” shall have the meaning as defined in Section 12(b) of this Plan.
(q) “Service,” as used in Section 5 of this Plan, shall mean the provision of management services to the Company.
3. Membership. All Officers shall be Participants. The Board may designate any other person, who provides Services, as a
Participant. Such Participant and the Multiplier applicable to such Participant shall be set forth in Schedule A, attached hereto and
made a part hereof. After a person becomes a Participant, such Participant’s membership in this Plan shall continue until such person’s
death or retirement, termination by the Company or CST Services, LLC for Cause or Disability, or termination by such Participant
other than for Good Reason.
4. Termination. Each Participant shall be entitled to receive the income continuation payments provided for in Section 5 of this
Plan upon termination of such Participant’s Services (including, without limitation, the termination of the Omnibus Agreement between
CST Services, LLC and the Company) unless such termination is (a) because of the Participant’s death, Disability or retirement, (b) by
the Company or CST Services, LLC for Cause, or (c) by such Participant for any reason (other than for Good Reason which occurs
within one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination); provided that, if Notice of Termination is given prior to a Change in
Control, such Participant shall have signed and delivered, in form and substance satisfactory to the Company’s counsel, a nondisparagement agreement, and a waiver, effectively waiving all claims against the Company (including its directors, officers,
employees and agents) arising out of such Participant’s employment with CST Services, LLC and the provision of Services, other than
claims for payment post-termination under the terms of this Plan and employee benefit and compensation plans of the Company or
CST Services, LLC, as applicable, such waiver, and non-disparagement agreement to be delivered no later than the later of thirty
(30) days following (i) the date of Notice of Termination, or (ii) written request therefor by the Company, provided the Company must
request same no later than three (3) months after the date of the Notice of Termination. For all purposes of this Plan, a Participant shall
be considered to have terminated his Services with the Company when Participant incurs a “separation from service” with the
Company within the meaning of section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code and applicable administrative guidance issued thereunder.
5. Income Continuation and Vesting.
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(a) Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(c) of this Plan, upon the termination of an Officer’s Services, pursuant to Section 4
of this Plan, (a) the GP shall pay to such Participant in cash the sum of such Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect at the
time Notice of Termination is given plus such Participant’s Annual Bonus, in equal monthly installments over a twelve (12) month
period following the Date of Termination in the case of Officers, and (b) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Award
agreement, all of such Participant’s Awards shall vest immediately on the date that the Notice of Termination is given.
(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(c) of this Plan, upon the termination of a Participant’s Services other than those of
an Officer, pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, (a) the GP shall pay to such Participant in cash the sum of one-half of such Participant’s
annual base salary at the rate in effect at the time Notice of Termination is given plus one-half of such Participant’s Annual Bonus, in
equal monthly installments over a six (6) month period following the Date of Termination in the case of Participants, and
(b) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Award agreement, all of such Participant’s Awards shall vest immediately on
the date that the Notice of Termination is given.
(c) Upon the termination of a Participant’s Services pursuant to a Notice of Termination given after, or in connection with, a
Change in Control and before the second anniversary of such Change in Control, pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, the GP shall pay
to such Participant the product of (A) the sum of (x) the Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect at the time Notice of
Termination is given, plus (y) the Participant’s Annual Bonus times (B) the Multiplier, payable in a lump sum in cash following the
Date of Termination, subject to Subsection (d) of this Section. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Award agreement,
upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, all Awards to Participants shall vest immediately on the date that the Change in Control is
effective.
(d) All payments under subsections (a), (b) and (c) of this Section 5 of this Plan shall commence, or be paid, on the first business
day of the seventh month after the Participant’s Date of Termination except as otherwise specifically provided in such subsections.
Payments that would have been made during the six-month period following the Participant’s Date of Termination shall be paid to the
Participant on the first business day of the seventh month after the Participant’s Date of Termination, without interest.
(e) As used in this Plan, “Annual Bonus” means the annual target bonus under the I.C. Plan attributable to the Participant in effect
at the time the Notice of Termination is given. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if termination occurred for Good Reason as specified in
Section 2(j)(A) of this Plan, the termination payments provided for in subsection 5(a) or (b) shall be calculated using the annual base
salary and Annual Bonus as in effect immediately before the reduction of such annual base salary or Annual Bonus.
6. Other Payments. Upon termination of a Participant’s Services pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, the GP shall, in addition to the
payments provided for in Section 5 of this Plan, pay to the Participant:
(a) All relocation payments incurred in connection with Section 2(j)(E) of this Plan and all legal fees and expenses incurred by the
Participant as a result of such termination (including all such fees and expenses, if any, incurred in contesting or disputing any such
termination or in seeking to obtain or enforce any right or benefit provided by this Plan or in connection with any tax audit or
proceeding to the extent attributable to the application of Section 4999 of the Code to any payment or benefit provided hereunder); and
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(b) During the period of one (1) year following the Date of Termination in the case of an Officer and during the period of six
(6) months following the Date of Termination in the case of all other Participants, all reasonable expenses incurred by the Participant in
seeking comparable employment with another employer to the extent not otherwise reimbursed to the Participant, including, without
limitation, the fees and expenses of a reputable out placement organization, and reasonable travel, telephone and office expenses.
Any payments pursuant to this Section 6 shall be made by the Company upon or as soon as practicable following receipt of
supporting documentation reasonably satisfactory to the Company (but in any event not later than the close of the Participant’s third
taxable year following the taxable year in which the Date of Termination occurs). In no event shall any payment be made to Participant
for fees and expenses incurred after the close of the Participant’s second taxable year following the taxable year in which the Date of
Termination occurs
7. Maintenance of Other Benefit Plans. For a period of three (3) years (one year if not in connection with a Change in Control)
following an Officer’s Date of Termination and for a period of one (1) year (six months if not in connection with a Change in Control)
following the Date of Termination in the case of a Participant who is not an Officer, the Company shall cause the Participant’s
employer to maintain in full force and effect, for the continued benefit of each Participant entitled to receive, or who received,
payments pursuant to Section 5 of this Plan, comprehensive medical and dental insurance, group life insurance (but not including
disability coverage) on the same basis as such Participant participated immediately prior to the Date of Termination, unless the
Participant’s continued participation is not permitted under the general terms and provisions of such plans and programs or applicable
law. Continued benefits provided pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be subject to the following requirements: (a) continued
provided during one taxable year of the Participant shall not affect the continued benefits provided during any other taxable year of the
Participant, (b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense with respect to a continued benefit shall be made on or before the last day of
the Participant’s taxable year in which the expense was incurred and (c) the right to a continued benefit shall not be subject to
liquidation or exchange for another benefit.
8. No Mitigation. No Participant shall be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for under this Plan by seeking
other employment or otherwise, nor shall the amount of any payment so provided for be reduced by any compensation earned by any
Participant as the result of employment by another employer, by retirement benefits or by offset against any amount claimed to be
owed by the Participant to the Company.
9. Successors. The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and assets of the Company, by a written agreement, to expressly assume and agree
to carry out the provisions of this Plan in the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would be required to carry them
out if no such succession had occurred.
10. Notice. Any notice expressly provided for under this Plan shall be in writing, shall be given either manually or by mail,
telegram, telex, telefax or cable, and shall be deemed sufficiently given, if and when received by CST Services, LLC at its offices at
One Valero Way, San Antonio, Texas 78249, Attention: General Counsel, or by any Participant at the address on the records of the
Company for such Participant, or if and when mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the
Company or the Participant to be notified at such address. Either the Company or any Participant may, by notice to the other, change
its address for receiving notices.
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11. Funding. All payments provided for under this Plan for Participants (including those who have retired) shall not be funded or
secured, and no trust shall be created hereunder. Payments under this Plan shall become fully vested and non-forfeitable upon the
termination of a Participant’s Services except for termination where a Participant not be entitled to income continuation payments as
provided in Section 4 or as otherwise provided in any waiver, and non-disparagement agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4 of
this Plan.
12. Amendment and Termination.
(a) The Board may at any time or from time to time amend or terminate this Plan. No such amendment or termination may
adversely affect any vested benefits hereunder; and, provided further, that after a Change in Control, this Plan may not be amended or
terminated without the consent of all persons who were Participants as of the date of such Change in Control (including those who
have retired).
(b) In addition, no amendment or termination made within one (1) year before a Change in Control and made while a Prospective
Change in Control is pending may adversely affect any benefit that might at any time be or become owing hereunder to a person who,
immediately prior to the commencement of such Prospective Change in Control, was a Participant, without the consent of such person
(other than a benefit to any such person who is the person, or part of the group, making the offer, or negotiating to make the offer,
which constitutes the Prospective Change in Control). As used herein, the term “Prospective Change in Control” means (i) any offer
presented, directly or indirectly, to the Board which, if consummated, would constitute a Change in Control, or (ii) any negotiation
with the Board or any committee or representative thereof to make such an offer (including the unilateral announcement of the terms on
which such an offer would be made).
13. Claim and Appeal Procedure. This Section 13 of this Plan shall not apply after there has been a Change in Control.
The Company shall appoint a person or persons to adjudicate claims and appeals under this Plan (the “Administrator”). The
Administrator shall provide adequate notice in writing to any Participant or to any beneficiary (the “Claimant”) whose claim for
benefits under this Plan has been denied. The Administrator’s notice to the Claimant shall set forth:
(a) The specific reason for the denial;
(b) Specific references to pertinent Plan provisions upon which the Administrator based its denial;
(c) A description of any additional material and information that is needed;
(d) That any appeal the Claimant wishes to make of the adverse determination must be in writing to the Administrator within
seventy-five (75) days after receipt of the Administrator’s notice of denial of benefits. The Administrator’s notice must further advise
the Claimant that the Claimant’s failure to appeal the action to the Administrator in writing within the seventy-five (75) day period will
render the Administrator’s determination final, binding and conclusive; and
(e) The name and address to whom the Claimant may forward an appeal.
If the Claimant should appeal to the Administrator, the Claimant, or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative, may submit, in
writing, whatever issues and comments the Claimant or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative feels are pertinent. The Claimant,
or the Claimant’s duly authorized
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representative, may review pertinent Plan documents. The Administrator shall re-examine all facts to the appeal and make a final
determination as to whether the denial of benefits is justified under the circumstances. The Administrator shall advise the Claimant of
its decision within sixty (60) days of the Claimant’s written request for review, unless special circumstances (such as a hearing) would
make the rendering of a decision within the sixty (60) day limit unfeasible, but in no event shall the Administrator render a decision
respecting a denial for a claim of benefits later than one hundred twenty (120) days after its receipt of a request for review. The
Administrator’s notice to the Claimant shall set forth:
(i) The specific reason for the denial;
(ii) Specific references to pertinent Plan provisions upon which the Administrator based its denial;
(iii) A statement that the Claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all
documents, records, and other information relevant to the Claimant’s claim; and
(iv) A statement that the Claimant has a right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.
14. Governing Law. This Plan, and the rights and obligations of the Company and the Participants hereunder, shall be construed
and governed in accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
15. Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Plan is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Plan, which shall remain in effect in accordance with its terms.
16. Certain Excise Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, if Participant is a “disqualified individual” (as
defined in section 280G(c) of the Code), and the payments and benefits provided for under this Plan, together with any other payments
and benefits which Participant has the right to receive from the Company or any of its affiliates, would constitute a “parachute
payment” (as defined in section 280G(b)(2) of the Code), then the payments and benefits provided for under this Plan shall be either
(a) reduced (but not below zero) so that the present value of such total amounts and benefits received by Participant from the Company
and its affiliates will be one dollar ($1.00) less than three times Participant’s “base amount” (as defined in section 280G(b)(3) of the
Code) and so that no portion of such amounts and benefits received by Participant shall be subject to the excise tax imposed by section
4999 of the Code, or (b) paid in full, whichever produces the better net after-tax position to Participant (taking into account any
applicable excise tax under section 4999 of the Code and any other applicable taxes). The reduction of payments and benefits
hereunder, if applicable, shall be made by reducing, first, payments or benefits to be paid in cash hereunder in the order in which such
payment or benefit would be paid or provided (beginning with such payment or benefit that would be made last in time and continuing,
to the extent necessary, through to such payment or benefit that would be made first in time) and, then, reducing any benefit to be
provided in-kind hereunder in a similar order. The determination as to whether any such reduction in the amount of the payments and
benefits provided hereunder is necessary shall be made by the Company in good faith. If a reduced payment or benefit is made or
provided, and through error or otherwise, that payment or benefit, when aggregated with other payments and benefits from the
Company (or its affiliates) used in determining if a “parachute payment” exists, exceeds one dollar ($1.00) less than three times
Participant’s base amount, then Participant shall immediately repay such excess to the Company upon notification that an overpayment
has been made. Nothing in this Section 16 shall require the Company to be responsible for, or have any liability or obligation with
respect to, Participant’s excise tax liabilities under section 4999 of the Code.
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By:

CrossAmerica Partners LP and CrossAmerica GP LLC

By:

CrossAmerica GP LLC, for itself and as general partner

By:

/s/ Jeremy L. Bergeron

September 14, 2016

Jeremy L. Bergeron
President

DATE
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Schedule A

Any and all persons elected as an officer of the GP by resolution of the Board

2.99*

Karen Yeakel

2.99

Leti Andrade

2.99

Sean Wolf

2.99

Heather Davis

2.99

Jon Benfield

2.99

Tom Caverly

2.99

*In the event that, within a twelve month period, both a termination of a Participant’s Services described in Section 5(c) of this Plan
and a termination of such Participant’s Services described in Section 3(b) of any applicable Separation Agreement with CST Brands,
Inc. occur, then (i) Clayton E. Killinger’s aggregate payments under Section 5(c) of this Plan and Section 3(b)(i) of his Separation
Agreement with CST Brands, Inc. shall not exceed two times his payments under Section 3(b)(i) of his Separation Agreement with
CST Brands, Inc. and (ii) the aggregate payments and benefits to each other Participant who has a Separation Agreement with CST
Brands, Inc. under such Separation Agreement and under this Plan shall not exceed the greater of the payments and benefits provided
under such Separation Agreement and the payments and benefits provided under this Plan. In addition, solely with respect to the
Officer participants subject to this paragraph, Good Reason, as defined in Section 2(j) of this Plan, would include a reduction of their
Annual Bonus by 50% or more.
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Exhibit 21.1
CROSSAMERICA GP LLC ENTITIES
NAME OF ENTITY

Jurisdiction

CAP OPERATIONS, INC.

Delaware

CAP WEST VIRGINIA HOLDINGS, LLC

Delaware

CHESTNUT STREET AND LINE STREET MIFFLINBURG, LLC

Delaware

COBBLER’S CREEK LLC

Delaware

CROSSAMERICA FINANCE CORP.

Delaware

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP

Delaware

DELG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

ERICKSON OIL PRODUCTS, INC.

Wisconsin

EXPRESS LANE, INC.

Florida

FLLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

FREEDOM VALU CENTERS, INC.

Wisconsin

HARLEYSVILLE GAS STATION, LLC

Delaware

I-95 & MARKET ST. MARCUS HOOK, LLC

Pennsylvania

KYLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

LANSDALE GAS STATION LLC

Delaware

LEHIGH GAS WHOELSALE LLC

Delaware

LEHIGH GAS WHOLESALE SERVICES, INC.

Delaware

LGP OPERATIONS LLC

Delaware

LGP REALTY HOLDINGS GP LLC

Delaware

LGP REALTY HOLDINGS LP

Delaware

M & J OPERATIONS, LLC

West Virginia

MALG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

MALG - UST II, LLC

Delaware

MELG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

MINNESOTA NICE HOLDINGS INC.

Delaware

NHLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

NJLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

NTI DROP DOWN ONE, LLC

Delaware

NTI DROP DOWN THREE, LLC

Delaware

NTI DROP DOWN TWO, LLC

Delaware

NYLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

OHLG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST I, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST II, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST III, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST IV, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST IX, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST V, LLV

Delaware

PALG – UST VI, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST VII, LLC

Delaware

PALG – UST VIII, LLC

Delaware

PETROLEUM MARKETERS, INCORPORATED

Virginia

PM PROPERTIES, INC.

Virginia

PM TERMINALS, INC.

Virginia

PM TRANSPORT, INC.

Virginia

ROUTE 313 & 113 DUBLIN, LLC

Delaware
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STOP IN FOOD STORES, INC.

Virginia

100 EAST UWCHLAN AVE. EXTON, LLC

Pennsylvania

100 YORK JENKINTOWN LLC

Delaware

1001 BALTIMORE AVE. EAST LANDSDOWNE, LLC

Pennsylvania

103 N. POTTSTOWN PIKE EXTON, LLC

Pennsylvania

1095 S. WEST END BLVD. QUAKERTOWN, LLC

Delaware

1110 MACARTHUR ROAD WHITEHALL, LLC

Delaware

1130 BALTIMORE PIKE GLEN MILLS, LLC

Pennsylvania

1229 MCDADE BLVD. WOODLYN, LLC

Pennsylvania

123 NORTH PINE LANGHORNE, LLC

Pennsylvania

1266 E. OLD LINCOLN HWY. LANGHORNE, LLC

Pennsylvania

1419 W. MAIN ST. LANSDALE, LLC

Pennsylvania

15 MAIN STREET WATSONTOWN, LLC

Delaware

1595 CENTRAL AVE COLONIE, LLC

New York

200 W. MONTGOMERY AVE. ARDMORE, LLC

Pennsylvania

201 W. GERMANTOWN PIKE NORRISTOWN, LLC

Pennsylvania

2134 NORTHAMPTON ST. EASTON LLC

Delaware

2200 BABCOCK BLVD PITTSBURGH, LLC

Delaware

2306 LYCOMING CREEK ROAD WILLIAMSPORT, LLC

Delaware

2311 N TRIPHAMMER RD LANSING, LLC

New York

234-248 N. 63RD ST. PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania

2401 HAVERFORD ROAD ARDMORE, LLC

Pennsylvania

2405 ROUTE 286, PITTSBURGH, LLC

Delaware

2501 BRIGHTON AVE PITTSBURGH, LLC

Delaware

2700 LEECHBURG RD LOWE BURRELL

Delaware

301 S. KEMP ST. LYONS, LLC

Pennsylvania

3101 N. BROAD ST. PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania

3221 ROUTE 22 BRANCHBURG, LLC

Delaware

335 FRANKLIN MILLS CIRCLE PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania

3727 LINCOLN THORNDALE LLC

Delaware

415 SOUTH MAIN STREET SHENANDOAH, LLC

Pennsylvania

4200 WHITAKER AVE. PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania

4616 MCKNIGHT RD PITTSBURGH, LLC

Delaware

507 ALLEGHENY AVE OAKMONT, LLC

Delaware

5250 TORRESDALE AVE., PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania

528 ALTAMONT BOULEVARD FRACKVILLE, LLC

Pennsylvania

53 W FAYETTE ST UNIONTOWN, LLC

Delaware

555 NORTH YORK HATBORO LLC

Delaware

5700 HOMEVILLE RD WEST MIFFLIN, LLC

Delaware

5716 HULMEVILLE ROAD BENSALEM, LLC

Pennsylvania

600 S. OAK ROAD PRIMOS SECANE, LLC

Pennsylvania

606 MONTGOMERY AVE. NARBERTH, LLC

Pennsylvania

6816 EASTON ROAD PIPERSVILLE, LLC

Delaware

7424 WEST CHESTER PIKE UPPER DARBY, LLC

Pennsylvania

759 CHESTER PIKE PROSPECT PARK, LLC

Pennsylvania

799 VALLEY FORGE PHOENIXVILLE LLC

Delaware

9996 BUSTLETON AVE. PHILADELPHIA, LLC

Pennsylvania
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We have issued our reports dated February 27, 2017, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting
included in the Annual Report of CrossAmerica Partners LP on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. We consent to the incorporation by
reference of said reports in the Registration Statements of CrossAmerica Partners LP on Form S-3 (File No. 333-214713 and File No. 333-192035) and on
Form S-8 (File No. 333-184651).
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Arlington, Virginia
February 27, 2017

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jeremy Bergeron, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2017

/s/ Jeremy Bergeron
Jeremy Bergeron
President
[Principal Executive Officer]
CrossAmerica GP LLC
(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Clayton E. Killinger, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2017

/s/ Clayton E. Killinger
Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the year ended December 31, 2016, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jeremy Bergeron, President of CrossAmerica GP LLC, the General Partner of the
Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to my knowledge:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: February 27, 2017

/s/ Jeremy Bergeron
Jeremy Bergeron
President
[Principal Executive Officer]
CrossAmerica GP LLC
(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)
This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1964, as amended.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the year ended December 31, 2016, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Clayton E. Killinger, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
CrossAmerica GP LLC, the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 that, to my knowledge:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: February 27, 2017

/s/ Clayton E. Killinger
Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1964, as amended.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

